:

imited

CWT International L

Stock Code B3 L5%: 521

Annual Report 2021 £ &



CONTENTS H £

Definitions

Bx

Corporate Information
NRIER

Directors’ Biographies
EE[EN

Financial Highlights

MBHE

Chairman’s Statement
FRWmEE

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIR Bl AT

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

Report of the Directors
ExeREE

Independent Auditor’'s Report
MR (TR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
ReEEREMEEmKEE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBRRE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SAMERBE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A TH A B
%vT\ (=] Iﬁimbi%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A M ERR I

Five-year Financial Summary

hEPHRE

24

67

74

77

80

84

86

244



DEFINITIONS

x5

In this annual report, the following expressions shall have the RARFRA - BXESEEN © TIHFZBEE
following meanings unless the context requires otherwise: AT -

“2012 Scheme”
(=2 — =48]

"“Articles”

RN

"associate”
=Nl

“Audit Committee”

[EZEZEg]

"Board”
Ex3d

“Board Diversity Policy”

[EEeXE L TR

"CG Code”

[EEERTH

“Chairman”

ES:3

"Chief Executive Officer”
[T B E

"Co-Chairman” or “Co-Chairmen”

EEESEA

“Companies Ordinance”

NGRS

“Company”

(AR A ]

“Company Secretary(ies)”

[ RRE]

2

the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 29 May 2012
ARBRZZE——FHRA-THBFEMNZERETE

the articles of association of the Company
RRBZHABEIRAA

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BE EmRAIME T A2 BE

the audit committee of the Board

BExgRg T ZERZES

the board of Directors

Ex¢g

the board diversity policy of the Company adopted in August 2013 and
revised in March 2019
AARIRZE—=FN\AKAER_E-—NF=ABIZ2EETEKNEZ Tk
BR

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules

ER AR+ AR B EA ST R

the chairman of the Board

BEEQ2ER

the chief executive officer of the Company

RRBZITHAEBE

the co-chairman or co-chairmen of the Board
EESUHEERE

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEDE6228 2 BEAI

CWT International Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange

CWT International Limited * —RRABEZMN Lz BR AR - ERNOEBR
FrEf £

the company secretary(ies) of the Company

KRB ZRARME

CWT International Limited | 20214 & #



“connected person(s)”

[BAEAL]

"Covid-19"
[Covid-19]

“"CWT SG”

[CWT SGI

“"CWT SG Group”

[CWT SG&EE |

"Director(s)”

S

“Dividend Policy”
(A B BER

"Executive Committee”

[HITRER)

"Executive Director(s)”

[BITESE]

"Group”
[ & ]

“HNA Group”
[EmEE]

“HNA Group (International)”

[ & (B ]

“"HNA Tourism”
Bi=siiEA

“Hong Kong”
(&8

“Hong Kong HNA"
[& &8

“Independent Non-
executive Director(s)”

B IFITESR]

DEFINITIONS
Bx

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB AR T %A R E

the 2019 Novel Coronavirus

201931 BB IR &

CWT Pte. Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

CWT Pte. Limited * POET AN HAMBEFMAK IO R E » BARRZ EZEE2EMH
JESWNC]

CWT SG and its subsidiaries
CWT SGREKIBAF]

the director(s) of the Company

ARAES

the dividend policy of the Company adopted in March 2019
RRBRZE-NF=Z ARK 2 REBER

the executive committee of the Board
EEEB T HTEES

the executive Director(s)

HITES

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRA R EM B R E

HNA Group Co., Ltd.*, an indirect controlling Shareholder
BMEEBRAR - —BEEERRKRER

HNA Group (International) Company Limited
BiEE (BB AR AR

HNA Tourism International (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
ERIR R B (BB BR AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
P EEBEATRE

Hong Kong HNA Holding Group Co. Limited, a direct controlling Shareholder
EBEMEEEEBRAGR - —BEEZERRKRR

the independent non-executive Director(s)

BIUFATES
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DEFINITIONS
=

”Investment Committee”
’V?X/é( 1= El

“Listing Rules”
[ LR R

"Model Code”
[1Z2E=<F Al

“Nomination Committee”

[RREEg]

“Nomination Policy”

Er==1c¢

“Non-executive Director(s)”

[PEAITEE]

“PRC”

[

“Promissory Note”

3RS

“Remuneration Committee”

’V*ﬁ@ﬂyz\a

“SFO”

[R5 KRR

“Share(s)”
A7 ]

the investment committee of the Board

ExguTcREZES

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B P s LR Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
FHARAIMSETRE FTREITAESETIERRH ZIRLETE

the nomination committee of the Board

BEXgR T ZREZES

the nomination policy of the Company adopted in March 2019
RAABRZZE—NF= AR RBECR

the non-executive Director(s)

FRTES

the People’'s Republic of China, which for the purposes of this annual
report (unless otherwise stated), excludes Hong Kong, the Macao Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

REARAME iR FEHRME BREEMEN - TBESE - FBRIRFRE
AT R &k &aE

the promissory note dated 3 September 2020 entered into between the
Company and HNA Group (International). On and with effect from 7 April
2021, HNA Group (International) assigned to HNA Tourism all of its rights
and obligations in the Promissory Note and its right to collect and be paid all
principal, interest and other sums due under or in respect of the Promissory
Note pursuant to a deed of assignment dated 7 April 2021 entered into
between HNA Group (International) and HNA Tourism
ARREEBMER (BRI ABRA—S-_SFAA=ZBZ2ALER -
“E--FMALHRBEZAR  BHEEER) REESMEE (B )Eﬁi/ﬁn
REMIVEHA-T - —FMNALHZERERE - MEMKES RN
HEBZMBERANREEAREEDRES NEERRETHE@ALERE
ZHBEARE  NEREARIAZ R

the remuneration committee of the Board

EFERTZFMERESR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
BEREDIESEE S R E KA

the ordinary share(s) of the Company

ARREZ EBR

4 CWT International Limited | 2021 & F &



"Shareholder(s)”
A%

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 P |

“subsidiary(ies)”

Ky

"Euro”

(BT

“HK$"
[

"gg”
[ 03T

“US$”
El

"PEN"
(& =)

nop
[ %]

*  For identification purpose only

DEFINITIONS
Bx

the holder(s) of the Shares
EEHEST DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBER AR DT

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

A EWRAIME T %A BE

Euro, the official currency of the European Union
BATT - BUMNESEBRATE &K

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BBEEEY

Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of the Republic of Singapore

FIKTT - SR A MBIEE 5

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
ET 0 ENRERENEEES

Peruvian Sol, the national currency of Peru
WERE  WEEREH

per cent or percentage
Bkt

* EHES
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DA EH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Wang Kan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Zhao Quan

Peng Biao

Wu Jinfeng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin

Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (Chairman)
Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Wang Kan (Chairman)
Peng Biao
Wu Jinfeng

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Wang Kan (Chairman)
Peng Biao

Wu Jinfeng

Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Wang Kan (Chairman)
Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (Chairman)
Wang Kan

Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Lau Lap Ngai

AUDITOR

KPMG
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Suites 1101-3 & 12, 11th Floor, Tower 2
The Gateway, Harbour City

Kowloon

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
521

WEBSITE

www.cwtinternational.com
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
ESEN

Mr. Wang Kan (“"Mr. Wang"), aged 37, holds a bachelor’s degree
in German from Shanghai International Studies University and a
master’s degree in interpreting and translating from the University
of Bath in United Kingdom (“UK"). He is also a certified public
accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Wang was appointed as an Executive
Director, Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in February
2022. He is the chairman of each of the Executive Committee,
the Investment Committee and the Nomination Committee, and
a member of the Remuneration Committee, and also acts as
directors of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Wang joined Yangtze River Air Cargo Holdings Limited* (-
I EEIEAR AR A A]), a company under HNA Group, in 2017
and has served several senior positions for its certain companies.
Mr. Wang is currently the executive deputy general manager of
the asset operation department of HNA Group. Mr. Wang is also
currently a director of HY Energy Group Co., Ltd. (an A-Share listed
company on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 600387).

Before joining HNA Group, Mr. Wang served as the deputy
manager of the banking and capital markets department of Deloitte
LLP UK, the chief investment officer of Hung To Capital Limited
and director of overseas investment and operations of Qingdao
Haier Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang has extensive management knowledge
and working experience in the fields of investment and financing,
financial markets, financial accounting and compliance.

An engagement letter was first entered into between Mr. Wang
and the Company on 21 February 2022 in relation to Mr. Wang's
appointment as an Executive Director. On 1 March 2022, Mr.
Wang and the Company entered into a service agreement
replacing the engagement letter dated 21 February 2022.

8  CWT International Limited | 2021 & F &
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Mr. Zhao Quan (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 51, holds a bachelor’s
degree of science in computer science software management
from Lanzhou University. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an
Executive Director and the Chairman of the Board in July 2015,
was re-designated as the Co-Chairman in November 2016, and
subsequently stepped down as the Co-Chairman in December
2017 but remains as an Executive Director. He once acted as
directors of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhao
joined HNA Group, a substantial Shareholder pursuant to Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, in 2009, and was
engaged with several senior management positions, He is now
the vice president of HNA Group. Mr. Zhao has over 20 years
of working and management experience in the areas of airlines,
finance, airport investment and operation etc., and has extensive
knowledge and working experience in corporate management.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Zhao and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020.

Mr. Peng Biao (“Mr. Peng”), aged 40, holds a bachelor's degree
in English from Sichuan International Studies University and a
master’'s degree in communications from Peking University. Mr.
Peng was appointed as an Executive Director in May 2021, and is
a member of each of the Executive Committee and the Investment
Committee. Mr. Peng joined HNA Group, a substantial shareholder
pursuant to Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, in
2007 and has served a number of senior positions for its certain
companies. He is currently the general manager of investment
and operation department of HNA Group. Mr. Peng has extensive
management knowledge and working experience in investment,
communications, public relations and branding.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Peng and
the Company for a term commencing from 31 May 2021 to 31
December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
EEBN

HEEE(HEEED Fh+t—K FEHRMK
B ERMBRAHERTHEXRERL BN -
HEER - Z-AFLtARZERUTESHE
EEXR IR _FT-ARF+-AFAEABEE
FBHERR Tt +_-_AREHETIRF 1R
REHTEFT B - WERTARRZHNBA
AIMES - BEAR _TETNAFNMASMER(R
REESLHBEERIEXVE 2 ZERR) - BiE
EE2EERERRE RRASMEBRRER -8
FTEEME &Rl - BEREREZEFZEEN
BREA_TFOREREELE BEEEMND
XEBEMBRTIFER -

HELRARBRE—DRB=ZF2RHKEEH
TR T -_TF-A—HEER-

wRAEE(REE]D  FO+E  HEMIISNE
BABREFELI R TKEERBRLTEMN - &
FER-_Z_—FRARZRESANTES IR
HITZEEMREZBERANKE - ZREAR
—ETEENAEMEE(BRIEEZ RS &P
EXVHZEBZRFEERTETETARZE
MBS - RRECEMEBIRELEEELAK
2o g hAHERE B AEARESENE
BELENERMBN TIELR -

TREEARNRNE—HEEE  THH-_T=
—FERA=t+—RARE_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—
=l
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
ESEHMT

Mr. Wu Jinfeng (“Mr. Wu"”), aged 34, holds a bachelor’'s degree
in finance and accounting from University of International Business
and Economics and a master’s degree of business administration
from Hong Kong University. He is a certified internal auditor of
the Institute of Internal Auditors. He also holds the certificate
of securities practice qualification issued by the Securities
Association of China, the certificate of futures practice qualification
issued by China Futures Association, and medium level of
economics professional qualification issued by Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of People’s Republic of China. Mr.
Wu was appointed as an Executive Director in May 2021, and is a
member of each of the Executive Committee and the Investment
Committee. Mr. Wu joined HNA Group, a substantial shareholder
pursuant to Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, in
2011 and has served a number of senior positions for its certain
companies. He is currently the chief financial officer of the
Company and also acts as directors of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Wu has extensive management knowledge
and working experience in accounting, finance, treasury and risk
management.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Wu and
the Company for a term commencing from 31 May 2021 to 31
December 2022.

Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony (“Mr. Leung”), aged 79, holds a
bachelor's degree of commerce from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a master’s degree in business administration
from New York State University. Mr. Leung was appointed as a
Non-executive Director in April 1993 and was re-designated to
an Independent Non-executive Director in November 2018. He
is a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Investment
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Up to May 2019, Mr. Leung was also a non-executive
director of Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (Stock
Code: 639), which is a listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung
had worked in Citibank N.A. and W.I. Carr Sons & Co. (Overseas)
in his early years and was the managing director of CEF Group.
He has over 40 years of experience in securities and banking
business, investment, financial markets, corporate strategy and
corporate management.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Leung and

the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020.

10 cwrT International Limited | 2021 & F &
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Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (“Mr. Liem"), aged 41, holds a bachelor’s
degree (honours) in commerce from University of Toronto and a
master's degree in taxation from University of Waterloo. Mr. Liem
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in June 2013 and is the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, and a member
of each of the Investment Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a CFA charter holder and a certified public
accountant (USA). Mr. Liem is a managing director of Masan
Capital Limited, a council member and an investment committee
member of the Hong Kong Baptist University, a board member
and a senior fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute (HKSI), a non-executive director for Legends Corporate
Bond Fund (Cayman Islands) and a pro bono research analyst
at HKGolden50. Mr. Liem is licensed to carry out advising on
securities and asset management businesses under Type 4 and
Type 9 regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. He has extensive experience in securities, financial
market and investment.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Liem and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020.

Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey ("Mr. Lam"), GBS, JP, aged 70, holds a
bachelor’'s degree in mechanical engineering from Tufts University
in the United States and was conferred university fellow of Tufts
University and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in October 2013 and is a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He is also an executive director of Hong Kong
Aerospace Technology Group Limited (Stock Code: 1725), and an
independent non-executive director of each of Analogue Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1977), C C Land Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1224), China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited (Stock
Code: 81), China Strategic Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 235),
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (Stock Code: 1929),
i-CABLE Communications Limited (Stock Code: 1097), Wing Tai
Properties Limited (Stock Code: 369) and Wynn Macau, Limited
(Stock Code: 1128), all of which are listed companies in Hong
Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in toy industry and is
currently the managing director of Forward Winsome Industries
Limited which is engaged in toy manufacturing.

2021 Annual Report | CWT International Limited
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
ESEHMT

In addition, Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also
a member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the "HKSAR"), a non-official member
of the Executive Council of the HKSAR, the chairman of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) Complaints
Committee, a general committee member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce and a honorary member of the
Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a director on the
board of Heifer International — Hong Kong and a director of the
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited. Mr. Lam also holds a
number of other public and community service positions.

Mr. Lam was awarded the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong
Kong” in 1989 and the “Outstanding Achievement Award —
Hong Kong Toy Industry” in 1999 respectively. In 1996, he was
appointed Justice of the Peace and became a member of the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire. Mr. Lam was awarded the
Silver Bauhinia Star in 2004 and the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2011
respectively.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Lam and

the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2020.

*  For identification purpose only

12 cWT International Limited | 2021 & F &

goh - MiEEEESTREARBAHEEZE
BZEEXE - RSB EFANTHE(EESE
B A€#%8  BERRTREZIIETH
B RHAEFERAZBEER BEERS
BEEEE AAEIARZEMNZESRER
B -BRNEGFEENCEETERERBARE
EFBRAFES - MEBEENGRZEANHE
Fott [ AR TSR -

HEELEEDHIR - NNANFR-—AANEE
RIBEBFIXZREIRIBBIMARE LA
B WR—NANARNFRZE/KNFELLERAN
RERBE - MEBELEDHIR _FTTNFR -
T——FRERZFESNEREHES -

MRELERARBTE-—NAB=F2ZE
E IHH-_T-TF-A—AEBER-

* EHRES



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
DR

TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FORTHE YEAR 2021
—R--FEERIEERHI ZERE

14.11%
1.18%

)
56.28%

. Commodity marketing Logistics services Financial services Engineering services

BARES Y7 BR S TR TREB®

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION FORTHEYEAR 2021
TEC-FEERMBEE D 2EXE

2.11%

o
s 0.44%

31.56%
\_/ 63270/0
. Mainland China Other parts of the Europe . North America Africa Continent
REIRt Asia Pacific Region BOM b3 IEM
HAthTE A E
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR E

REVENUE (HK$'000)

WA GB¥Tr)
Year
2017 23,955,863
2019 40,747512
2020 44,673,571
2021 55,448,828

GROSS PROFIT (HK$'000)
EAM (BT

Year &£
2017 811,162
2019 1,536,143

2020

1,481,066

2021

1,910,263

TOTAL ASSETS (HK$'000)
REE (BBTRT)

Year
2017 31,181,703
2019 24,020,577
2020 24,915,974
2021 24,934,882
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board, we are pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Compared with the past few years, the Group operated relatively
smoothly in 2021. Unlike in 2019 or 2020, the Group had eased
the financial pressure from the maturity of the debt repayment.
However, there were still some affairs which the Group had
to tackle with, such as the restructuring of the substantial
shareholders, and the lawsuit regarding ED&F case. The Group
would keep the public abreast of the development of the above
matters by publishing any update to inform the public from time to
time. Fortunately, as at the date of this report, the reorganization
plan of the substantial shareholders had been approved by Hainan
Higher Court.

In 2020, the Group refocused on the logistics industry, which
turned out to be a right decision. The Group would adhere to
this strategy and make adaptions according to the changes in
international situations. We consider it is important to maintain a
stable operation in the coming years.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE IN 2021

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue
amounted to HK$55,448,828,000 (2020: HK$44,673,571,000),
while the profit attributable to owners amounted to
HK$208,905,000 (2020: HK$41,465,000). For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group did not have discontinued
operations (2020: incurred a loss of HK$15,506,000) and a
profit of HK$289,359,000 from the continuing operations (2020:
HK$83,814,000).

Despite the outbreaks of the Delta and Omicron virus causing
bottlenecks and pressure on supply chains, the performance of the
Company's continuing operations has improved as compared with
that in the previous years, primarily due to:

(i) significant contribution from freight logistics business,
driven by exceptionally high demand for LCL (Less than
Container Load) services and acute carriers space shortage
situation. Careful management of the circumstances and
the successful capitalization of the market conditions drove
margins to an exceptionally high level thereby boosting the
Group's gross profit; and
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREHRES

(if) the significant decrease in finance cost due to: (a) the
repayment of the outstanding principal and interest due
under the facility agreement entered into by the Company
in September 2018; and (b) the entering into of promissory
note which is of a lower interest rate as compared to the
facility agreement. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 September 2020.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company
in 2021, and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA") from continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2021 as amounted to HK$1,418,107,000
(2020: HK$1,210,604,000), the amount of which is calculated by
the profit the year from continuing operations, before deducting
the finance costs, income tax expenses, depreciation, and
amortization for the continuing operations.

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2022 AND
OUR STRATEGIES

In addition to the threat of Delta and Omicron virus, the outbreak
of military conflict between Russia and Ukraine creates uncertainty
on the global political and economic situation. Under such
circumstances, the Group will deal with all potential risks carefully.

On the other hand, the promissory note of HK$716,000,000, which
will expire in September 2022, has already been extended for
another three years after continuous discussion and negotiation
between the management team of the Company and the
substantial shareholder. This significantly reduces the liquidity risk
of the Group and the Group can allocate more resources to focus
on the business in Singapore and the affairs in Hong Kong.

In the foreseeable future, the Group believes that it will stay in a
profitable status. While the Group will try to keep making profit
from the business in Singapore, the Group will also fulfil the
corporate social responsibility at the same time. The Group will
also improve the quality and efficiency of workflow and optimize
the management efficiency in Hong Kong. In addition to strictly
comply with the applicable laws and regulations, we will also aim
to maximize the Shareholders’ interests through a series of actions
in an attempt to improve our market image and market value.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, we would like to take this opportunity
to extend our sincere gratitude to all Shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners of the Company for
their valuable and continuous support and trust to the Group.
We would also extend our gratitude and appreciation to all our
management and staff for their tireless efforts, diligence and
dedication throughout the year.

Wang Kan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWAE TN

OVERVIEW

The year 2021 saw global economic recovery boosted by
government and central bank support and by progress in
vaccination. Growth prospects vary greatly due to disparities in
vaccination progress, in size and effectiveness of policy stimulus,
and in economic structures. The outbreaks of the Delta and
Omicron virus are forcing some countries to restrict activities,
resulting in bottlenecks and pressures on supply chains.

Freight logistics under logistics services segment and commodity
marketing segment saw surge in revenue fueled by higher ocean
freight rates and commodity prices. Supply chain disruption,
imbalanced supply and demand and growth in international trade
volumes drove up freight rates. The Asia Pacific is the fastest-
growing region. Increasing infrastructure investments and
industrial developments drive up demand for base metals hence
higher commodity prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue
increased by 24% from HK$44,673,571,000 to HK$55,448,828,000
mainly due to higher commodity prices, increase in freight logistics
volume coupled with exceptionally high ocean freight rates. The
Group's net profit from continuing operations increased by 245%
mainly due to exceptional performance from logistics services
notably freight logistics. With a nimble and experienced team,
the Group delivered stellar performance by capitalizing on the
high demand for shipping space, focusing on improved inventory
management with automation and pivoting towards healthcare
logistics.

Logistics Services

Our core logistics business environment is closely tied to
Singapore's economy, customer demand and dependent on the
global supply chain situation, all of which are impacted by Covid-19.
With the influx of Omicron virus strain, countries and companies
are respectively taking a measured approach in the easing of
trade restrictions and in normalizing operations. Amid a prolonged
pandemic era, supply chain delays continue to slow down sector
recovery and place pressure on logistics players.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group continues to adapt, adjust and achieve. In 2021,
we added a new milestone with the operational readiness
of our automated container storage and retrieval system at
Mega Logistics Hub. With automation, we are able to manage
inventory more accurately, more efficiently handle high container
turnover rates, reduce manual processes and carbon emissions.
Additionally, we pivoted from our primary regional distribution
hub model to focus more on the domestic market to capitalise on
higher demand for local healthcare logistics such as storage and
distribution of hand sanitisers.

For warehousing logistics, our Singapore warehouses were
close to full utilisation in 2021. We expect this positive trend
to continue into 2022. The ripple effect of the world’'s supply
chain disruption has led to increased warehousing demand as
businesses retooled their distribution and fulfiiment models. In
addition, market-anticipated new warehouses were further delayed
in their schedule due to labour shortage, resulting in unfulfilled
demand and consequently causing market rate to go up. With only
a few new warehouses in the pipeline, the tight supply situation is
expected to persist into the foreseeable future, with market rate
holding steady or higher until new supply of warehouses comes on
stream.

For freight logistics business, several factors converged to drive
the demand for shipping space and rates to unprecedented levels.
The most chronic demand situation was seen in the Trans Pacific
trade and the European market, with the snowballing effect lifting
rates even further to a very high level throughout the year. This
setting eventually spilt over to the Intra-Asia trade, particularly for
export out of China and import into the Oceania trade. We had
adapted well to these market conditions and were able to navigate
and maximise our margins. In 2021, our overall cargo volume grew
and we recorded our best financial performance for freight logistics
in the Company’s history. We expect the tight space situation to
extend into first half of 2022. Most of the factors that drive rates
are expected to prevail and continue to underpin the strong rate
levels.

For commodity logistics business, we delivered a strong
performance in 2021 despite volatile market conditions and many
operational challenges imposed by the pandemic. 2021 revenue
and profit were higher compared to the previous corresponding
period. The robust performance was underpinned by effective
execution across business units, driven by stronger cocoa beans
warehousing and logistics business. Looking ahead, we remain
razor-focused in shaping our strategies to develop and grow our
commodity warehousing and logistics services for the long term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmAE DM

Despite operational challenges from the pandemic and the volatile
market conditions, logistics services reported a 67% increase in
revenue over the financial year 2020. Excluding Covid-19 reliefs
HK$28,667,000, the Group achieved 256% higher profit before
tax than the previously financial year. The stellar results were
contributed largely by the Group's freight logistics business. The
Group's ability to adapt and react swiftly to the challenges and
market conditions coupled with the capitalization of business
opportunity were the key drivers that propelled the results of
logistics services to a greater height.

Commodity Marketing (“CM"”)

For CM business, we provide global supply chain management
services and specialize in the marketing of mainly non-ferrous
concentrates and refined metals for smelters, processing
industries and trading companies.

Despite a plethora of challenges to global commodity trading
markets ranging from impacts of the ongoing pandemic to severe
supply chain bottlenecks, CM has continued to operate profitably
and competitively in the concentrates market. Whilst CM’s total
traded volume of concentrates fell slightly in 2021 compared to
2020, revenues increased over the same period due to record
high copper prices. However, CM also incurred higher costs,
largely driven by the total cost of financing rising commensurately
with higher copper prices, increased global freight rates and the
persistent backwardation of the copper market structure.

Looking ahead, we anticipate a more balanced copper concentrates
market in 2022 with higher mine output matching already strong
demand providing ample opportunities for CM to take advantage of
in 2022. We remain focused in developing and maintaining stable
long-term supply prospects, making strategic choices around
qualities and reinforcing our geographical positioning to bolster CM
business.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, CM’s revenue increased
by 25% to HK$31,205,278,000 attributed to commodities price
hike. Despite higher revenue, CM'’s profit before tax decreased by
28% to HK$47,800,000 (excluding Covid-19 reliefs HK$879,000),
mainly due to higher freight rates, shipping space constraints and
spread option valuation losses on backwardation market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Services

We grew our total customer assets under management (“AUM")
under the derivatives segment by about 30% year-on-year mainly
due to increased exposure to futures contracts of Chicago
Mercantile Exchange for cryptocurrencies, and expanded into
structured over-the-counter (“OTC") products to provide our
clients customised off-exchange risk management tools. Our
suite of leverage forex products also gained significant traction
since inception in 2019, increasing by over 100% year-on-year to a
total notional transaction size of more than US$50B in 2021. Both
structured OTC and forex highly complement our derivative and
trade services, further strengthening our “one-stop shop” mantra
to a majority of our client base in the physical commodity space.

However, shrinking commission rates amid a low interest
environment, coupled with limited working capital and human
resource constraints amid the pandemic continued to dampen
our business performance. Nonetheless, we took the opportunity
to restructure and streamline the Company to be more efficient.
We also continue to invest to accelerate our digital transformation
into a more productive company and creating a far better trading
experience for our customers.

In terms of market outlook, we have seen an inflationary surge
across all commodity sectors including base metals, oil and freight
which underpin high consumer prices. As we continue to grow
our customer AUM, we stand to benefit from market expectations
of rising interest rates in 2022. Market volatility remains relatively
high as the trending focus on cryptocurrencies and related
products as a new asset class offering come into play. To capture
the next engine of growth, we are strategically working towards
building our own infrastructure and ecosystem to offer crypto-
related products and services.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, higher trade services
transacted volume contributed to a 8% increase in revenue
to HK$15,766,617,000 over the corresponding financial year.
However, financial services business turned into a loss before
tax (excluding Covid-19 reliefs HK$943,000) to HK$61,294,000 as
the improved earnings from trade services business was offset
by poor earnings from derivatives business due to the continued
low interest income resulting from reduced federal interest rate,
impairment of trade receivables, higher legal fees and provision for
ED&F's legal case.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B Ak EE o A

Engineering Services (“ES”)

ES consists of two focus areas: engineering maintenance (“EM")
and design-and-build (“DB").

The ES segment returned a revenue of HK$655,187,000 and profit
before tax of HK$35,542,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021.

EM revenue comes from essential engineering maintenance
and management works. The target market is stable, though
competitive. The business performed well in 2021 and is expected
to remain steady in 2022. EM operations involve mainly supporting
the essential services that the Singapore Government provides.
Therefore, the businesses have largely been unaffected amid the
pandemic.

DB offers design-and-build solutions to customers in the industrial
and logistics industry. Demand for new build of industrial and
logistics facilities remained weak in 2021 due to extremely high
construction prices and market uncertainties. This will continue
to put a dampener on any new plans for new logistics facilities
continuing into 2022. As such, there was increased focus and
activity by logistics customers in retrofitting and fitting out their
existing premises to enhance operations productivity. This should
benefit our consultancy services and smaller addition & alteration
(A&A) projects business.

ES revenue increased by 26% mainly due to newly secured
projects. Profit before tax (excluding Covid-19 government grant
of HK$7,488,000) increased by 5% despite a higher revenue as
the operating margins of engineering projects were squeezed with
greater competition and higher labour costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$1,517,145,000 (31 December 2020: HK$1,247,995,000).
Cash and bank balances are mostly held in Hong Kong dollar,
United States dollar, Singapore dollar, Euro and Renminbi and
deposited in leading banks with maturity dates falling within one
year. On the other hand, the Group had loans and borrowings of
HK$5,415,901,000 (31 December 2020: HK$6,100,619,000), of
which an aggregated amount of HK$4,446,626,000 (31 December
2020: HK$5,204,356,000) was repayable within one year as at
year end. On 18 February 2022 (the "Effective Date"), the original
HK$716,000,000 promissory note with maturity on 2 September
2022 was terminated and replaced by new HK$716,000,000
promissory note with maturity on the date falling three years
after the Effective Date. Included in the amount repayable within
one year are revolving trading facilities of HK$3,219,472,000 (31
December 2020: HK$3,820,926,000) which are fully secured
with certain working capital of the Group’'s commodity marketing
business. Further details are set out in Notes 27, 28, 36 and 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED

COMPANIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is subject to various litigation, regulatory and arbitration
matters in the normal course of business. The Group vigorously
defends against these claims and, in the opinion of management,
the resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on
the financial position of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had a total of 6,074 employees as at 31 December 2021
(2020: 5,916). The Group’'s remuneration policies are to ensure
that the remuneration package as a whole is fair and competitive,
and is able to motivate and retain current employees and attract
potential talents. These remuneration packages have already
carefully taken into account, amongst other aspects, the Group's
business in different jurisdictions. The employees’ remuneration
packages are comprised of salaries and discretionary bonuses,
along with retirement schemes, medical insurance and share
options which form a part of welfare benefits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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TRERBMSE

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of
all Shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG
Code which was in force during the year ended 31 December 2021
(the "ex-CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
during the financial year ended 31 December 2021, except for the
following deviations:

(1)

2)

Note:

24

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-
arranged as CG Code provision C.2.1) of the ex-CG Code,
the role of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Li Neng had been the Chief Executive
Officer and the Co-Chairman up to 31 May 2021. Mr. Zhang
Can has been appointed as the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer since 31 May 2021.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman/
Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient
on overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
considers this structure continues to enable the Company
to make and implement decisions promptly and effectively.
The Board believes that the balance of power and authority
is adequately ensured by the operation of the Board, which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with a
sufficient number of Independent Non-executive Directors.

Therefore, the Directors consider that the reasons for
deviation from code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-
arranged as CG Code provision C.2.1) of the ex-CG Code
are appropriate in such circumstance.

Pursuant to code provision of F.1.2 (which has been re-
arranged as CG Code provision C.6.2) of the ex-CG Code, a
board meeting should be held to discuss the appointment
and dismissal of the company secretary and the matter
should be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather
than a written resolution.

The Board decided to approve the appointment of Mr. Lau
Lap Ngai as the Company Secretary on 29 July 2021 by a
written resolution. It was because Mr. Lau Lap Ngai acted
as the Company Secretary/joint Company Secretary from
2014 to 2019 and remained in the company secretarial
team of the Company as a supporting role thereafter before
the re-appointment. He has over twenty years of company
secretarial experience and the Board has a great extent of
familiarity with Mr. Lau Lap Ngai already.

Mr. Zhang Can resigned as the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Wang Kan was appointed as the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer, with effect from 21 February 2022.

CWT International Limited | 20214 & #

AREBANMFHREEREAENRES - Uik
EERRRNG  ReREEERE -

BFEEERTA

ARARBE_T_—F+_A=1+—HLMK
FEADET EMHRAM ST OAENEEER
ST (MBEE—F - —F+_A=1—
HIEFEAR(TREEERTA)) - XAtz
RERRIN

(1) RECESATASTAKEXEA2.11E
(BEEHHFEBLEEATANENEC.2.1
%) ERETRERZABEERY - I
TEHEB—ATET - TEEETTR
MEEMETE BEE-_ZT-—FHA=
+—HB - RBEELECR_TE-_—FHA=
+—HEZTAEFERITIER -

BERQARE EER-ALHREEZE B
FEXFETREHAE - BRNERANSE
BABESER B YRAAKERHEE
BHEERBRZEBEERE -EFZER
7 RERBEHBEEARR RN RS RO E
BEfAR - ERNEZTSHEREE
BAFMATHK  BEEEFENAHZ
BIMIFMITES  REFEMRGE - BBE

EREE  RURREOREEDE D
ffi o
Aitt - EFRARBEATREE )8 Al5F Al

BFEXEA2NVREEFHRFR/EXERT
AMEXEC.2. 1) REZELIER T B

[=
=

2) BEACEEASTRINSTENEEFR.1.2(5
(BEHREARTEERTAIKXEC.6.2
%) ZERBEAFNEEHEEBES
eeHim VERRTESFESTEMIE

LAE ERZ R I

EEGAERN_ZE_—FtA=Z+NLBEU
EERBRIAEZEINIREERD AW
% U VAR BIZRAENR T —HFE

ﬂiﬁf&@ﬂ%i/%fﬁﬂw
i&ﬁéﬁéﬁé&ﬁ%mﬁﬁ
Mil%ﬁﬁﬁ%QEO&ﬁﬁtﬂ_+
FREAPMWEZLR  BEFeHIT
BCEBHERE -

Wat - RERLEBTERERITRES ﬁfm%iﬁ
ZAEREERTBAY BZT=Z_F=-A=

+—BRERK -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of seven Directors, being
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The list of Directors is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report. In addition, an
updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions is
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and the Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed "Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. All Directors are required to, at the time of their
appointment and annually, disclose to the Company the number
and the nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments with an indication of the time
involved.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
as set out on pages 8 to 12 of this annual report, the Board
members have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a sufficient independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) are of sufficient number and calibre for their views to
carry weight. The functions of Non-executive Directors include:

° bringing independent judgment at Board meetings;

° taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

° scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring

performance reporting.
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The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development
of the Company’s strategy and policies through independent,
constructive and informed comments. They give the Board and
the committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent Non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications
to Shareholders.

Board Diversity

The Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve
diversity on the Board composition with a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, perspectives, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The Company will also take into account factors
based on its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy is published on the website of the
Company.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy aims to set out the approach to guide the
Nomination Committee in relation to selection, appointment and
re-appointment of the Directors.

Criteria for Evaluation, Selection and Recommendation for
Candidate(s) for Directorships to the Board

(a)

(b)

character and integrity;

qualifications, including experience in the relevant
industries the Company's business is involved in and other
professional qualifications;

the Board Diversity Policy, having considered a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
perspectives, skills, knowledge and length of service;

commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest;

contribution that the candidate(s) can potentially bring to the
Board; and

any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.

(collectively, the “Criteria”)
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Criteria for Evaluation and Recommendation for
Retiring Director(s) to the Board for Re-appointment

(a) the overall contribution and service of the retiring Director(s)
to the Company, including but not limited to the attendance
of the meetings of the Board and/or its committees and
general meetings where applicable, in addition to the level
of participation and performance on the Board and/or its
committees; and

(b) whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the
Criteria.

In addition to the Criteria, the Nomination Committee will evaluate
and recommend candidate(s) for the position(s) of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors by giving due consideration to the factors
including but not limited to those set out in Rules 3.10(2) and 3.13
of the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time). Where any
candidate(s) for Independent Non-executive Director(s) or any
retiring Independent Non-executive Director(s) will be holding
his/her seventh (7th) or more listed company directorship, the
Nomination Committee will evaluate whether the individual will
be able to devote sufficient time to the Board, and make the
recommendation(s) to the Board accordingly.

Nomination Procedures and Process

(a) the Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from current Directors,
advertisements, recommendations from third-party
recruitment agencies, and proposals from Shareholders
with due consideration given to the Criteria;

(b) the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates,
such as interviews, background checks, presentations and
third party reference checks;

(c) upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

(d) the Nomination Committee will provide the relevant
information of the selected candidate to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration of remuneration package of
such selected candidate;
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(e) the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and where a Non-executive Director is
considered, the Remuneration Committee will make
the recommendation to the Board on the proposed
remuneration package;

(f) the Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not
members of the Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

(9) all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director
to acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as
the case may be) to be filed with the Companies Registry
of Hong Kong and updating the Register of Directors of the
Company.

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the Executive Committee and
senior management within the control and authority framework
set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Investment
Committee. Further details of these committees are set out in this
corporate governance report.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly and holds at least four Board meetings
a year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic
means of communication in accordance with the Articles.
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The Company Secretaries assist the Chairman/the Co-Chairmen in
drawing up the agenda of each Board meeting. The draft agenda
of each regular Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for
review before the agenda is issued and all Directors may request
for inclusion of other matters in the agenda. The Chairman/Co-
Chairmen will take into account the matters proposed by the
Directors and where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such
matters in the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14-
day notice of a regular Board meeting is given and the Company
aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings. The
Company also aims at sending the agenda and the accompanying
board papers, which are prepared in a form and quality sufficient
to enable the Board to make informed decisions on matters placed
before it, to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date
of a Board meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt
and full responses will be given if possible.

There have been procedures in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them to perform their duties to the
Company.

The Company Secretaries are responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final
versions of which would be sent to Directors for comments and
records respectively, within a reasonable time after each meeting.
Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors
or dissenting views (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings
and Board committee meetings are kept by the Company
Secretaries and are open for inspection by any Director/committee
member.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board (including a
material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting, rather than a written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates,
have no material interest in the transaction should be present at
that Board meeting.
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Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote on
any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any
other proposal in which he or any of his associates has a material
interest nor shall he be counted in the quorum present at the
meeting.

Attendance Records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group and five
physical Board meetings were held to consider, among other
things, various projects contemplated by the Group, and to review
and approve the interim results and annual results of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ attendance in 2021 are as follows:

TEREBHRE

SREMRRAEERERE - RAIRROIAFFZE
SUTASN - FEFHEEABHEARTMAEL
ZHIEAEMBEZTEEERN D BRAES
THRABBZAHN  KHIEBIEFTERER
ETRR > TTIERFARRERHEZEEA
2o

H FEE 50 8%

RBE-ZE_—F+_A=+—HLHBFE
EERG2EAKENEY  YERTARES
BeH  UEREETERAKERETZRE
HE  AREMAMLEREE 2R REEREF

EEN T —F2HFELEHBOT

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HEERAE
EEREEERRE
Executive Directors HITEH
Wu Hao (resigned on 31 May 2021) RERZE=Z—FHA=1—HFT) 2/3
Li Neng (resigned on 31 May 2021) PR =—ZFE=Z—FAA=T—HFHT) 2/3
Zhang Can o & 3/5
Zhao Quan A 4/5
Chen Chao (resigned on 29 July 2021) BBR-ZE=Z—F+tAZFNHET) 0/3
Peng Biao (appointed on 31 May 2021) CRHR—ZEZ—FAA=+T—HEZF) 2/2
Wu Jinfeng (appointed on 31 May 2021) REER-_F-Z—FhHA=1+—HEZF) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHITEF
Leung Shun Sang, Tony RIEE 5/5
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T 5/5
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey N ES 2 5/5
Chen Lihua (resigned on 29 July 2021) REBE R -_F-—F+HZTNHAFFE) 213
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Access to Information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information
by the management to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval. The management provides all Board members with
monthly updates which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. Where any Director
requires more information than is volunteered by the management,
each Director has the right to separately and independently access
to the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries if
necessary.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and review
the profiles of the candidates and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and nomination of
Directors.

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy, only until
the next following general meeting of the Company or, in the
case of an addition to their number, until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company who shall then be eligible for
re-election at such annual general meeting. Every Director is
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All Directors (including all Non-executive Directors) have entered

into service agreements or letters of engagement with the
Company for a term of not more than three years.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

As required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company represents
at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Any re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director who
has served the Board for more than nine years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by Shareholders.

Insurance for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practice. Directors are also encouraged to participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company Secretaries facilitate
induction and professional development of Directors.
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All Directors have provided to the Company their records of FIBZEHEEAARFRERER T —_—F—7
training received during the period from 1 January 2021 orthe —HHEZTAZEEAHREHTESTHHL_-F
date of appointment as a Director to the date of resignationasa —— &+ -A=+—HIHHRWWER)ZEX I
Director or 31 December 2021, where applicable, a summary of  Z&C8% @ BT ¢

which is as follows:

Continuous
professional development
Type=/ Subjector
Directors 2= g & e
Wu Hao (resigned on 31 May 2021) RER —FE-—FA A =+—HEHT) B 1
Li Neng (resigned on 31 May 2021) TR -_EFE-_—FFA=1+—HEHT) B 1
Zhang Can R % A 1
Zhao Quan HHE B 1
Chen Chao (resigned on 29 July 2021) BBR=—FE=—F+tA=+HEL) B 1
Peng Biao (appointed on 31 May 2021) ERR—E-——FRA=+—HEEZF) A 1
B 1
Wu Jinfeng (appointed on 31 May 2021) ReB(R-_ZFE=-—FAA=+—HEZ(T) A 1
B 1
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2 g4 A 1
B 1
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T A 1
B 1
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey MR A 12,3
B 1,2
Chen Lihua (resigned on 29 July 2021) BMEER -FE-—F+ A=+ HEFT) A 1
B 1
Note I: Kt -
A: Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or  A: HEMTE &% w8 ABEN AL
in-house training 3
B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates B: MERE T REHRER
& Giving talks at seminars, conferences or forums C: RARE  SRdmEEREH
D: Others D: Hith
Note II: Mzl -
iE Laws, rules and regulations 1: JEB - 3R RIER
2: Finance, accounting or taxation 2: W SEERBE
3: Management 3: s
4: Businesses relating to the Company 4 BARNTBARER
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CHAIRMAN/CO-CHAIRMEN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Except for the deviation stated on page 24 of this annual report,
the roles of Chairman/Co-Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and exercised by different individuals to reinforce their
independence and accountability.

The Articles and the CG Code have stipulated the duties and
responsibilities of the chairman of the Board. The Board believes
that the Chairman/Co-Chairmen can perform their roles without
conflict, and the Company’s previous disclosures regarding the
roles of the Chairman/Co-Chairmen continue to apply.

Due to work arrangement, Mr. Zhang Can, being the Chairman,
held one meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors in January 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company's affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities. All committees have their
own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the committees
will be reported to the Board at the next Board meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in December 1998
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

° overseeing the relationship with the Company's auditor;
° reviewing the interim and annual financial statements;
° reviewing the Company's financial reporting system and

internal control procedures; and

° reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters.
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The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any
activity within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain
external legal or other independent professional advice, at the
Company's expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary. It is given access to and assistance from the employees
and reasonable resources to perform its duties properly.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Non-
executive Director and the Audit Committee comprises the
Independent Non-executive Directors. None of the members of
the Audit Committee are former partners of the auditor of the
Company. The members of the Audit Committee during 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (chairman)
Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

During the year, two physical meetings of the Audit Committee
were held and the attendance of the members of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

ERZECEANERN  IRERERERE

EEE  TAREERRETERERIMOE
RAEMBYERER UETTERE - EAMH

ARAXS - BERZEE A EREREHESER
%8 BISAREZERAZLERITER

ERLEECIRB—RBUIENTESELS &
ZZESHEBE L IFERTESHENK - EFEZ
ZEERERARRZERM ZAEERA - R
T —FRBEAFRAE  BExZEEHEK
wmr

MFEEE(FE)

2B A A

U NEsE S

FR - BELLZECERITMAEHR  EXEZES
BB HFEREEMT

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HESBERE,

EEBEESERY

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (chairman) MFEE(EE) 2/2
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 284 2/2
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey YN 2/2

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
included, amongst other things, the following:

° reviewing the final results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020; and

o reviewing the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2021.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit

Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

36 CWT International Limited | 2021 & F &

EREEENENET LI E TR+ 0
M

. EHAEERE T _TF+ _A=1+—

BIEFEZEFEE R
. EHNAKEEBE_T-_—FXA=1THL
NEAZ FHIRAE -

EEenNFAMEIRAEERZE: T%ﬁ
T BEKERIEZBMEENER

&



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in April 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved
for the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group
and has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the
corporate governance duties as follows:

° to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group's
employees and Directors;

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

° to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises the Executive Directors
(as appointed from time to time). The members of the Executive
Committee during 2021 and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Mr. Li Neng (chairman)
(resigned on 31 May 2021)

Mr. Zhang Can (member at the beginning of the year and
appointed as chairman on 31 May 2021)

Mr. Wu Hao (resigned on 31 May 2021)

Mr. Peng Biao (appointed on 31 May 2021)

Mr. Wu Jinfeng (appointed on 31 May 2021)

Note: Mr. Zhang Can ceased as chairman and Mr. Wang Kan was

appointed as chairman with effect from 21 February 2022.

EERERARE
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During the year, no physical meeting of the Executive Committee
was held. All the work performed by the Executive Committee
during the year was passed by resolutions in writing.

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of the
Group performed by the Executive Committee during the year
included but was not limited to the review of the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established in July 2009 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. During the year, no physical meeting was
held and no resolutions in writing was passed by the Investment
Committee. The members of the Investment Committee during
2021 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Mr. Wu Hao (chairman)
(resigned on 31 May 2021)

Mr. Li Neng (resigned on 31 May 2021)

Mr. Zhang Can (member at the beginning of the year and
appointed as chairman on 31 May 2021)

Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin

Mr. Peng Biao (appointed on 31 May 2021)

Mr. Wu Jinfeng (appointed on 31 May 2021)

Note: Mr. Zhang Can ceased as chairman and Mr. Wang Kan was

appointed as chairman with effect from 21 February 2022.

Pursuant to the terms of reference, the Investment Committee
comprises the Executive Directors (as appointed from time to
time) and two Non-executive Directors (amongst the two Non-
executive Directors, at least one must be an Independent Non-
executive Director).
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in April 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board;

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors;

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

° reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress
on achieving the objectives.

Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed
and put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will
then be tendered to the Board for approval. In considering the
nomination of a new Director, the Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates. In determining the
independence of Directors, the Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules.
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The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is one of the
Chairman/the Co-Chairmen and the Independent Non-executive
Directors constitute the majority of the Nomination Committee.
The members of the Nomination Committee during 2021 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Mr. Li Neng (chairman)
(resigned on 31 May 2021)
Mr. Zhang Can
(appointed as chairman on 31 May 2021)
Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin
Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

Note: Mr. Zhang Can ceased as chairman and Mr. Wang Kan was

appointed as chairman with effect from 21 February 2022.

During the year, no physical meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held. All the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year was passed by resolutions in writing.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the year included, amongst other things, the following:

° assessing the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

° considering and making recommendations to the Board on
the re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting;

° considering and making recommendation to the Board for
the appointment of Mr. Zhang Can as the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chairman; and

° considering and making recommendation to the Board for
the appointment of Mr. Peng Biao and Mr. Wu Jinfeng as
Executive Directors.

Note: The Nomination Committee performed the following work in

February 2022:

o reviewing the structure and composition of the Board with
due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in April 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:
° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s

policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management of the Group;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and
objectives;

° determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration

packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management and compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman/the
Co-Chairmen and/or the Chief Executive Officer about their
remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors. It has
explicit authority to seek any necessary information from the
employees within its scope of duties and the authority to obtain
external independent professional advice, at the Company's
expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the
Directors are aligned with the market and reward for performance.
The Company reviews the remuneration package annually, taking
into consideration of the market practice, competitive market
position and individual performance.
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The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-executive
Directors constitute the majority of the Remuneration Committee.
The members of the Remuneration Committee during 2021 and up
to the date of this annual report are:

Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (chairman)

Mr. Chen Chao (resigned on 29 July 2021)
Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Can (appointed on 29 July 2021)

Note: Mr. Zhang Can ceased as member and Mr. Wang Kan was

appointed as member with effect from 21 February 2022.

During the year, no physical meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. All the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year was passed by resolutions in writing.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during
the year included, amongst other things, the following:

° considering and approving the terms of the engagement
letter and the remuneration of each of Mr. Peng Biao and
Mr. Wu Jinfeng.

Note: The Remuneration Committee performed the following work in

February 2022:

° considering, reviewing and determining the remuneration
of the Executive Directors for the year of 2022; and

o making recommendations to the Board on the directors’
fee of the Independent Non-executive Directors for the
year of 2022.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and senior management
for the year are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company Secretaries support the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that board policies and
procedures are followed. The Company Secretaries are also
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman/Co-
Chairmen and/or the Chief Executive Officer on corporate
governance and the implementation of the CG Code. The Company
Secretaries are employees of the Company and have day-to-day
knowledge of the Group's affairs.
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The Company Secretaries report to the Chairman/Co-Chairmen
and the Chief Executive Officer. All Directors also have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretaries to ensure that
board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations,
are followed. The selection, appointment and dismissal of the
Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The current Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year of 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In compliance with the requirement set out in code provision E.1.5
of the CG Code, the Board adopted the Dividend Policy. According
to the Dividend Policy, in proposing any dividend payout, the Board
shall also take into account the following criteria, including:

° the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
° general business conditions and strategies;
° distributable profit of the Company and each of the other

members of the Group;

° the Group's expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

° the Group's indebtedness level, debt to equity ratios,
liquidity position and future commitments at the time of

declaration of dividend;

° any contractual restrictions on payment of dividend (may be
imposed by the Group's lenders or other third parties);

° taxation considerations and legal and regulatory restrictions;
° general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and

o other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is of the opinion that sound internal control and risk
management systems will contribute to the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations of the Group and to the safeguard of the
Group’s assets as well as the Shareholders’ investment.

The Board is responsible for ensuring, maintaining and overseeing
the overall internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. The Executive Committee assists the Board in discharging
its responsibilities of ensuring and maintaining sound internal
control and risk management functions by continuously reviewing
and monitoring the internal control and risk management systems
and processes so as to ensure that they can provide reasonable
assurance against material errors and potential risk of the Group.

The internal control and risk management systems are embedded
within the business processes and function as an integral part
of the overall operations of the Group. The systems comprise a
comprehensive organisation structure with assignment of definite
accountabilities and delegation of the corresponding authorities to
each post. Based on the organisation structure, an accountability
system has been developed, which includes a reporting system
from division head of each principal business unit to the Executive
Committee.

Business plans and budgets are prepared by the division head of
each principal business unit annually. In preparing the business
plans and budgets, the management identifies and evaluates
any potential risks. Measures will be put in place with an aim to
ultimately managing, controlling or lessening such risks.

The business plans and budgets are subject to review and
approval by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee
reviews monthly management report on the operational and
financial results of each principal business unit and measures the
actual performance of the Group against the business plans and
budgets concerned. In this course, the Executive Committee also
reviews and assesses the effectiveness of all material controls
and the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budgets of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function. The Executive Committee holds
periodical meetings with the senior management of each principal
business unit to, amongst other matters, address the issues
in such controls, identify areas of improvement and put the
appropriate measures in place.
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The internal control and risk management systems of the Group
are documented and if any revision is required, such information
will be submitted to the Audit Committee for evaluation.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is required
to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably practicable
in accordance with the SFO and the Listing Rules. The regulation
has included in the Company's internal control policy with a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information. This ensures, through its own internal reporting
processes and the consideration of the outcome by senior
management, the appropriate handling and dissemination of inside
information.

The Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role
over the Group's internal control and risk management functions
by reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of the overall
internal control and risk management systems.

After reviewing the practice of the business operation of the
Group, the internal audit functions are performed in two folds,
whereby (i) the Company level has a specific focus on monitoring
and improving the internal control of the Group as a whole, and (ii)
the CWT SG Group level is responsible for the internal control and
risk management of the specific business of CWT SG Group.

The internal audit function of the Company level is independent
of the operational departments at the Company level, and assists
the Board and the Audit Committee in consistently monitoring the
internal control and risks of which the Group encounters during
operation and ensuring that all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk management,
are in place and functioning effectively.

The internal audit function of CWT SG Group level is performed
by an audit controller of CWT SG Group, who is an independent
qualified person, reports to the chief financial officer of CWT SG
Group, the Audit Committee and the Board with findings and
makes recommendations to improve the internal control and risk
management systems of CWT SG Group.
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Internal Audit Functions

During the year under review, the Board has been, through the
Executive Committee and the Audit Committee, continuously
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal control systems
by way of internal audit reports submitted by the internal audit
functions semi-annually, and considers the systems effective and
adequate. The Board also considers that adequate resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company's accounting and financial reporting function have
been provided.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct
of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and the Company's code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation
to the Company or its Shares are prohibited from dealing in Shares
during the relevant period.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor are set out as follows:

M AR EF =T HBE

REEFER  EFE HEBATREERE
ZEEeEMNAEBABFFREINAIE
AHRERERT A RE RIS RRHMRR - X
REREZARBUNTR - EFTQNA/RCEM
FRER BIBEENESR HIRERALQT
St RS ERBEEATAE -

EITRZRZNEESTA

ARFIERBEFEITESR S MERMBFEESTRIE
REREZ1TRFRI -

ERFEESELBTENE  FEEEREE
ST F+- A+ BUBEFENDET
TEFARAARNEHESLTEEXB TR
FRIFR T MIDE -

EAATREE BN ARBREROOARTHEE 2
B8 BHIERERBREERD -

BB £

ERB XN,/ T AR 7B 0 B S B
o -

HK$'000
Services rendered Fri= 1 PR 75 BT T
KPMG EEHETEKAT
- Audit services - &t iR 13,966
- Non-audit services - IEFE RS 1,829
Other External Auditors HShEAZ EED
- Audit services - BE RS 2,018
- Non-audit services - IEFEFTARTS -
Total st 17,813
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and
in presenting the annual and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The Directors aim to
present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
Group's position and prospects.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a shareholders’
communication policy reflecting the current practices of the
Company for communication with its Shareholders. Such
policy aims at ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, in order to enable the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow the Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

To foster effective communications with the Shareholders,
the Company provides extensive information in its annual
and interim reports and announcements. All Shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
www.cwtinternational.com.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for the Shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
All Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditor will
also attend the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries.

During the year, one general meeting was held, which was the
annual general meeting held on 25 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM").
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The auditor of the Company, KPMG, attended the 2021 AGM. AR FKHHIEEHE ufﬁﬂi$ﬂ‘%}5ﬁtﬁf7_7 =
Details of the Directors’ attendance at the general meeting of the —FREBEFAE - EFRNFRNBITZ AR

Company held during the year are as follows: BASHHELHFBOT :
Attendance
at the
2021 AGM
HE
—E-—F
Directors B= BRREAFAE
Executive Directors %ﬂf TEF
Wu Hao (resigned on 31 May 2021) R —FE-—FA A =1+—HEHT) -
Li Neng (resigned on 31 May 2021) éﬁb(]f/\f T —F A H=+—HEHE) -
Zhang Can SRR v
Zhao Quan i v
Chen Chao (resigned on 29 July 2021) P AR (ﬁA_ T —F+ H =+ HEHE) X
Peng Biao (appointed on 31 May 2021) TR = ’#r‘ﬁﬁ =+ —HEZE) 4
Wu Jinfeng (appointed on 31 May 2021) REBER=ZFZ—FAH=+—HEZF) v
Independent Non-executive Directors B ITESE
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2 g4 4
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T v
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey PN e X
Chen Lihua (resigned on 29 July 2021) BREZER T -—FEA=-+NHEHE) v/

During the year, the Company has sent notices of general RER  AARIRABLRITHRRE RS E LB
meetings to its Shareholders for all the general meetings held. %1 MEREFEFAE ERASRITHEL R
In the case of an annual general meeting, the Company has sent —+{EZ % B NAAFEEF B o KD FIFAAR
the notices to its Shareholders at least 20 clear business days A& FBBEEERBYNEEREERNRZSE
before the meeting. Separate resolutions were proposed at BFEEARIESEZELE MR AS HIRE2WTA
general meetings on each substantially separate issue, including REBERHFIUEEFAKRR - REERE L Kg
the election of individual Directors, and all resolutions put to EREMFBUIEEFRNETRRNERF  WEE
vote at a general meeting were taken by way of a poll. At the BREABUIEEHAKRANIED (W0EH) - LEL
general meetings, the chairman of the meetings explained the ZRHBITIEREBLSRELEMABR AR LAR
procedures for conducting a poll and answered questions from the — B4u4 |- -

Shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the poll were

published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing

Limited and the Company respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convene a General Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings can
request the Directors to call a general meeting pursuant to section
566 of the Companies Ordinance. The request must state the
general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and
may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such request must
be authenticated by the Shareholder(s) making it and sent to the
Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

Put Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders or at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant
right to vote at a general meeting can request the Company to
circulate to the Shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution
or other business to be dealt with at that meeting pursuant to
Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance. The expenses shall be
borne by the Shareholder(s) making the request unless the meeting
concerned is an annual general meeting and the statement is
received by the Company in time for sending with the notice of the
meeting. The request must identify the statement to be circulated,
and must be authenticated by the Shareholder(s) making it and
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for
the attention of the Company Secretary at least 7 days before the
meeting to which it relates.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders or at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at an annual general meeting can request
the Company to give to the Shareholders notice of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance.
The request must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given, and must be authenticated by the Shareholder(s) making it
and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form
for the attention of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate, or
if later, the time at which notice of the meeting is given.
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Shareholders’ Enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by the Shareholders can be sent
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
office or by email to our Company. In addition, Shareholders
can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set out on
page 7 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a Hong Kong-based investment holding company
principally engaged in integrated logistics services and related
engineering services. The Company is also engaged in the
affiliated business of commodity marketing and financial services.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the financial status of the Group as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 74 to 243 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of
the performance for the year ended 31 December 2021 and an
indication of likely future development in the business of the
Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found
throughout this annual report, in particular Notes 2, 3 and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Group since the end of the year of 2021 can be found
in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. An analysis using financial key performance indicators
is provided in the Financial Highlights and the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.
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The Group is committed to promote environmental policies, during
the year:

52

Commodity Marketing

Commodity marketing business and its employees operate
in accordance with the Code of Ethics and Business
Conduct Policy and Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy. The policy documents state that the company
strives to minimize detrimental environmental issues
and is committed to meeting all environmental laws and
legislation in the countries and regions in which it operates.
There have been no reported environmental issues that the
operating company is aware of during the year of 2021.

Logistics Services

We take responsibility in the way we operate to minimise
environmental impact while providing a safe and conducive
work environment. We are guided by our EHS management
policies and actively promote Reduce, Reuse and Recycle
work practices. To reduce emissions, our warehouse
buildings are installed with energy-efficient features, our
new prime movers are more fuel-efficient, and we use
electric-powered forklifts and top lifters in our operations.
There were no deviations from our environmental and
safety policies and practices in 2021.

Financial Services

Due to the nature of its business, financial services
business does not have any environmental policies in place.

Engineering Services

Engineering services division adopts and implements
applicable local and international best practices to develop
the business and deliver customer success. We are I1SO
14001:2004 standards-certified to meet stringent quality
management requirements. In addition, we have obtained
local certifications such as Singapore Green Building
Services and Singapore Green and Gracious Builder issued
by the Building and Construction Authority in Singapore.
This is testimony to our commitment to a sustainable built
environment for future generations to come.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group complied
with all relevant applicable laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group:

Commodity Marketing

Commodity marketing business and its employees operate
in accordance with the Code of Ethics and Business
Conduct Policy, Corporate Social Responsibility Policy,
and Global Anti-Corruption Policy. The policy documents
state the company’s commitment to obeying the laws
of Switzerland, Singapore and other countries in which
commodity marketing conducts business, and for its actions
to be guided by the virtues of good citizenship. There
have been no reported breaches of law that the operating
company is aware of during the year of 2021.

Logistics Services

We comply with applicable laws and regulations in countries
where we operate. In Singapore, where our core operations
are based, legislations related to our business nature mainly
include workplace safety and health, environment, road
traffic and fire safety. To the best of our knowledge, there
is no serious breach that will materially affect business
operations.

Financial Services

Financial services business provides financial services and
trading access to the global derivatives markets in general.
Our regulated entities Straits Financial Services Pte.
Ltd. and Straits Financial LLC come under the regulatory
ambit of the Monetary Authority of Singapore and the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission in the United
States respectively. These entities are subject to regulatory
reporting obligations throughout the year. For the year
under review, business operations have been compliant,
and there are no significant regulatory breaches that have
hindered or threaten to hinder the continuity of the business
and existing licences.
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4. Engineering Services

We obey and comply with the human laws and legislations
in Singapore, as well as applicable business compliance
and regulations relating to our industry. As far we are
concerned, there have been no reported breaches of law
that the operating company is aware of during the year
2021.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 244
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 80 to 83 of this annual
report and in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable
purpose amounted to approximately HK$126,299 (2020:
HK$197,914).
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Wu Hao (resigned on 31 May 2021)

Li Neng (resigned on 31 May 2021)

Zhang Can (resigned on 21 February 2022)
Wang Kan (appointed on 21 February 2022)
Zhao Quan

Chen Chao (resigned on 29 July 2021)
Peng Biao (appointed on 31 May 2021)
Wou Jinfeng (appointed on 31 May 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin

Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

Chen Lihua (resigned on 29 July 2021)

In accordance with Articles 95 and 104(A) of the Company’s
Articles, Mr. Wang Kan, Mr. Zhao Quan and Mr. Leung Shun Sang,
Tony will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

A list of names of the directors who held office in the
Company's subsidiaries during the year and up to the date
of this annual report is available on the Company’s website
(www.cwtinternational.com).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service agreement with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The Directors who held office as at 31 December 2021 had the
following interests in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code:

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company

Capacity in which

Name of Director interests were held

EERRSTRAERKRSD
HEROREEZE ZEZRAR

~

RZZF-—F+-A=t+—8H EEFE=N%H
EARRBZ O RABRD EE AL ARIEES
KB IGPIFEIG2RB TREFZERM - IRIE
RESTRIEBAANR B MR P2 AT

RAERBRGD ZHFR
Total interests
as to % of the
issued share
Numbers of capital of the
Shares in Company as at

the Company 31 December 2021

BMEREARDT
R=B=—F
RAEQATZ +=B=+—8
EEHE BEEZZH5H BROBE CRITREAZEDL
Leung Shun Sang, Tony Beneficial owner 20,000,000 0.18%
ZlEAE BEalEA A
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the B EFXFEEEIN  RZE-_—F+-_A=+—

Directors, chief executives or their respective associates had
any other personal, family, corporate and other interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this annual report, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE BETWEEN
THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES
AND A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OR
ANY OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES

During the financial year, there was no contract of significance
between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, no Director has been recorded as having interests
in the businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.
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EEXEHREE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER

THE SFO

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Company
and according to the information as shown only in the register
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the following
companies and persons had interests in the Shares and/or
underlying Shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company under

BREFSRBERGAETREZRR

EERRA

z

R-B-—F+-A=+—8 AR AFFF
AN RBEARFEIEE S KB EHE 33615
GzBRMARZER  THRRRATRES
k/SAABARGEEER  MAREKESNHEE
1B EEXVEBE 2 R 3D B M A A R EE -
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Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares/Underlying Shares

RRG,HERDZEFR

Interests as to %

Number of of the issued
Shares/ share capital of
Capacity in which underlying the Company as at
Name of Shareholder interests were held Shares 31 December 2021 Note
3NN
R-B--F
R4, e tT=B=+-H
BRRER FERERZED BROHE EBTREAZEIHL liogzg
Hong Kong HNA Beneficial owner 4,734,008,489 41.53% 1
ENOIEL EnEAA
Shanghai Daxinhua Investment Beneficial owner 1,109,244,000 9.73% 1
Management Co., Ltd.*
(“Shanghai Daxinhua”)
FERFEREEEAR QA ([ LEAHNE]) EnEAA
HNA Logistics Group Co., Ltd.* Interests of controlled 4,734,008,489 41.53% 1
(“HNA Logistics”) corporations
BRYREEERRR(EHRWRD XREE R
HNA Holding Group Co., Ltd.* Interests of controlled 4,734,008,489 41.53% 1
(“"HNA Holding Group”) corporations
BMEBEEEEERAT(EMEXEE)) XA R
BMRERE(LSERAT(EMEE]) Interests of controlled 1,109,244,000 9.73% 1
corporations
XEEE R
HNA Group Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
corporations
BHEE XREE S
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd.*  Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
(“Hainan Traffic Administration”) corporations
BEXEERERAR(NEERE] RPEE R
Sheng Tang Development (Yangpu) Co. Ltd.* Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1

(“Sheng Tang (Yangpu)”)
BERRCPBBRAR(EECER))

corporations

XL
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Interests as to %

Number of of the issued
Shares/ share capital of
Capacity in which underlying the Company as at
Name of Shareholder interests were held Shares 31 December 2021 Note
EREERAT
R=-B=-—-F%
12, HE +=B=+—-AH
BRREB BEREEZEN BROAHE CERTREAZEIHL Hrat
Tang Dynasty Development Company Limited Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
(“Tang Dynasty Development”) corporations
BRERRERAR(BRERR] REEE s
Hainan Province Cihang Foundation* Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
corporations
BHEEMLAEESE SEEB R
Cihang Sino-Western Cultural and Interests of controlled 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
Educational Exchange Foundation Limited corporations
(“Cihang Sino-Western")
EMRAAXHIRESEERAA AR
(3% Ty
Notes: Bt
1. As at 31 December 2021, HNA Group is a company established in 1. R-ZE-_—F+_A=+—8 SMmEEAE—
the PRC with limited liability which directly owns more than 95% of REFBEKIZBERAR -  EEHEAEMEE
HNA Holding Group. HNA Holding Group and HNA Group directly EEBBBRRE - BMEXEBEREMER
own approximately 51.38% and approximately 21.61% respectively DRIEEER £51.38% KM 421.61% BRI R
of HNA Logistics. HNA Logistics directly owns 100% of HNA R4 - BMYREEEESMEXBBRERA
Holding International Co., Limited, which in turn directly owns A100% P - MEMEXBRBRERAFE
100% of Hong Kong HNA. On the other hand, HNA Group directly BEBEEEBEMI00%RIE - Z—FH@E  BH
owns 100% of /& :E. HNA Group also holds more than 99% SEEERBEMBEEI0NRE - AMEE
of Shanghai Daxinhua, including approximately 45.65% of direct MEE LB KHERBBII%RIE  BIEHER
holding and approximately 43.48% of indirect holding through J&#i BHA5.65%RERBREMBEBMEFEY
HiE. 43.48% %1 ©
HNA Group is held as to 70% by Hainan Traffic Administration, BMEBEHEEIEFBEIONKRE - M/EHE
which is in turn held as to 50% by Sheng Tang (Yangpu). Sheng Q%ﬁlJEEW%(}\i?ﬁ)T—rﬁSO%Hx% o BE(F
Tang (Yangpu) is held as to 65% and 35% respectively by Hainan O RBHEMAEMAREC S REEER
Province Cihang Foundation and Tang Dynasty Development, and B 65% M35% A% - ﬁﬁﬁ%%%@ﬂ‘] M Pan-
Tang Dynasty Development is in turn 98% held by Pan-American American Aviation Holding Company (H FZffi
Aviation Holding Company, which is wholly held by Cihang Sino- RAFEEER)IFHEI8%MRAE
Western.
2. In January 2021, HNA Group entered into a bankruptcy 2. RZZEZ—F—F - BMKEEKE tm/jﬁ—lzfﬂzz/\

reorganisation as required by the local court and is expected to be
controlled by new controlling shareholders. As at the date of this
report, the directors have not received any notices on change in
ultimate controlling party.

In October 2021, creditors of HNA Group have voted to approve
the group’s restructuring plan, which the Hainan Court had
subsequently approved. A trust structure will be set up to
administer and manage the HNA Group companies for the benefits
of its stakeholders. As at the date of this report, the restructuring
of HNA Group is still on-going.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there is a
sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as required
under the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 May 2012, the Shareholders approved the 2012 Scheme
which became effective on 29 May 2012 upon the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange granting its approval to the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the Shares which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options to be granted under the
2012 Scheme.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2012 Scheme is set out
below:

The 2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to replace the 2002 Scheme
(which has been expired on 29 May 2012) and to continue to
enable the Company to grant share options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective for the period of ten years commencing on 25 May
2012, being the date on which the 2012 Scheme was conditionally
adopted by the Shareholders and ending on 25 May 2022 (both
dates inclusive).

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer
full-time or part-time employees, executives, officers or directors
(including executive and non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or any of the Invested Entities, and
any advisers, consultants, agents, suppliers, customers and
distributors, who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute
or have contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
and/or any of the Invested Entities, share options to subscribe for
Shares.
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No share option was granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption. The maximum number of Shares available for issue
upon exercise of all share options which may be granted under
the 2012 Scheme is 224,214,117, representing approximately
1.97% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.
The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of share options to be granted under the 2012
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a
circular by the Company and Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
Shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director, or to any
of their associates, which would result in the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the offer of such grant (a) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of the grant; and (b)
having an aggregate value of in excess of HK$5,000,000 (based
on the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of each grant), such
further grant of options shall be subject to the issue of a circular
by the Company and Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting
by a poll at which all connected persons of the Company shall
abstain from voting in favour of the resolution concerning the
grant of such options, and/or such other requirements prescribed
under the Listing Rules from time to time. A connected person
of the Company will be permitted to vote against the grant only
if his intention to do so has been stated in the circular. Any grant
of share options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder, or to any of their associates, is required to be
approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding
any Independent Non-executive Director who is a grantee of the
options).

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted under the 2012 Scheme. There is no requirement
that a share option must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at its
discretion any such minimum period at the time of offer of any
share options.
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The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of share options; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of
share options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date
of offer of share options. Each of the grantees is required to pay
HK$1 as a consideration for his acceptance of the grant of share
options in accordance with the 2012 Scheme. The offer of share
options must be accepted within 30 days from the date of the
offer.

Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do not confer
rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at general meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since
its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2021, there was no
share option outstanding under the 2012 Scheme.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities (whether
on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year ended 31
December 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance.

The Company's capital reserve represents a non-distributable
reserve.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, MAJOR
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales from
continuing operations for the year. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total
purchases relating to continuing operations for the year. None of
the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.

Commodity Marketing

Commodity marketing business operates its business with
integrity, fairness and openness, guided by its Code of Ethics
and Business Conduct. We treat all employees, customers and
suppliers equitably, honestly, and with good management in order
to ensure a harmonious and safe working environment. There
were neither significant infringements nor deviation from our usual
practices that the company is aware of during the course of 2021.

Logistics Services

We are committed to a conducive working environment and treat
all our stakeholders with fairness and integrity. We engage with
employees, customers and suppliers to review processes and
improve performance while forging strong relationships. Our active
interactions with stakeholders keep us on top of things and help
shape our business plans and strategies. No anomalies with regard
to our stakeholder management and business conduct were
brought to our attention during the year under review.

Financial Services

We are committed to the ethical treatment of all our stakeholders.
For our employees, we are committed to honesty, just
management and fairness, providing a safe environment, and
respecting the dignity due to everyone. The company strictly
observes all safe management requirements, to ensure the safety
of our employees and business continuity. For our customers,
we value them as our business partners and are committed to
provide them with value for money services. For our suppliers,
we value them as our business partners and are committed to
fair competition and the sense of responsibility required of a good
customer and partner.
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Engineering Services

We value and build good relationships with our employees,
customers, suppliers and subcontractors. We also work with the
local union and the government to support tripartite partnership
among the employer, employees and the authorities. We
uphold integrity, are fair and transparent in our dealings with our
stakeholders and expect the same from them. In addition, we are
in the process of obtaining ISO 37001: Anti-Bribery Management
Systems certification as we continue to maintain and improve our
business ethics and conduct.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

On 3 September 2020, a principal amount of HK$716,000,000 was
advanced by HNA Group (International) to the Company for a term
of two years under the Promissory Note, pursuant to which, it is,
among other things, an event of default if HNA Group does not
or ceases to directly and/or indirectly own at least 30% of all the
equity interests in the Company. The lender may at any time after
the happening of an event of default under the Promissory Note,
upon written notice to the Company, declare such outstanding
principal sum and all other sums due thereunder have become
due and payable, whereupon the same shall immediately or
in accordance with the term of the notice, become due and
payable, and/or exercise any or all of its rights, remedies, powers
or discretions under the Promissory Note. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 September 2020 for
further details.

On and with effect from 7 April 2021, HNA Group (International)
assigned to HNA Tourism all of its rights and obligations in the
Promissory Note and its right to collect and be paid all principal,
interest and other sums due under or in respect of the Promissory
Note pursuant to a deed of assignment dated 7 April 2021 entered
into between HNA Group (International) and HNA Tourism. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2021 for
further details.

Note: On 18 February 2022, the Company entered into a new promissory
note with HNA Tourism for renewal of the term of the advance
for a further three years. The principal sum remains the same as
HK$716,000,000 and all other terms also remains unchanged, with

the exception of deletion of the aforesaid event of default.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 11 March 2021, BfiEZ &R (XYI)BR Q7] (Haihang Shiye
Fazhan (Shenzhen) Company Limited*) (“Haihang Shiye"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
management agreement (the “2021 Management Agreement”)
for the partnership under B —SRIEEABEEBRER)
(Hainan Haitou Number 1 Investment Limited Partnership*) (the
“Partnership”).

On 28 March 2022, the parties to the 2021 Management
Agreement entered into a supplemental agreement (the “2022
Supplemental Agreement”) to revise the term of payment
of the management fee of the Partnership. As under the 2021
Management Agreement and the 2022 Supplemental Agreement,
no financial obligations was imposed on Haihang Shiye and the
partnership is not consolidated into the account of the Group, the
transaction contemplated under the 2021 Management Agreement
and the 2022 Supplemental Agreement do not constitute
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
For further details, please refer to the announcements dated 11
March 2021 and 28 March 2022.

Saved as disclosed above, no related party transaction in Note
38(a), (b) and (c) of the consolidated financial statements which
took place during the year constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 24 to 50 of this annual
report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEXEHREE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date are
set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting, at
which a resolution for re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company will be proposed.

By order of the Board
Wang Kan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

¥ For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
CWT International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CWT
International Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 74 to 243, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

2021 Annual Report | CWT International Limited

B 2 BATHRE

ZCWT International Limited 5!l 5% &
2B B R &
(REB MK 2 BIRINE])

=R

RIZBANE FBar &R ET4E243EHCWT
International Limited X B AR A T#HHEI &
EEDNEEVBHRE  MSKEVBHREREBER
—E-—F+ A=+ HHRET B RERE
HEZALFENGABEEREMETRER
RERZEDRNEARERER  UREAH
BHRENT  BEEZSITBEREE -

BMRE  ZEHAMBRRCREZTEES
firg((EREFMAEDRONTEMERS
HU((ERMBEREENDEEMH B R
T EEER-_Z_—F+-_A=1+—HHEKES
BN RBEZA LFENEREPBRELS
BRERE YD EREBRTRPIZ SHHE -

ERNER
BPEREBESAMOSRMONELE
((EBEERDETEN - ROEZFEYT
EENEECEAREZBMRETHRAMB
WEABRZBTIMOTRIEE—FPBML - RIEF
BB ASEMNE RGN ERET R (AT
IR BABZY BEEE - YERETH
BITHMBERELT - HPIHEE - RAIMESHE
AHRRERERE REE AR MNET B RIRMHE

’E&ko

6/



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B % B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Recognition and measurement of commodity marketing
revenue

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(z) and Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements

The key audit matter
BRETER

BARFITSEE
FRETSHERBERMANEXRHE - RREX
PR BEHRERNBITRREENEH - GLF
AeERMEFBEREAMBHRRILLARRE
EITREN - RA T EHELFTREHREBNE
El o

BmE S BARIRGE

FLHRE SRR M i32(2) 2 @it BUR K
Htits

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHWETNAEEZSE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
total revenue from continuing operations of HK$55,448,828,000,
of which HK$46,435,574,000, or 84%, was attributable to the
commodity marketing activities with high volume of individual
transactions.

RBEZZ-_—F+_A=Z+—RBLFE - ESEHERX
BRECEEBMNBIAEYDSS5,448,828,0007T - HH B
46,435,574,000t KB4 % EBNEAME HES - EXERERE
GEHIZBRABERAZEERFHE o

Certain of the Group's revenue from the commodity marketing
activities related to sales of metal concentrates. For such sales,
at the point of transfer of control of the commodity, the Group
estimates the fair value of the consideration under the sales
contract with reference to the forward price for the month of
settlement, and provisionally estimates the quality and quantity
of the commodity. These estimates are provisional as they are
subject to a final assay and weight certificates carried out by
an independent third party. At settlement, the amount of the
receivable is fixed based on the spot price of the commodity at
certain dates and the confirmed metal contents and quantities with
any differences between the actual and provisional sales amounts
being recognised in revenue.

EXERERNEREZEDNE THRALEESERBEEMA - 3t
ZHEMS REEAMmOEHE R - BE5EZ2ZELEEEAN
EHEREAHESNETRBZAABETERAAERNES
HHE  HAZSEMARTBELIE - TNRKTAIREEZENTE -
EmezE et RE R - REER - BB B DRERN @
RETHHNRERREERANCESERYEET  ERIHER
B EHE R M EMEERNMAFER -
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition
and measurement of commodity marketing
revenue included the following:

BIARTAERE SR ABRRTENEFE
FEUATEIA -
o evaluating the design, implementation and

operating effectiveness of key internal
controls which govern the recognition and
measurement of commodity marketing
revenue;

J HREREMESRAERLFTENETER
BRI HIE b - AT ERET - B LEEK
0

o inspecting the sale and purchase

agreements, on a sample basis for each
type of commodity marketing transactions,
to understand the terms and evaluate the
appropriateness of revenue recognition,
measurement and presentation with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

. DHEAR S8 ELnESIRFHH
BBz ATHREBGRE2ERITE
TR Z HE AR AR - 518 RIIH
ARSI



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Recognition and measurement of commodity marketing
revenue (continued)

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(z) and Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The key audit matter
BRENEE

B % BT R &

FEREETEE®
ERESWARIRHE®)

FRREEMBHRENE2(2) 2 87 BE K
HiiE6(4&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANETOAEEZSE

We identified recognition and measurement of commodity
marketing revenue as a key audit matter because the volume
of transactions increases the risk of error in the recognition of
revenue and significant judgement is involved in estimating the
price adjustments of affected commodities.

HRR S ESIEMERBRRAZER - BEREFHEEHIEER @
ZBRARSNERALE  SEMABETEAREZRAZERNGE
REARETEE -

o comparing, on a sample basis, revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with the underlying sale and purchase
agreements, bills of lading, invoices and
bank-in slips for settled balance and
assessing whether the related revenue
had been recognised in accordance with
the Group’s revenue recognition policies;

. AR - BRFATHNRAR S E
HABEE DS  1R¥ BEREBHAEENRE
EVERTTHERR B AT » W AT AR A U A
EECDRE ESEEMNRAERBETIA

B
[T

° comparing, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded before and
after the financial year end date with the
underlying sale and purchase agreements
and bills of lading to determine whether
the related revenue had been recognised
in the appropriate financial period; and

. UHBEAR - BUBFEFLER 2RI R
BEBNBEKARSEBBEE RS
REEITIER - UBEEHBRAZRTER
BENTBHRAER &

° evaluating the accuracy of the inputs
adopted by management in valuing
provisional sales amounts by agreeing,
on a sample basis, i) the provisional
prices to the forward prices provided by
brokers; and ii) quantities and qualities of
commodities to underlying documents
such as sale agreements and the final
assay and weight certificates.

. BEAHE T A ZENE EERELLIE
HORPER S RiEmBEREE M
MR (NEHE HE MR EREEE
B)  FHEEEE MY HE R RN
B A\ BUR B LERENE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B % B RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B % B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. WWe remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

/2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Yuen, Derek Man Ching.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEBEERHEMEERKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

2021 2020
—EB--F —E-TF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF BT T BT T
Continuing operations BREREEK
Revenue A 5 55,448,828 44,673,571
Cost of sales HERAR (53,538,565) (43,192,505)
Gross profit EH 1,910,263 1,481,066
Other income H AU A 7 120,545 196,331
Other net (loss)/gain Hth (&518), W F 58 8 (144,352) 2,366
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER (390,586) (370,579)
Administrative expenses THAX (795,829) (794,276)
Finance costs BEKAR 9 (304,026) (413,565)
Share of profits less losses of DGR E R ala AR E R
associates, net of tax (B IE) 54,383 25,978
Share of profits less losses of DMEEEDE RN RER
joint ventures, net of tax (0BrEE1E) 15,114 2,421
Profit before taxation B 75 A g 10 465,512 129,742
Income tax expense 3R 11 (176,153) (45,928)
Profit for the year from BECEERIFE
continuing operations gl 289,359 83,814
Discontinued operations ERIEER
Loss for the year from BRIEEG  FEEIR
discontinued operations 4 - (15,506)
Profit for the year FE A 289,359 68,308

The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated 286E243B 2 WEBKGZA T ERET 2 — 3B
financial statements. 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mREeBREREMEZERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # £ —~ %~

AEfZH =A— HILEE

2021 2020
—E--F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Other comprehensive income: Hih2mEUss -
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEH T EEEBZHEE -
profit or loss:
Defined benefit plan remeasurements fh SR ERAFE 3,107 (3,148)
Tax on defined benefit plan remeasurements  BA R ERAEHEITIE (370) 377
Net change in fair value of financial assets EAREEFAEMEERE
measured at FVOCI FECERMBEEZARER
BE)FRE - (88)
2,737 (2,859)
Items that may be reclassified HEREEH 7 EEZBmZ
subsequently to profit or loss, HE (HIBRZEHE) -
net of nil tax:
Exchange differences arising from HME BN B A R Rk
translation of financial statements of EECIENZE
overseas subsidiaries (36,680) 94,148
Exchange differences reclassified to REERBARKENSESE
profit or loss on disposal of subsidiaries Em BN ERE - 85,311
Effective portion of changes in fair value of ReEMEHHRZAREE
cash flow hedges FEhr BB M5 1,989 (1,499)
Share of other comprehensive income of DIBE R MNABLE Y
associates and joint ventures ﬁ‘rﬁlzﬁ”ﬁbm (12,107) (9,735)
(46,798) 168,225
Other comprehensive income for the year FREAMPER (44,061) 165,366
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHMMEETE 245,298 233,674
The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated Z86ZE 2438 Z i #E KR A M IE®mEX 2 — 3B

financial statements.

,T/\ ®
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREREMGEEKEX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

2021 2020
—EB--F —E-TF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Hat BT T B F T
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to RAREBANEBIETE
owners of the Company swm Al (E518)
- from continuing operations - REFBERLEER 208,905 56,803
— from discontinued operations - REEKIEFE 4 - (15,338)
Profit for the year attributable to RARHEBANEBIEFE
owners of the Company i Al 208,905 41,465
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to eI R (RS
non-controlling interests wm A, (E518)
- from continuing operations - REFELEEY 80,454 27,011
- from discontinued operations - REBERIEERS - (168)
Profit for the year attributable to IR ERE L FE
non-controlling interests il 80,454 26,843
Profit for the year FE A 289,359 68,308
Total comprehensive income AR A LG 2
attributable to: 1azE
Owners of the Company RATHEB A 170,233 201,611
Non-controlling interests FEERR 75,065 32,163
245,298 233,674
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE SRERN,(FE) 14
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BERREE CEN) 1.83 0.36
From continuing operations REFELEER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEAR RS CENL) 1.83 0.50
From discontinued operations REBKRIEER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EXRREECGEN) - (0.14)

The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated 5 86Z 2438 2 WM 4R A M ISR K 2 — &P
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B % AR R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 # —~F ~—4+1—-H=1+—H

2021 2020
—EB--F —E-TF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF BT T BT T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE A& 15 3,655,490 3,887,046
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 16 2,847,093 3,170,538
Intangible assets EmREE 17 184,349 212,912
Interest in associates AN e 18 241,897 190,232
Interest in joint ventures NG a1 ERE R 19 235,322 256,449
Other financial assets Hit e R & E 20 213,170 206,586
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIA - Be REM
receivables FEUL SRR 23 56,904 36,016
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 18,532 18,642
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMIA 37(e) 42,878 1,467
Deferred tax assets RIEN AR E 31 38,926 35,458
7,534,561 8,015,346
Current assets REBEE
Other financial assets HEmEmEE 20 2,358 1,498,580
Inventories FE 21 2,584,199 3,094,489
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8R1E 22 3,361,786 3,647,804
Prepayments, deposits and other FERNFIE - ke REM
receivables JE Wk IE 23 9,249,134 6,764,870
Contract assets BHEE 24 147,519 73,791
Warrantable LME commodities BERZLMER & 37(e) 66,456 98,655
Derivative financial instruments PTTHETRTIA 37(e) 431,944 429,527
Tax recoverable AR EI IR 14,983 15,100
Pledged bank deposits BEEMRITER 24,797 29,817
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEBEER 25 1,517,145 1,247,995
17,400,321 16,900,628

The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

£86E243H 2 M BMEA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B RO R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 ¢ &~ —4+_-H=4—H

2021 2020
—EB--F —E-TF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 BT T BT
Current liabilities REBEE

Contract liabilities AHAR 24 178,669 254,124

Trade and other payables FERTE ZERIE R A
FEfT IR 26 10,736,856 9,194,149
Loans and borrowings BERRER 27 4,446,626 5,204,356
Lease liabilities HEAE 29(a) 363,147 374,467
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 37(e) 389,558 1,146,335
Current tax payable FERTE BAF I8 86,005 41,220
16,200,861 16,214,651
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,199,460 685,977
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERRBARE 8,734,021 8,701,323

The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated S86Z 243 2 WHEBAGA T KREK 2 — 36
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B IR R &

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 # —~F ~—4+1—-H=1+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —TEF
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaF BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BRIE & B
FE <518 26 22,196 23,779
Loans and borrowings Bk fER 27 969,275 896,263
Lease liabilities HEBE 29(a) 2,671,395 2,932,448
Derivative financial instruments PTEESMTAE 37(e) 33,682 3,468
Defined benefit obligations FLIE B AR 30(b) 50,225 62,341
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEEE 31 263,939 284,666
4,010,712 4,202,965
Net assets EERE 4,723,309 4,498,358
Capital and reserves BARG#EE 32
Share capital [ 4,731,480 4,731,480
Reserves & (193,619) (363,832)
Equity attributable to owners of the NARHER AEG
Company MR 4,537,861 4,367,648
Non-controlling interests AR 185,448 130,710
Total equity R 4,723,309 4,498,358
The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 243 were F74E243B 2R A MBHRERENR T - —_F=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 A -+ /\HEZ=E=2 4t REETIEE - W h T
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: BEEREEE:
Wang Kan Wu Jinfeng
R/ R
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
ExE EF
The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated Z86ZE 2438 Z Kid#BKZE A MR E 2 — 3B

financial statements.

,f/\ ®
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e o S E R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E _—® = —4#+1 _H=+—HIL

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

80

KRAERREES
Amounts
recognised
in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated
in equity
relating to a
Share Perpetual  disposal group Attributable to
Share  FairValue  Capital Translation ~ Hedging ~ Statutory  option ~ Accumulated capital  classified as non-controlling
capital  reseve  reserve  reseve  reserve  feserve  reserve losses instrument  held-for-sale  Sub-total interests Total
i i
HERBIR
Ef2ENE
e B BARE EXEE HAEE AeRB BB Z0FE AERIE  BHZGE NG AREREL it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
BEFT  BETT EBEFr BEFr B¥Fr AMTn BEFr BEFr BRI BEFT BRI BEFT BRI
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZB-8F
-B-Az&H 4731480 - (506) ~ (126,541) 284 8137 736 (2,406491) 1,819,390 140,393 4,166,882 454,109 4,620,991
Profit for the year FR&A - - - - = = = 41465 = - 41466 26843 68308
Other comprehensive income b2 AU
Exchange differences arising from HEBNERELL
translation of foreign operations 13:83 - - - 8863 = 110 = 7 = - 888 5326 94148
Exchange difference reclassifiedto  IAHEMBATE
profit or loss on disposal of ENARE
subsidiaries BEZERZR - - - 346 = = = = = 8185 85311 - 853N
Net change in fair value of financial &A% BB AL
assets measured at FVOCI PG R 6B
BELAEERY
58 - (82) - - - - - - - - (82) (6] 88)
Share of other comprehensive MBEARARAE
income of associates and PEEBREYR
joint ventures o - 20 (9,965) - - - - - - 9,735) - 9,735)
Effective portion of changes in RemEHh ARER
fair value of cash flow hedges £YnENBH - - - - (1499) - - - - - (1,499) - (1,499)
Defined benefit plan remeasurements &5 R E/R A58l - - - - - - - (3,148) - - B4y - 34y
Tax on defined benefit plan EERERAHEHE
remeasurements - - - - - - - 317 - - 317 - 37
Total other comprehensive income Efh2ENEEE - (82) 20 82,126 (1,499 110 - (2,694) - 81,805 160,046 5320 165,366
Total comprehensive income FERENEEE
for the year - (82) 20 82,126 (1,499 110 - 38711 - 81855 201511 32163 233674
The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated $86%£ 2438 2 MK iR MBIME 2 — 5

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERERBEX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARaERREEE
Amounts
recognised
in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated
in equity
relating to a
Fair Share Perpetual  disposal group Attributable to
Share  Value  Capital Translation  Hedging ~ Statutory  option  Accumulated capital ~ classified as non-controling
capital  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  feseve  reserve losses instrument  held-for-sale  Sub-total interests Total
HHELEZ
HERRIR
Eth2 AW
MEE BRURNER
e £9 BRGE ERRE UAEE OLTHE BRERE  ZHEE ARERIE  ZHIEE N ERERER At
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$0O0  HK$000 HK$000  HK$ 000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
BEFL BETL BETn B¥Tn BETn BETn BT BETn EETo BEFT BETT BEFT BRI
Acquisiton from non-controling interests [ 3EREIRiER W - - (4 - - - - - - - 78 (B0
Share option lapsed BRERR = = = = = - (%) 736 = = = = =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR = o = = o = o = o = o (341,968)  (341,968)
Transfer from amounts recognised ERRNABARELE
in other comprehensive JIHERRIRERE
income and accumulated e AN )
equity relating to disposal k|
groups classified as held-for-sale - - - - - - - 220,248 - (222,248 - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlfing WFEREET R
interests - - - - - - - - - - - (13519)  (13519)
Transfer to statutory reserve in BRABIEEL
compliance with foreign EERTEAE
entities' statutory requirements ETHE = - 3 = = (880) - 2,383 - - - - -
- - 15 - - B0 me 2080 o I I
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZF-%F
TZAZt-RZESR 4731480 (82) 2242 (44.415) (1,215) 1,367 - M9 1819390 - 4,367,648 130,710 4,498,358

The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.

,f/'\ ®

$86Z243E 2 MEMAEAMBREZ — B

2021 Annual Report | CWT International Limited 81



82

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mAEDmEE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E _—® = —4#+1 _H=+—HIL

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARRRERFEE
Perpetual Attributable to
Share Fair Value  Capital Translation Hedging  Statutory Accumulated capital non-controlling
capital  reserve  reserve reserve reserve reserve losses instrument  Sub-total interests Total
MAERE
B& i E4ER EXfE  UWEE  iRBE BB AXEAIR Nt FERERERS Aif
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
BEFr  EBEFL EEFR Bgfr  BkFn EEkFn BEFR EEFr  EEFR BEFr  EEFR
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZF=-%
-B-B2&8 4,731,480 (82) 2,242 (44,415) (1,215) 7367 (2147,119) 1,819,390 4,367,648 130,710 4,498,358
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - 208905 - 208905 80456 289359
Other comprehensive income B2 ERE
Exchange differences arising from translation ~~ #Z g £BEL 7
of foreign operations EXER - 1 - (34,023) - (1) 2,842 - (31.291) (5,389)  (36,680)
Share of other comprehensive income of MBERIRAELE
associates and joint ventures AR ERE - - 1l (12,100) - - - - (12107) - (12107)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of Remedn/NAEE
cash flow hedges 2RnHENBH - - - - 1,989 - - - 1989 - 1989
Defined benefit plan remeasurements EERTRNHE - - - - - - 3,107 - 3,107 - 3107
Tax on defined benefit plan remeasurements  EfERERFEEHE - - - - - - (370) - (370) - 370)
Total other comprehensive income A2 ENEEE - 1 1] 46,123) 1989 (1) 5,579 - (38672 (5,389)  (44,061)
Total comprehensive income for the year FERANEEE - 1 1] (46,123) 1989 (111) 214,484 - 170233 75,065 245298

The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mARmBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E _—® _—4+1 _H =+—H I}

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARRRERFEE
Fair Perpetual Attributable to
Share Value Capital ~ Translation Hedging  Statutory  Accumulated capital non-controlling
capital  reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses instrument  Sub-total interests  Total
MEE
k& 28 EARE  ENRE  WMRE  LERR ZitHBE  KAEAIR Mt FEREEEE A
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000

BRFR ERFR B¥FR ERTn BRFR BRTx BRTR ERFL BRFR BRTL EETR

Acquisition from non-controlling interests RIEERERNE - - (20) - - - - - (20) 1211 (1231
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA - - - - - - - - - (347)  (347)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests MIEERER A 2 RS - - - - - - - - - (18,769)  (18,769)

Transfer to statutory reserve in compliance BRABIEE AR
with foreign entities' statutory requirements  BEEBZETHE - - - - - 201 (2.0m) - - - -
- - (20) - - 2011 {2,0m) - (20) (20,327)  (20,347)

Balance at 31 December 2021 R-B--£

TIAZT-RAZER 4731480 (81) 2,215 (90,538) T4 9,333 (1,934,712) 1,819,390 4,537,861 185,448 4,723,309

The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated S86E243B 2 WEBKGZA T HERET 2 — 3B
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GmERERBR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

2021 2020
—E--F —E-TF
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaF BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Cash generated from operations BEXBRECRE 25(b) 224,418 1,713,962
Interest paid EfTFE 25(c) (134,174) (203,101)
Income tax paid BEAFTSHE (149,508) (93,811)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED BESTE (A, Fidz
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REeFEHE (59,264) 1,417,050
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETE
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (5,063) (7,434)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EE#% - M= &R (58,813) (107,623)
Net decrease in pledged ERRRITF ORI F R
bank deposits 4,577 113,387
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEMEHEZ
plant and equipment PS5k 18 8,583 6,630
Purchase of other financial assets HBEHMSRMEE - (1,506,691)
Net proceeds from disposal of other HEHEMWEREEL
financial assets PG RIE #5E 1,506,634 1,027,540
Interest received LS 30,453 52,344
Dividend received from joint ventures W& &b R E N F)
and associates &S 20,109 40,888
Net proceeds from disposal of S R T 2 FTiS 3RIE
the UK Operation HEE - 62,820
Net proceeds from disposal of HERBRER 2 S HIE
the PRC Operation HEE - 126,920
Net proceeds from disposal of HEWB AR 25 IE
subsidiaries(net of cash disposal of) FREHIREERS) - 9
Net proceeds from disposal of HEEEDEZEHIE
joint venture FEE - 544
Acquisition of additional interest in Wi EhEREENR
joint venture and associate EHIMER (173) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1Ln)=NEC]
(net of cash acquired) (HBRFIBIRE) - (383)
Repayment of loans from associate and B RN a AL
joint venture BENER 3,264 64,629

H£86E243H 2 M BMEA B REZ — 5

,f/\ ®

The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F T
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF BT T BT T
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ REFEME(FTA)Z
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFEE 1,509,571 (126,438)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Net proceeds from borrowings raised BRI RIEF R 25(c) 39,495 756,133
Repayments of borrowings BEER 25(c) (720,881) (1,584,074)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEaE 25(c) (505,254) (527,371)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests Sz {v JE32 B A2 25 A% &, (18,769) (13,519
Payment to non-controlling interests for &t &% Bk — & P B 2 & )
a dissolution of a subsidiary FEIEAR eI MR (1,211) -
Disposal of subsidiary — non-controlling HE B AR — IEE RS
interest portion =iy (347) -
Acquisition of additional equity interestin WEER BB AT 2
an existing subsidiary REINIR A - (820)
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEERERS 2 ER 25(c) 21,123 31,944
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METHTAZRESFHE
ACTIVITIES (1,185,844) (1,337,707)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH H&RBESZEEHE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®i, (RD) B8 264,463 (47,095)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FzBReRREEHEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,242,619 1,275,489
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE IEERBB 2 E
RATE CHANGES (2,249) 14,225
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FR2ESRBESEE
AT END OF THE YEAR EH 25(a) 1,504,833 1,242,619
The notes on pages 86 to 243 form part of these consolidated f£86Z 2438 2 WMWK GA M KRR 2 — =6

financial statements.
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a5 B % AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

86

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Hong Kong HNA Holding Group Co. Limited
("Hong Kong HNA"), a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, is the immediate parent
of the Company. HNA Group Co., Ltd. (“HNA Group”), a
company registered in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), is an intermediate parent of the Company. Hainan
Province Cihang Foundation, a foundation registered in
the PRC, is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.
Neither of them produce financial statements available for
public use.

In January 2021, HNA Group entered into a bankruptcy
reorganisation as required by the local court and is expected
to be controlled by new controlling shareholders. As at the
date of the financial statements, the Directors have not
received any notices on change in ultimate controlling party.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”). These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.

CWT International Limited | 20214 & #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- other investments in debt and equity
securities measured at fair value (see Note
2(9));

- derivative financial instruments (see Note
2(h));

- inventories held under broker-trader
exemption (see Note 2(n));

- warrantable LME commodities (see Note
2(0)); and

- trade receivables and payables containing
provisional pricing features (see Notes 2(r)
and 2(t)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

2021 Annual Report | CWT International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

2.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

° Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related
rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (2021
amendment)

CWT International Limited | 20214 & #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. EESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Other than the amendment to HKFRS 16, the Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period. Impacts of the adoption of the amended
HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i)
accounting for changes in the basis for determining
contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities as modifications,
and (ii) discontinuing hedge accounting when an
interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the reform of interbank
offered rates (“"IBOR reform”).

The Group holds interest rate swaps for risk
management purposes which are designated in cash
flow hedging relationships. The interest rate swaps
have floating rates that are indexed to LIBOR and
EURIBOR. The Group does not expect IBOR reform
to have any impact to the Group as the interest rate
swap indexed to LIBOR was closed in after the loan
was fully paid in 2021.

The amendments do not have a material impact on
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7% R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

)

2.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related
rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (2021
amendment)

The Group previously applied the practical expedient
in HKFRS 16 such that as lessee it was not required
to assess whether rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic were
lease modifications, if the eligibility conditions are
met. One of these conditions requires the reduction
in lease payments affect only payments originally
due on or before a specified time limit. The 2021
amendment extends this time limit from June 2021
to 30 June 2022. The Group has early adopted the
2021 amendment in this financial year. There is no
impact on the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2021.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-Group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
Group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-Group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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2. EBEESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with Notes 2(t), (u), or (v) depending on
the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 2(g)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or joint venture (see Note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(m)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held-for-sale)

(see Note 2(dd)).

(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have

rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held-for-sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held-for-sale) (see Note
2(dd)). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate or
joint venture that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see Notes 2(f) and (m)(ii)).
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any acquisition date excess over cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method, together with any other long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or the joint venture,
after applying the ECL model to such other long-
term interests where applicable (see Note 2(m)(i)).
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2.

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the

equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a

financial asset (see Note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are
stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note
2(m)), unless classified as held-for-sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held-for-sale)

(see Note 2(dd)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(if) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set
out below.
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2.

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value
of financial instruments, see Note 37(e). These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.

(i) Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective
interest method (see Note 2(z)(vii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

(i) Investments other than equity
investments (continued)

fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI") - recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of ECLs, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains
and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from equity to profit
or loss.

FVPL if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

(ii)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to accumulated losses. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policy set out
in Note 2(z)(vii).

CWT International Limited | 20214 & #

2.

EESHBE®

(g)

ERRRERS 2 EMBRE @

(ii)

BRERE
REAZBHFORE DB/
DR BEFARD  BRIEKR

AEEWIFFIFEEAE -
ARVFERRER K&
BERA T AR AR E R
ERERBBAABEFAR
b 2w e (TR &) - A
HAnBENKREZSHNE
e EU SR - BREE
TR AR T AL - HEES
BOTARRRENAERE
ERIAMEL - NMELEH
BEBR > REM2EKGER
AN REERENAAE
BEffE(TAEE)  BEER
BREERL - BHER - 1
RRBEEFE(CTATEE)R
AANERERERGER
mIkE BB RS - K8
BARES (TwmIBERER
REEFFABRERIZAAE
B ARMmEEKE)RE
MR - BIRBIEE2(2)(vii)
PREf BRI R e e 38 A EL A
WA e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

(i)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedges of net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case recognition of any resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see
Note 2(i)).

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign exchange rates and
variable rate borrowings (cash flow hedges). Some
borrowings are designated as hedges of the foreign
exchange risk of a net investment in a foreign
operation.

i. Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recorded in profit or loss
immediately, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item that is
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in
the fair value of the hedging instrument and
the change in the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk are recognised in the same
line of profit or loss relating to the hedged
item.
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100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

Hedging (continued)

1.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedging instrument in a cash
flow hedge, the effective portion of any gain
or loss on the derivative financial instrument
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of
any gain or loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of
a non-financial asset such as inventory, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost of the
non-financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the
amount accumulated in the hedging reserve
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in
the same period or periods during which the
hedged cash flows affect profit or loss (such
as when a forecast sale occurs or interest
expense is recognised).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting (including when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised), then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively.
When hedge accounting is discontinued,
but the hedged forecast transaction is still
expected to occur, the amount that has been
accumulated in the hedging reserve remains
in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer
expected to take place, the amount that has
been accumulated in the hedging reserve
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

(j)

Hedging (continued)

ii. Hedge of net investments in foreign
operations

The effective portion of any foreign
exchange gain or loss on the borrowings is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity in the exchange
reserve until the disposal of the foreign
operation, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss. The ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(m)):

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see Note
2(1(i)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior
to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(j)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(bb)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated
KA+ AT E
Leasehold land and buildings
HETHRETF

Plant, machinery and equipment

B - tes KRB SEZE105

Furniture, fittings, computers and 1to b years
office equipment

B KB BRERRERE 15 E55F

Motor vehicles and trailers
YTE NG B

Leasehold improvements
HEWEERE

SEZE 1045

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. EESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see Note 2(mifii))).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

o Computer software

Computer software which is acquired by
the Group, where it is not an integral part
of the related hardware, is treated as an
intangible asset. Computer software is stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Computer software is amortised to profit or
loss using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years.

o Customer contracts

Customer contracts relate to the estimated
value of contracts acquired in a business
combination; and have finite lives and
are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Customer contracts are amortised to profit or
loss using the straight-line method over the
customers' contract periods of 1 to 5 years.

e London Metal Exchange (“LME”) license

The license relates to the estimated license
value acquired in a business combination and
has finite life and is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

LME license is amortised to profit or loss
using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life of 30 years.

(k)
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2.

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Business Relationships (“BRS”)

BRS relates to the estimated economic
benefits from business relationships arising
from a business combination. BRS refers to
business relationship between suppliers and
customers. BRS is estimated to have finite
life and is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

BRS is amortised to profit or loss using the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 4 to 5 years.

Brand (“BD”)

BD relates to the estimated economic
benefits from brand arising from a business
combination. BD refers to the acquired
company'’s good reputation and name known
in the market. BD is estimated to have finite
life and is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

BD is amortised to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life of 10
years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

n

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

N

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(j) and 2(m)
(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. EBEESHBE®

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

({)] Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from the
right-of-use assets in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to investments
in debt securities carried at amortised cost
(see Notes 2(g)(i), 2(z)(vii) and 2(m)(i)). Any
difference between the initial fair value
and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments
made and is included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

N

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic and
met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the
Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘other property, plant and
equipment’ and presents lease liabilities
separately in the statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

({)] Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance
lease or as an operating lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption
described in Note 2(l)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs") on the
following items:

= financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables
and other receivables, including loans
to associates and joint ventures,
which are held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal
and interest);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS
15 (see Note 2(q));

= debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling);

- lease receivables; and

- loan commitments issued, which are
not measured at FVPL.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in bond funds, equity and
debt securities measured at FVPL, equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not subject
to the ECL assessment.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

(continued)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the

Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan
and (ii) the cash flows that the Group expects

to receive if the loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the

2. EBEESHBE®

(m) FEBEREERE®H)

(i) XKRELMTHA SHWEER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

MR FEEX - RIFAHR
TEBREAIA TR KA,

effect of discounting is material: ;-

= fixed-rate financial assets, trade and = EEEREE - B
other receivables and contract assets: ZZRE R MR
effective interest rate determined at REREHEE K
initial recognition or an approximation N ERGETNE
thereof; PR F ok Hr LA ¢

= variable-rate financial assets: current = FEEREE - BVH
effective interest rate; ERFI=E

= lease receivables: discount rate used = JEWFHEFKIE : 5T =

in the measurement of the lease

receivable; and

- loan commitments: current risk-free -
rate adjusted for risks specific to the

cash flows.

BERIREK ; K

Hfm R K o
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2.

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

= 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial assets, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the
financial assets since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
assets assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is significantly past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

= failure to make payments of principal

or interest on their contractually due
dates;

- an actual or expected significant

deterioration in a financial asset’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

EESHBE®

2.

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments,

contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the

technological,

market, economic

or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation

to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
assets, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial assets are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as

past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial asset’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised

(m)

FEBEREERE®

(i)
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as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve (recycling).
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2.

116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(z)(vii) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

= significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and
= investments in subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures in the Company'’s
statement of financial position.

BEESHHRE®
(m) EEFEREERAE®)

(i) RELMBTH BHEER
EKREEHEEEEE
(&

MR

£HREBER ETAKER
R AEE RIS M (RB D
e ERMEE  BUHE
EFARBNEEMNEERE
B ZBEABREHRAEAE
EEEEBARBEERA
EERAREIMEH AR
RREERMIFEER -

BE 12 1 [m] 55 A 3H 2 B EE
Yo [0 B ) £ 48 25 PO BE AR AR R
BR0E -

(i)  RHREEERE
& S B Rt A EB R S
BER KR - AR TIIE
EEBAIREHBEBETR -
FBECHER REREER
ETrBHFEXATEDHD
(BREBZERIN

- X BERRR
(BREREEE)

- EEE

- EESEM

- RRABFBAARRRKIE
TRINBAR - B

REAREBEREZR

iéo

2021 Annual Report | CWT International Limited 117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # %~ %~

A A H AR

2.

118

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). A portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (for example,
head office building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit
if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to
the smallest group of cash-generating
units if otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEESHBEX®
(continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (m) EFEEBEEREEREGE)
(continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) EBEMFEREEEREE)
(continued)
= Recognition of impairment losses BRI EE R
An impairment loss is recognised in WEENXEMBIRG
profit or loss if the carrying amount EfBUREER
of an asset, or the cash-generating BE AU E SRR

unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset's carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial

year (see Notes 2(m)(i) and 2(m)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year

to which the interim period relates.

(n) Inventories

Inventories where the Group acts as a broker-trader
include metals and energy commodities acquired
with the purpose of selling them in the near term
and generating a profit from fluctuations in price, and

are measured at fair value less costs to sell.

All other inventories are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out (“FIFO")
basis and includes the full costs of materials,
freight and insurance and all other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Inventories (continued)

Due to the provisional pricing of the purchase of
the concentrate inventory and the subsequent price
adjustments on the basis of the quotational period
and the short inventory turnover period, cost of
concentrate inventory represents fair value of the
inventory.

Inventories allocated as hedged items in a fair value
hedge relationship are adjusted for the change in the
fair value attributable to the hedged risk component
(commodity price risk).

Allowance is made where necessary for obsolete,
slow moving and defective inventories.

Warrantable LME commodities

Warrantable LME commodities comprise highly
liquid commodities with the intention of selling them
in the near term, where the Group acts as a broker-
trader. These are measured at fair value less costs
to sell.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs
to fulfil a contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see Note 2(n)), property,
plant and equipment (see Note 2(j)) or intangible
assets (see Note 2(k)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with
a customer that it would not have incurred if the
contract had not been obtained (e.g. an incremental
sales commission). Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised in a
future reporting period and the costs are expected to
be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.
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122

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Other contract costs (continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract; generate
or enhance resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are expected to
be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered into the
contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors).
Other costs of fulfilling a contract, which are
not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as

incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (i) any costs that relate directly to
providing those goods or services that have not yet

been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged
to profit or loss when the revenue to which the
asset relates is recognised. The accounting policy for

revenue recognition is set out in Note 2(z).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(z)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 2(m)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see Note 2(r)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see Note
2(z)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see Note 2(r)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 2(z)(vii)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset (see Note 2(q)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain
a significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Except for trade receivables
containing provisional pricing features which are
measured at FVPL, receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method and including an allowance for credit losses
(see Note 2(m)(i).

Insurance reimbursement is recognised and
measured in accordance with Note 2(y)(i).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(m)(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Except for trade payables containing
provisional pricing features which are measured at
FVPL, trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs
(see Note 2(bb)).

Perpetual borrowings

Perpetual borrowings repayable upon an event not
controllable by the Group are stated at cost and
classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Employee benefits

i. Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w)

Employee benefits (continued)

ii.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of
defined benefit retirement plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine the present value and the fair
value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the
Group, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available
in the form of any future refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to
the plan.

Service cost and net interest expense/
(income) on the net defined benefit liability
(asset) are recognised in profit or loss and
allocated by function as part of “cost of
sales”, “selling and distribution costs”
or "administrative expenses”. Current
service cost is measured as the increase
in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee service
in the current period. When the benefits of a
plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed,
the portion of the changed benefit related to
past service by employees, or the gain or loss
on curtailment, is recognised as an expense
in profit or loss at the earlier of when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs and when
related restructuring costs or termination
benefits are recognised. Net interest expense
(income) for the period is determined by
applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the reporting period to the net defined
benefit liability (asset). The discount rate is
the yield at the end of the reporting period
on high quality corporate bonds that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of
the Group's obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w) Employee benefits (continued)

ii.

ii.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations
(continued)

When the benefits of a plan are changed,
or when a plan is curtailed, current service
cost for the portion of the changed benefit
related to past service by employees, or the
gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss at the earlier of
when the plan amendment or curtailment
occurs and when related restructuring costs
or termination benefits are recognised.

Remeasurements arising from defined
benefit retirement plans are recognised in
other comprehensive income and reflected
immediately in accumulated losses.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) and
any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w)

Employee benefits (continued)

ii.

iv.

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company's shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included in
the amount recognised in share capital for the
shares issued) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w)

(x)

Employee benefits (continued)
V. Other employee benefits

The Group operates other employee benefit
schemes. Every year the Group calculates the
amount to be debited/credited to the bonus
pool under the schemes. Such amounts are
recognised in the profit or loss. Payments
to beneficiaries are dependent on certain
conditions such as minimum service period
and long-term profitability. Payments within
12 months to beneficiaries after the service
period are reclassified from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts

i.

ii.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to
be reimbursed by another party, a separate
asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are
measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the net cost of continuing with the
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from commodities trading, provision of various
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

2. EBEESHBE®

(2)

AT
AR ARER AR 2 AR
R EEGS SR S
foF ERAEENEE SRR - A
EEEZUAS TN -

EEMIREHENEER TR
P AHARREREER - I
AL EFRIA KA AGER
BR(TEERRE =77 WA
ZETB)ETHER - WATER
BERSIEMHEN - WEHRE
MBS -

MENHEERTFRERRA12MEA
MEREE Iz 2 /b & A5
Ak AREW S MR EE - I
FARMREEEZFNMERRE
RBZBIREELE - AR EWRAR
BEBRFERESFRR - WELE
ERAEBERESTAME RS2 @l
BEAKED - BIRIBEZ A YRS
WABEREERFEEZEHNET
MEMFMERY - XEBEFASTE
B f5 R 5 B B 155R F63ERP I E
BES  THZAMERAI12EA
SATMHERRE AR 2 (F
R B EHFE -

2021 Annual Report | CWT International Limited

133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

2.

134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

ii.

Freight services

Freight services include air, sea and land
freight forwarding services and handling
of cargo across countries and handling of
documentation. Revenue from outbound
freight forwarding is recognised over the
transit time from the departure of shipments
from port of disembarkation, whereas
revenue from inward freight forwarding is
recognised when shipments arrive at port of
arrival.

Revenue is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract. Customers are
required to pay for the services rendered
immediately or within 14 — 60 days from the
date of invoice according to the agreed credit
terms.

Provision of logistics services
Warehousing services

Warehousing services refer to the provision
of warehouse space for storage of the
customer’s products. Revenue is recognised
over time as services are being transferred
to the customer, based on the time elapsed.
Services are normally billed in advance on a
monthly basis or such other shorter interval
as agreed with customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(z) Revenue recognition (continued)

ii.

Provision of logistics services (continued)
Container services

Container services refer to the container
storage, repairs and handling. Revenue is
recognised over time for container storage
as services are being transferred to the
customer, based on the time elapsed. For
repairs and handling, revenue is recognised
upon completion of the service. Services are
billed for each completed job but are usually
consolidated and billed on a monthly basis.

Transportation services

Transportation services include local delivery
of goods or transfer of containers/cargoes
from warehouse/storage yard to the port/
customers’ premises. Revenue is recognised
upon completion of the service. Services
are billed upon completion and are usually
consolidated and billed on a monthly basis.

Inventory management services

Inventory management services include
rendering of import clearance, documentation
and trucking services for inbound shipment
and performing inventory stock-take and
other related services over a specified time
period. Revenue is recognised when services
are completed. Services are usually billed on
a monthly basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Revenue recognition (continued)

ii.

Provision of logistics services (continued)
Record management services

Record management services include
storage, collection and retrieval and disposal
of document over a specific time period.
Revenue generated from providing document
storage, collection and retrieval and disposal
services is recognised over time as services
are being transferred to the customers, based
on the time elapsed. Revenue generated
from collection, retrieval and disposal services
is recognised when services are completed,
services are billed on a monthly basis.

For bundled packages, the Group accounts
for the individual services as separate
performance obligations as they are distinct,
i.e. the service is separately identifiable
from other items in the bundled package
and a customer can benefit from it. The
consideration receivable under the contract
is allocated to the separate services in a
bundle based on their relative stand-alone
selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices
are stated in the contract. Customers are
required to make payment within 30 — 60
days from the date of the invoices.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(z) Revenue recognition (continued)

iii.

Commodity trading

Commodity trading includes structured
trading, physical trading and supply chain
management of base metal non-ferrous
concentrates with predominant focus on
copper, lead, zinc and other minor metals and
energy products like naphtha and distillates.

Revenue is recognised when the customer
has control over the commodities upon the
transfer of title according to the terms and
conditions of the sales contracts.

The sale price of certain commodities is
initially recorded based on the provisional
prices depending on the contracts. Until
final settlement occurs, adjustments to the
provisional sales prices are made to take
into account metal price changes, based
upon the month-end spot price and metal
quantities upon receipt of the final assay
and weight certificates, if different from
the initial certificates. The Group marks to
market its provisional sales prices based on
the forward price for the estimated month
of settlement. In the consolidated statement
of financial position, such mark to market
adjustments are included within “trade and
other receivables”.

Payments of certain deals especially metal
concentrates and energy products are due at
sight or extended payment terms according
to contract terms and are secured by letter of
credit or documentary collection. Payments
of other deals are due as per the credit terms
stated in the invoice and most of them are
secured by credit insurance or approved by
an internal credit committee.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

Revenue recognition (continued)

iv.

Vi.

Equipment and facility maintenance
services

Equipment and facility maintenance services
include management and maintenance of
facilities, vehicles and equipment. Revenue
is recognised over time for services that are
transferred to the customer, based on the
time elapsed. For services that are rendered
over a period of six months or less, revenue
is recognised upon completion of the
services which is expected to approximate
revenue to be recognised over time, based
on the time elapsed, due to the short service
period. Customers are required to pay for the
services rendered within 30 — 60 days from
date of the invoice.

Design-and-build

The Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date. Revenue is recognised over time,
with reference to percentage of completion
of design-and-build services per the price
agreed under the contract. The percentage
of completion is measured by reference
to the quantity surveyor's certification and
customer's acknowledgment of the value of
services transferred to date, relative to the
total contract price or milestone payment as
set out in the contract (“Certified Value of
Completion”).

Progress billings to the customer are based
on Certified Value of Completion and payment
is based on credit term (normally 30 days) set
out in the contract.

Broking services

Revenue is recognised when services are
rendered to customers for clearing and
brokerage services (brokerage fee income)
and when trades are executed by customers
and the company acts in the capacity of an
agent (clearing commission and brokerage
fee).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(z)

(aa)

Revenue recognition (continued)
vii. Investment and dividend income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(m)(i)).

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established and dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income (see
Note 2(i)(iii).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
Dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(bb) Borrowing costs

(cc)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
recognised in profit or loss as ‘other income’ on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.
Government grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as
‘other income’ on a systematic basis in the periods
in which the expenses are recognised, unless the
conditions for receiving the grant are met after the
related expenses have been recognised. In this case,
the grant is recognised when it becomes receivable.

Government grants received in relation to the
purchase or construction of assets are deducted
against the costs of the assets acquired. These
government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the
assets by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

2021 Annual Report | CWT International Limited

2. EESHBE®

(bb)

(cc)

(EE NN

Wi RERLEEERE(FE R
REFRE )7 A E LB A & 1R i
BIZEEREBEERKNRNERES
ABEZRAZ =B - EibER
PR E E A HAR ST 3K e

EHAEREBEELRN BEEE
RRAREBEEFEBTE RGN
HEMBAETR @ FRB&HE
FRAERNERZBERAZ —&
- BEAEREEFEREREX
HEMB BRI EFERF L
KK E - EANEERKAGEE
ERARLE

B fERG

5 & HE R 78 5 WCER BT 8 b LR
SEBENAMAMSERER - &
I BE R R A A BERER - BT
MEREEAERFHAE RGN
EEERRIEMEAl - HERSE
[ BT = A ) S O TR 4 B A o S T
REEE RGN BEERRIH
U AL HE R B R AR B B ST 1R AT
B B B IRAFBR AN o UL BN
T FRAT A] BN B RERR o

FLIE B SR E B A AR BR T # RA
TRAREBHMKREEERRN - 25
BTN EERERFHRNER
MEMEERNT NIRERENE

141



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

2.

142

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(dd) Non-current assets classified as
held-for-sale and discontinued operations

i.

Non-current assets classified as
held-for-sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held-for-sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available-for-sale in its
present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a
group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held-for-sale when the above
criteria for classification as held-for-sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held-
for-sale, the measurement of the non-
current assets (and all individual assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held-for-sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures) and investment properties.
These assets, even if classified as held-
for-sale, would continue to be measured
in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in Note 2.

CWT International Limited | 20214 & #

2.

EESHBRE®

(dd)

TERFELEZRRBEE

e

i.

e 4

TEBFELEZHFTE
BE
W—FERBEE(RHKE
MRl 2 BRE B 5B
HER S (MIEEBFFERE
)W - PA R % B E (3
HEMARD)ER R T A 1
E RN BARKELE - —
{8 E MR A — KR E—
RpF—HHEZEENR
BN TERZEER
EHBEAE -

ERKBEEABTHIRKRE
BB A B 2 FE I 2 BT
- THRASEEENE
ERRENZHB AR ZIE
Rt - LB AR Z AT
BEERARENESR LA
FERE 2 D BERIR D
RFHEHE -

EROBERFIELER - 3F
mBEERHEMARZPT
BEBUEERBBINSR
RIREGABERTE - &
% RUTOBRRFBIELE
FEELER  FERBE
EMBTXRAZETEE
1) 3 & A B iR AR E E &
DR BEBHEEKRA ZEE
EHER - MAKE R 277
BRME  HREERALE
BR<EBHE RELEHREA
EE RBERMMELZ
BEE 2REEMNWMEBL
A BERRREEREZ
RERIN RIREWE ° &
FEENEDERFFELE
A - DEEERNE2E
b EB D PrEl 2 RERET & -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(dd) Non-current assets classified as
held-for-sale and discontinued operations
(continued)

i.

ii.

Non-current assets classified as
held-for-sale (continued)

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held-for-sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held-for-sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is classified as held-for-
sale, or is included in a disposal group that
is classified as held-for-sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component
of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held-for-
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(dd) Non-current assets classified as
held-for-sale and discontinued operations
(continued)

ii. Discontinued operations (continued)

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
on the face of the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised
on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.

(ee) Related parties

a. A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EBEEESHBEX®
(continued)
(ee) Related parties (continued) (ee) EBER (8)
b. An entity is related to the Group if any of the b. AT ERIE R ‘E’-f BERAe
following conditions applies: AR ES B B &

(i) The entity and the Group are members (i) ZEBEAEEER
of the same Group (which means that —&B2KERA
each parent, subsidiary and fellow (GIE=S S2/NCIIN Y=
subsidiary is related to the others). YNCIDSIE R )= PNG]

EEEERERE) -

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint (ii) XE—ERRSEE
venture of the other entity (or an FEEE AR A &
associate or joint venture of a member XA EEE
of a Group of which the other entity is FX B A AW ZN & [ jE
a member). THE A RIREE A

RIAEDRE) o

(il Both entities are joint ventures of the (i) WMEAEEHAR-—
same third party. ZHZAEDRE-

(ivi  One entity is a joint venture of a iv), X—EBRRERF=-FE
third entity and the other entity is an BrnaeEtE ms
associate of the third entity. —ERRRE=-E

REZHE AT -

(v) The entity is a post-employment (v) ZEBAANEE R
benefit plan for the benefit of NEEBBREZER
employees of either the Group or an & B M m &k 7 2 Bt
entity related to the Group. BizmAEtal -

(vl The entity is controlled or jointly (i) ZEBRBXZ(@)fiz
controlled by a person identified in (a). A TPl 5 2 H R I

il o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ee)

(ff)

Related parties (continued)

b. An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(viij A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’'s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(99)

Asset acquisition

Groups of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
assessed to determine if they are business or asset
acquisitions. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group chooses to apply a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is an asset rather than business acquisition, when
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset
or group of similar identifiable assets.

When a group of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed do not constitute a business, the overall
acquisition cost is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities based on their
relative fair values at the date of acquisition. An
exception is when the sum of the individual fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
differs from the overall acquisition cost. In such
case, any identifiable assets and liabilities that are
initially measured at an amount other than cost in
accordance with the Group’s policies are measured
accordingly, and the residual acquisition cost is
allocated to the remaining identifiable assets and
liabilities based on their relative fair values at the
date of acquisition.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has critical accounting
judgements in determining whether the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise extension or
termination options for certain leases, as set out in
Note 2(I).

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources at reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
next financial year are described in the following
notes:

3.

R AT

(a) EAXKEESTBRRRHIE
SR
RERAEESARFRBRET T
EERBEAREEEAEEETT
FETHENTERIR EERR
EEHLEE S5 HIE - ME200pT
& o

(b) fEEFFEERRZRR
RBEEH AREREZREK
HMETERR(EAEHEERE
BRI ER T — @M BFE R
ERBEZERRR) T E
Firit

Note 37(b) - measurement of loss allowance for receivables
i 7E37(b) - BERFEREERETE

Note 37(e) - fair value measurement of financial instruments.
FMI5E37(e) - SRIAMNAREERE-

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Group completed the disposal of its sports and leisure
related facilities business (the “PRC Operation”) in January
2020. In addition, the Group also ceased its energy and
refined metals trading business under the commodity
marketing segment (the “Energy and Refined Metals
Trading Operation”) during the year ended 31 December

2019.

Both operations disclosed above are classified as
discontinued operations. Please refer to the Company’s
2020 interim and annual reports for further details of these
operations.
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REVENUE 5.

The Group is principally engaged in integrated logistics
services and related engineering services. The Group is also
engaged in the affiliated business of commodity marketing
and financial services.

Disaggregation of revenue
Continuing operations

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

A

AEBEEREHEEWRRG MEETE
% - ARENTRFARE S RS BRE

Z W BT -

WAz &2

REBEMMRBREAD 2EFEHRA

by major products and service lines is as follows: o
2021 2020
—B-—-f —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHFIT BT T
Disaggregated by major products and EEXEERRBREGE D
service lines
Freight services B RS 5,998,828 2,939,199
Logistics services i AR 7% 1,577,095 1,614,502
Commodity trading EmE 5 46,435,574 38,918,873
Equipment and facility maintenance BB R EERERE
services 615,397 487,114
Design-and-build AT 27,609 17,977
Broking services a8 IR TS 536,321 563,871
Others Hih 258,004 132,035
55,448,828 44,673,571
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REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)
Continuing operations (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
markets is disclosed in Note 6.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, as the remaining
performance obligations of the Group are either from
contracts that have original expected durations of one year
or less or from contracts where the Group has a right to
invoice a customer in an amount that corresponds directly
with its performance to date, the Group has applied the
practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and
does not disclose information about the transaction price
allocated to its remaining performance obligations.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), being the most senior executive management
of the Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types
of goods or services delivered or provided.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following reportable segments.

Logistics services

This reportable segment includes warehousing,
transportation, freight forwarding and cargo consolidation,
supply chain management services.

Commodity marketing

This reportable segment includes physical trading and
supply chain management of base metal non-ferrous
concentrates with predominant focus on copper, lead, zinc
and other minor metals.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Engineering services

This reportable segment includes management and
maintenance of facilities, vehicles and equipment,
supply and installation of engineering products, property
management, and design-and-build for logistic properties.

Financial services

This reportable segment includes structured trading of
commodities, provision of financial brokerage services and
assets management services.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’'s most
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment profit before taxation represents operating
revenue less expenses. Segment assets represents assets
directly managed by each segment, and primarily include
inventories, receivables, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. Segment liabilities represent liabilities
directly managed by each segment, and primarily include
payables, loans and borrowings and lease liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments. Segment profit
includes the Group's share of profit arising from the
activities of the Group's associates and joint ventures.
[tems not managed by or derived from the operations of
reportable segments are classified as “unallocated” in the
segment reconciliations.
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e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EER @
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or AE2RoNER SEHEERHEM
loss, assets and liabilities and other material BEAREHHK
items
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Reportable segment profit or loss AE2F o HER
Total profit for reportable segments Al 235 50 T B FE 604,900 381,415
Unallocated amounts: KOS -
Gain on fair value change of other HtemEEZ A AREE
financial assets gl - 22,381
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREEZ
plant and equipment fE5i8 - (2)
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain &5 (E518), Wt F58 (2,345) 8,039
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE (5,486) (9,304)
Finance costs A& B A (35,912) (137,371)
Unallocated income and gains RO WA RS 388 3,647
Unallocated expenses RAOEHAX (96,033) (139,063)
Profit before tax (continuing operations)  BR i Al i A G B 4 & 2 75) 465,512 129,742
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oHMER®

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or
loss, assets and liabilities and other material

items (continued)

CIES:

iRz  EERAEREM
EREBHEKR®E

2021 2020
—E-—F e e 23
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT JBEEEF T
Reportable segment assets A2|OHBEE
Continuing operations B E TS
Logistics services W AR 1% 8,849,566 8,720,960
Commodity marketing EmE 5 6,143,490 8,064,675
Engineering services Ti2AR 540,969 475,599
Financial services SRR 9,371,230 7,795,521
Elimination of inter-segment assets SR B 8 (679,705) (806,049)
Total reportable segment assets AIZRDHEER 24,225,550 24,250,706
Unallocated assets: AOWMEE :
Investments in associates and NRENRIREEDERE
joint ventures 477,219 446,681
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEHEER 8,042 4,044
Other financial assets HtemEE 213,170 204,702
Other unallocated assets BEMROEEE 10,901 9,841
Consolidated total assets AR ERE 24,934,882 24,915,974
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6.

156

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EER @
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or AE2RoNER SEHEERHEM
loss, assets and liabilities and other material BEXREEHE®)
items (continued)
2021 2020
—E-—F e e 23
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T JBEEEF T
Reportable segment liabilities A2 HEaE
Continuing operations B E TS
Logistics services W AR 1% 6,320,594 6,346,489
Commodity marketing HmE S 4,832,289 6,763,188
Engineering services Ti2AR 298,225 234,447
Financial services & BhAR TS 8,312,037 6,736,522
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities ban= =N EEa k= (679,428) (775,980)
Total reportable segment liabilities AZwRoHaERsE 19,083,717 19,304,666
Unallocated liabilities: IO EaE :
Perpetual Note (Note 27(c)) KA (HiE27(c) 358,694 356,905
Promissory Note (Note 27(a)) A EE (B 7E27(a) 716,000 716,000
Other unallocated liabilities HtAoiEaE 53,162 40,045
Consolidated total liabilities FERARE 20,211,573 20,417,616

CWT International Limited | 20214 & #




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E — % _—4 1+ _H=+—HIL 4
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TEER®
Geographic information HEER

The logistic services and commodity marketing segments
are managed on a worldwide basis and the Group operates
principally in Mainland China, Singapore, other parts of Asia
Pacific Region, Europe, North America, Africa continent
and South America. Engineering services are primarily in

VIRRELRERE S HIEEIRGEER
ER - AEEBEZZRFPEAM - FFINER
HpmEMmBAHE - BUM - JE3=M - FEM
AEREEMNEL - TIRRBEEBEFTM
¥ merRSEEZAFE A - FTm

B RIEEMES -

Singapore. Financial services operate mainly in Mainland
China, Singapore and North America.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical TR D HEEZRELE - DBWARL

segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical NEFEEE HﬁU\ZFﬁEiﬂlu—ju‘l‘ o D EPIE
locations from which the Group derives its revenue. BN E E (B 5k & R UK Eé@& iR
Segment non-current assets (other than loans and EFIEE ERR 9|\)HzﬁFFﬁEﬁE|£
receivables, financial assets and deferred tax assets) are
based on the geographical location of the assets.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMBEF ZWA BEFRRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—g--5 "T-TF —B--F "T-TF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT BT
Mainland China FR B A HE 35,083,651 24,686,428 92,832 77,899
Singapore 2N 10,996,725 3,156,536 5,231,647 5,694,676
Hong Kong Special FEES
Administrative Region FERITT &
of the PRC 1,810,273 9,819,989 913 7,398
Korea B2 1,226,686 1,118,846 266 276
Other Asia Pacific HEmp KAEER
jurisdictions 3,463,984 3,566,761 571,973 555,039
Europe R 1,453,945 1,000,969 1,259,663 1,315,916
North America b EM 1,106,951 1,018,028 24,023 20,123
Africa continent FEINAPE 244,677 302,900 62,642 60,560
South America EE 61,936 3,114 9,931 5,399
55,448,828 44,673,571 7,253,890 7,737,286
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6.

158

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

No single customer contributed over 10% or more to the
Group’s consolidated revenue from continuing operations
for both 2021 and 2020.

2 EER @)

FHRXEREFZEH
RIZ-—FR-_ZT-_TF HEE-F
FRASB ZHBEEEBAERMEARA
BW10%3IA £ ©

OTHER INCOME Hiug A
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —TFF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BEMTF T
Continuing operations FERSEEK
Interest income on financial assets BEHEKAFTECEREE
measured at amortised cost FEUA 31,364 54,742
Dividend income from other financial HEmemEERSBKA
assets 474 163
Government grants B4 AL 37,979 103,735
Others HAb 50,728 37,691
120,545 196,331

The Group received several government grants globally
as measures introduced by local governments to protect
businesses and people from the economic disruption
caused by the Covid-19 pandemic.

Material government grants received by the Group includes
those received/receivable under Job Support Scheme
and rebate of foreign worker levy rebate and property tax
in Singapore. As at 31 December 2021, the Group also
received certain government grants of HK$543,000 (2020:
HK$11,743,000) of which attached conditions have not
been met. These balances are included under “trade and
other payables”.
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e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

OTHER NET (LOSS)/GAIN 8. Hit(BR), e FHE
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ET_THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T JEMETF T
Continuing operations FRESEEK
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HE¥E - MELREZ
equipment W 58 637 3,669
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets & EF & E 2 E18F58 (6) (333)
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries, LEWBAR - BEAR R
associates and joint ventures AEME BT (6) (2,596)
Net foreign exchange loss bE 18 F R (13,467) (3,568)
Impairment losses on trade and other FEWE 5 BRIE K H 4th FE UL
receivables RIEREEE (25,642) (8,443)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets A& E R EE 18 (28,361) -
Reversal/(recognition) of impairment M - BEREEREEE
losses on property, plant and equipment  #[@ / (FE32) 1,748 (1,745)
Impairment losses on prepayments TR FRIEREEE - (3,880)
Net gain on financial instruments carried  E A7 BEFT ABZEHD
at FVPL TRl TR 195 22,381
Others (Note) H At (Bt 57) (79,450) (3,119
(144,352) 2,366

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, the Group made a provision of
HK$100,904,000 in relation to a litigation entered into by a

subsidiary of the Group (see note 26(c)).

Wizt -

R-EBE-_—F+-A=+—H XEERLE
B —fE Y B A Bl 80 R A #5755 100,904,000

(RIE26(c) °

FINANCE COSTS 9. ®EKAK
2021 2020
—EB--F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BB F T
Continuing operations FREREEK
Interests expense on: FMERZRE :
Bank borrowings and other facilities RITERREMAEE 120,559 182,197
Medium term notes FEIEIR - 5,998
Lease liabilities HEAE 120,998 126,315
Others HAh, 1,586 3,853
Other finance costs A & B AR 7,176 48,565
250,319 366,928
Bank charges RITFEE 53,707 46,637
304,026 413,565
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

Lk E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

10.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation from continuing operations has been

arrived after charging/(crediting):

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION FROM

RERFESEER ZRBA
gl
REFBECEEHZRBATRAENR
GHA) -

2021 2020
—EB--F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Continuing operations FEREER
Staff costs, including Directors’ BINAN(BIEESEHE)
emoluments
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe - ITENMEMER 1,296,651 1,233,618
Retirement benefit scheme RIREAIFTE
contributions 89,114 74,949
1,385,765 1,308,567
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEREETE
equipment 206,113 206,321
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 411,433 430,441
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEE 31,023 30,976
Auditor’s remuneration Z BN N & 17,813 17,855
Gross rental income from investment REWMEZ B BKWA
properties - (163)
Inventory write-off FEMEH - 37,987
Cost of inventories sold EHEFENA 44,957,447 37,664,812

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of intangible assets of HK$39,000 and
HK$56,366,000, respectively, are attributable to the Group's
discontinued operations and presented under “loss from
discontinued operations” for the year ended 31 December

2020.
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

INCOME TAX 11. FEH
2021 2020
—EB--F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Current tax BHIE
Provision for the year — Overseas FEAE - BINRERL
income tax 173,511 68,362
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFERETR
prior years (R ) 18,078 (12,103)
191,589 56,259
Deferred tax RERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary VREP S {EE
differences (Note 31) (Ha31) (19,284) (20,423)
Withholding tax TEH0EL 3,848 9,366
Total income tax expense FriS®if > 4858 176,153 45,202
Attributable to: AT FEAh -
Profit from continuing operations RERECEER 2 5T 176,153 45,928
Loss from discontinued operations REBRIEER 2 EIA - (726)

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for

both years.

Taxation outside Hong Kong is calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

HE-_ZT-_—FR-_ZFT-_FTF+-_A=+
—BIEFE  ARAEERREFEELE
REBELERRR AN A ERBTEF

BHEHRYE -

BREINZ BARB B FARRDEH
TZARRE R AR 2 RITREAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

11.

162

INCOME TAX (continued)

In 2014, the Group was offered Land Intensified
allowance (“LIA") incentive from the Singapore Economic
Development Board (“EDB") for its warehouse situated
in Singapore known as Mega Logistics Hub (“MLH").
The LIA incentive is a targeted scheme to promote the
intensification of industrial land use towards more land-
efficient and higher value-added activities. As at 31
December 2021, the Group claimed a total LIA incentive of
SG$64,527,000 (approximate to HK$372,985,000) as capital
allowances deducted against taxable incomes.

In 2021, EDB conducted a post LIA review and noted that
the Group has different interpretation on the criteria of
total floor area, one qualifying condition of the said LIA
incentive. The Group views usable floor area as a subject
dependent on interpretations, and contested the basis used
in EDB’s review. As such, the Group is presently working
with EDB and the relevant authorities to define the floor
area considering the state-of-the-art technology at MLH that
maximises land plot ratio and economic output.

The aggregated tax effect for LIA incentive from financial
years ended 2014 through 2020 is SG$14,210,000
(approximate to HK$82,230,000). The Inland Revenue
Authority of Singapore (“IRAS") had issued a revised
tax assessment to disallow an LIA incentive claim of
SG$47,791,000 (approximate to HK$276,557,000) for
the year of assessment 2017 (the “2017 LIA Incentive
Claim”). The 2017 LIA Incentive Claim remained open as of
the date of these financial statements.

As the matter remains in discussion with EDB, and
together with the Group's belief that it has a proper basis to
substantiate total floor area, the Group does not consider it
necessary to create any current tax provision to reverse the
LIA incentive previously claimed.
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RN EE SR EESNIT S o R
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

INCOME TAX (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax and profit
before taxation from continuing operations at

applicable tax rates:

11. FigHw)

FreB BB AR RITERBHFEE
R BRBANIEN 2 B H AR

2021 2020
—E-—F e e 23
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Profit before taxation from REFEL ST 2 RER
continuing operation gl 465,512 129,742
Less: Share of profits of associates and ~ Jil : DhEtE RN A RE S
joint ventures, net of tax s M (R R IE) (69,497) (28,399)
396,015 101,343
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRAATR Az BEMIE -
calculated at the rates applicable to BEHBR AR 2w
profit in the jurisdictions concerned HAMETE 131,151 38,523
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR RS 2 Mg & 57,712 55,509
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERMWA 2 I8 (36,036) (33,714)
Tax incentives B5 1EE) - (372)
Tax effect of utilisation of previously not ~ EYA LRI R ER ZFRIEEE R
recognised tax losses and allowances BEsBBeE (8,052) (6,668)
Tax effect of temporary difference not RERCERFEEE L
recognised Mg E 8,109 5,341
Effect of changes in tax rates MEEH w8 197 =
Under/(over)-provision in respective BEFEBRETR(BREEE)
prior years 19,224 (15,909)
Withholding tax T 3,848 3,222
Others Efh - 4)
Income tax expense from REFBRLERBZPREH
continuing operations Fx 176,153 45,928
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12. EERBESITHRAEME

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (a) EBEERERSTHAEMS
HE_Z-_ZTFR-_T-—F+=
AZ+—BLEE BEREST

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 are set

out below: BABZME&EIIAT -
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions  emoluments
HER BREEA
ik 2@ TR “BHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BT BEFIT
2021 ZB=-F
Wu Hao (Note i) RE (st - 594 - 594
Li Neng (Note i) Zae (et - - - -
Zhang Can (Note i SRR (W) - - - -
Zhao Quan fHE - 1,101 - 1,101
Chen Chao (Note iv) B (Hfztiv) - - - -
Peng Biao (Note v/ ER (v - - - -
Wu Jinfeng (Note vi) REE W 2vi) - 1,315 119 1,434
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2% 300 - - 300
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin M6 300 - - 300
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey Mg 300 - - 300
Chen Lihua (Note vi) BREBE (W 2vi) 123 - - 123
1,023 3,010 119 4,152
2020 It et 53
Zhu Weijun (Note viii) KEE (B 2viii) = 272 = 272
Ding Lei (Note ix) Ta W) = 1,146 1,155
Wu Hao (Note i) & (W32 = 427 427
Li Neng (Note i) gz = 427 = 427
Li Tongshuang (Note x) FRE i) = 75 2 77
Zhao Quan g = 459 = 459
Chen Chao (Note iv) BRiE(H2iv) - - - -
Zhang Can (Note i SR (Wi 2iin) - - - -
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2% 300 = = 300
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin WA 300 - - 300
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey Wiz 300 = = 300
Chen Lihua (Note vii) BRBEE (1 i2vii) 210 = = 210
1,110 2,806 " 3,927
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
(continued)

Notes:

i Mr. Wu Hao was appointed as an Executive
Director on 1 October 2020 and resigned on 31
May 2021.

ii. Mr. Li Neng resigned as an Executive Director on
31 May 2021.

iii. Mr. Zhang Can resigned as an Executive Director
on 21 February 2022.

iv. Mr. Chen Chao resigned as an Executive Director
on 29 July 2021.

V. Mr. Peng Biao was appointed as an Executive
Director on 31 May 2021.

Vi. Mr. Wu Jinfeng was appointed as an Executive
Director on 31 May 2021, part of the total salary
with amounts HK$81,000 was paid by a subsidiary.

Vii. Ms. Chen Lihua resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 29 July 2021.

Viii. Mr. Zhu Weijun resigned as an Executive Director
on 1 October 2020.

iX. Mr. Ding Lei resigned as an Executive Director on
26 June 2020.

X. Mr. Li Tongshuang resigned as an Executive
Director on 12 December 2019.

12. EERESTHAEMES®

(a)

EERBSTHRAEME (@)

Bt

i REEER_T-F
HEZTAWTES
——FRA=+—HET

FHA-
&

i. FREAR-_ZE_—FHA=
T—HEHERTES -

iii. REEENR T -_—_F-_A=
+—HEENTES -

iv. RBTER T -_—F+tA=
TAEBIHITES -

V. ERAENR-_E-_—FRA=
+—HEZTAMITES -

Vi. ReEBEAEN T -_—FH
A=+—"HEZAARNTE
T HEHeREN o 0B
#81,0007T) A — M B A F X
fF -

vil. REELLIR-_ZE_—%+tA
T NAEBEBILIFERTE
Ho

vii.  REBEER-T-ZEFLSF
—RBHERITES -

iX. T&EEER-ZZE-_ZTF A=
TRNBEBERITES -

X. TRIEEEN_E—HEFE+=
BT+-HBIHITES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
(continued)

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as Directors of
the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as Directors of the Company.

Five individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in
the Group, none (2020: none) of them is a Director
of the Company whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining five (2020:

12. EERESTHAEMES®

(a) EERESTHRAEME®)

EXFRZATEETHE TR ER

sEBANFARAEBEL BE
H

EXFRZIFATESHEEESR
REEEARREETZIRG AR -

EXFRARZBIFATEEMHE T
ERRERLEARAESTZRBEAE
A

TEBRESHFMAL
RAEEREZERSHFMALH - I
E|(CE_ZTF  B)ADRBES -
WEZHMEHN EX - 2R SE
TE-TERE)ATZENE W

(b)

five) individuals are as follows: ™
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Salaries and other benefits e kEMmET 36,748 36,768
Bonus TE4L 25,096 29,444

Contributions to retirement benefit IRREFETE 2 73R

schemes 306 276
62,150 66,488
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

(b) Five individuals with highest emoluments

(continued)

The emoluments were within the following bands:

12.

BEERERSTHAEME®

(b) HEBRSHMALE

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000

HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000

HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000

HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000

HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000

HK$35,500,001 to HK$36,000,000

754,000,001 TE
75 #4,500,0007T
754,500,001 E
75 #5,000,0007T
75 #5,000,001 T2
75 #5,500,0007C
787,000,001 7TE
7 #7,500,0007T
75 #7 500,001 T2
758,000,000
718,500,001 E
75#9,000,0007T
75 #9,000,0017TE
7519 500,0007T
78 #9, 500,001 T2

7#5110,000,0007T
735,600,001 T2
75 #£36,000,0007T

wEZHEHEMT ¢
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TTF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EE#H EEHE
1 —
1 p—
- 1
- 1
1 p—
- 1
- 1
1 p—
1 1

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as
compensation for loss of office or as an inducement

to join or upon joining the Group.

DIVIDEND

13.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed after the

end of reporting period.

AREE I B E F KR &= # B
ATZNME - ERBEREE S (F
AIMAZINARE B L2 2287 -

RE
AARREBE_SE-—E{R T -_TE+
A=zt BUFETERTBBRBRES
NSRS AETAKRE  BREHKREL
EERT TS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14. SRER (EH8)

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (a)

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per
share amounts from continuing and discontinued
operations is based on:

(i) the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to

SRERBF(5E8)

AR EE SRS REKIEEB
SREARF, (B8 LBR T
Bty -

(i)  AREAEEAELFE

owners of the Company wF (B R)
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit/(loss) attributable to R RHER AEG
owners of the Company wm A (E518)
- from continuing operations - REIFELEES 208,905 56,803
- from discontinued operations - REBKRIEER - (15,338)
208,905 41,465

(i) the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 11,399,996,101 (2020: 11,399,996,101)
in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b)

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/
(loss) per share amounts presented for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 in respect of
a dilution as share options subsisting during the
periods had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
earnings/(loss) per share amounts presented.

168 CWT International Limited | 20214 & #

(i)  FREBITLERIETSE
11,399,996, 101fx (== —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ BERXE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant, Motor fittings,
land,  machinery vehicles  computers, Assets
buildings and and and and office under
improvements  equipment trailers  equipment  construction Total
g B %8
8% BE - HER ERRHAE
JUEL FE  REAEE Ed EREE Gl
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
B¥Fr  BEFT B¥Tr BETT B¥Tn BT
COST
At 1 January 2020 R=E-%%-A-H 3,835,785 84,431 48519 34,018 390,082 4,392,835
Transfers g 16,360 - - - 16,360) -
Reclassifications (Note 16) ENPEWH6) (97,057) 8621 3962 1440 = (83,034
Additions AE 50,723 12,823 2,979 5972 35,126 107,623
Disposals e (170,707) (23,266) 10,160) 6,548) - (210,681)
Exchange realignment EREE 94,369 7818 1,688 1,749 6,220 111,846
At31 December 2020and 1 January 2021 R=F=FF+=A=1-R
k=E2--%-A-H 3,129473 90,427 46,988 36,631 415,070 4,318,589
Transfers &a 406,345 9,775 2% 1278 (417,424) -
Reclassifications (Vote 16] ENAR16) 1,076 - 139 - - 1,215
Additions AE 15,561 15819 3,750 9,814 13,869 58,813
Disposals HE (31,625) (42,540) (7,517) (568) - (82,250)
Exchange realignment BiAE 89,290) (4,048) (1,107) (1,276) (6,425) (102,146)
At 31 December 2021 2y g o S 4,031,540 69,433 42,219 45,879 5090 4,194,221
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZHAERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 AZ2-TE-A-H 442,639 8,791 3299 6,731 - 461,460
Impairment losses AERE 1,745 = = = = 1,745
Reclassifications (Note 16/ Eifn R (Wit16) (76.901) 7516 3938 (55 - (65,502)
Charge for the year Rt 163,083 21,176 11,880 10,221 = 206,360
Disposals £ (169,379) (22,025) (9,941) (6,375) - (207,720)
Exchange realignment 3L 25,898 6,110 1514 1678 = 35,200
At31 Decernber 2020and 1 January 2021 R-E-FE+-F=1-R
R=E--%-A-H 387,085 21,568 10,690 12,200 - 431,543
Reversal of impairment losses HEBERE (1,748) - - - - (1,748)
Reclassifications (Note 16) ENARi6) - - 9 - - 93
Transfers E2 - 131 (228) 97 - -
Charge for the year Emtiz 165,619 21,355 10,002 9,047 - 206,113
Disposals HE (28,048) (38,959) (7,303) - - (74,310)
Exchange realignment HEL (19471) (2,594) (424) (47) - (22,960)
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%+-A=t-H 503,437 1501 12,920 20,873 - 538,731
NET BOOK VALUE FEFE
At 31 December 2021 R-B--#+-f=1-A 3,528,103 67,932 29,359 25,006 5,090 3,655,490
At 31 December 2020 RZZZTETZA=1-A 3,342,388 68,859 36,298 24,431 415,070 3,887,046

FRN - AEEBFEFER2,364,000
TT(ZZE T4 : #¥6,138,0007T) EAME
REREE BT E143% (22
TLE 1 212%) °

During the year, the Group capitalised interest expenses
of HK$2,364,000 (2020: HK$6,138,000) in assets-under-
construction, with a capitalisation rate of 1.43% (2020:
2.12%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # £ _—F ——4+ _H =+4—HILFF
16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FRHEEE
Furniture,
Office, Plant, fittings,
buildings  machinery Motor  computers
and and vehicles  and office
Land  warehouses  equipment  andtrailers  equipment Total
G 2B
BAE BT  KE- #R ERRBAE
1 i R REREE Bt it
HK$ 000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKS000
BEFT Befr  B¥Fr  E¢FT BETT BEF
CoST A
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-%%-5-H 087842 3099827 57,376 20249 594 3871,258
Reclassifications (Note 12) ENNREMWHE) 95,517 = (8,183) (4,399) 9 83,034
Additions e 14,373 73947 23,107 9,383 2275 123,085
Retired/terminated BE /&I 2,765) (80,125) (1,133) (4,556) (39) 88,618)
Lease modification BEBT 19,920 68,579 1,780 597 (1,672) 89,204
Exchange realignment ErRA% 36,140 45,224 2978 580 167 85,089
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZZFETZA=T-AR
“2--£-f-A 851,027 3207452 75,925 21,854 6794 4163052
Reclassiications (Note 78] ENnR W19 - - - (139) - (139)
Additions HE 1,690 81,362 12,731 2714 1,742 100,239
Retired/terminated BE /K - (96,356) (3,044) (1,615) (145) (101,160)
Lease modification HEET] 2,819 54,813 5,885 2511 (897) 87,131
Exchange realignment A% (28,225) (58,781) (2,055) (754) (109) (89,924)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-F+ZR=1-H 849,311 3,188,490 89,442 257 7385 4,159,199
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

16. FRAEEE®W)

Furniture,
Office, Plant, fittings,
buildings ~ machinery Motor  computers
and and vehicles  and office
Land  warehouses  equipment and trailers  equipment Total
CURETR
HAE-BF KE- B ERRHBAZE
14 i Rkt REREE Bt &t
HKS$000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSO00
BEFT BEFT  E¥fT BEFT BETT BB
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZiHERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 RZB-FE-A-H 71,702 452,384 24,487 10278 1482 560,333
Depreciation charge for the year ERfETH 37,452 367,116 16,085 8172 1,616 430,441
Reclassifications (Note 75/ ExipEdl(a) 76,904 = (7513) 3,937) 48 65,502
Retired/terminated #E /41 (2,765) (80,125) (1,133 (4,556) (39) (88,618
Lease modification HEBiT = (1,019 (563 (597) (710) (2,889)
Exchange realignment ESAE 8460 17,445 1,647 118 75 27,745
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZE-ZFE+ZA=1+-AR
“8--%£-5-A 191,753 755,801 33,010 9478 241 992,514
Depreciation charge for the year ERRERH 39,385 345,950 18,147 6,354 1,597 411,433
Reclassifications (Note 15) SRR M) 1,076 - - (93) - 983
Retired/terminated BB /&1 - (96,356) (3,044) (1,615) (145)  (101,160)
Lease modification HEBT - (312) (93) (127) (683) (1215)
Impairment losses HEEE - 28,361 - - - 28361
Exchange realignment BH AR (4471) (12,640) (1,207) (448) (44) (18,810)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%+-A=t1-H 221,743 1,020,804 46,813 13,549 3197 1312106
CARRYING AMOUNTS HEfE
At 31 December 2021 RZB--%+-A=1-H 621568 2,167,686 42,629 11,022 4188 2,847,093
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFETZA=1-A 659,274 2451651 42915 12,376 4300 3170538

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
revised the classification of certain assets with carrying
amount of HK$1,122,000 (2020: HK$17,532,000) between
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
Such reclassification does not result in changes on the
residual value and useful lives of underlying assets and has
no material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared

or presented.

HE—_S-—F+-_A=+—BHIt&EE
BEFTBREEAE1,122,00070(=

Z

E-F

=T —=<

S

B #17,632,00070) A TEER

ME BERREBEEERAEEEZEAND
B BRAEHPEITSEZEREENT
HREELAIERFHLRES  TTeY
AEER AR B ERR ARG M5
AR EEIN T AEREATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BEEE
Customer LME  Computer Business
contracts Licence  software relationships Brand Total
LME

EFRN  MUE  BREA  REBRK @ ait
HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK8'000
E¥TT  ERTT  EMTT  ERFT EMTR EETR

coST KA
At 1 January 2020 RZE-TF-F—H 24,643 36,905 35,164 103908 252,153 452,773
Additions NE = = 7434 = = 7434
Disposals e = = 2,360) - = (2,360)
Exchange realignment [ 5 iR 332 498 928 (2,067) 1,095 786
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-FF+-A=1—H

1 January 2021 kZE-—%-F—H 24,975 37,403 41,166 101,841 253248 458,633
Additions AE - - 5,063 - - 5,063
Disposals & - - (1,950) - - (1,950)
Exchange realignment X AE (375) (562) (934) 2,331 (3,807) (3,347)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-&+=A=1-H 24,600 36,841 43,345 104,172 249441 458,399
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION 23t
At 1 January 2020 WZZE-Z4-f-H 11,500 36,905 7,034 45,159 59523 160,121
Charge for the year FRHR 4,79 = 1763 56,366 24,419 87,342
Disposals HE - = (2,027) - = 2,027)
Exchange realignment iR 356 498 688 (780) (477) 285
At 31 December 2020 and RZZ-ZF+-F=1—H

1 January 2021 k-E-—%-f-H 16,650 37,403 7458 100,745 83465 245721
Charge for the year FREHR 4,926 - 1,007 - 25,090 31,023
Disposals e - - (1,939) - - (1,939)
Exchange realignment R AR (256) (562) (845) 2,191 (1,283) (755)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—%+=A=+-H 21,320 36,841 5,681 102936 107,272 274,050
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—%+ZA=+-H 3,280 - 37,664 1,236 142,169 184,349
At 31 December 2020 R-E-FF+-A=1-H 8,325 = 33,708 1096 169,783 212,912
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 18. REENTF 2R
2021 2020
—E-— T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT B F T
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 239,793 188,143
Quasi-equity loan to an associate BT —EBERAr 2 BURE
% 2,104 2,089
241,897 190,232

Quasi-equity loan to an associate is interest-free and forms
part of the Group’s net investment in that associate. The
loan is unsecured and settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all associates are
unlisted and each of them does not have a significant
financial impact on the Group's results and financial
position. Aggregate financial information of associates that
are not individually material is as follows:

BT —RBERRZBUREAERRR
B YBRARERBERRZREFR
Z 8y o RERREEM - WES BT
RARATRER A] B ARKAES ©

RIB-—FER-"EB-_TFE+-_fA=+—
B FEBMERFARIELT  BEAY
AEE 2 RERM BRI BEANT LG
Z - FERNEXHKERARZERMBHEF
LU

2021 2020
—E-—F —EoFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
Carrying amount in the consolidated RirA B HRE 2 REE
financial statements 241,897 190,232
Aggregate amounts of the Group's AEBEEEZEHERRZ
share of those associates’ w@E
Profit from continuing operations FELEER R 54,383 25,978
Other comprehensive income Et2mEmlas 3,031 128
Total comprehensive income 2R EARER 57,414 26,106
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

19.

Bt 7% R 2R MY &

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all joint ventures are
unlisted and each of them does not have a significant
financial impact on the Group's results and financial
position. Aggregate financial information of joint ventures

19. REELE KR

N —FR B _FEFF+_A=+—
H FTEAAGENARELT  BSEY
RNEBEBERVBRIHESAGHF
o FEFERGECEZBAVBKER

that are not individually material is as follows: wmr
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T B F T
Carrying amount in the consolidated RirE B EHRE 2 REE
financial statements 235,322 256,449
Aggregate amounts of the Group's K’ﬁlffﬁﬁ ZaEhEY
share of those joint ventures’
- Profit from continuing operations ?ii“”Z“M%f%iﬁTﬁ‘J 15,114 2,421
- Other comprehensive income - EmemEmkas (15,138) (9,863)
Total comprehensive income 2EW AR (24) (7,442)
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

20. Htte@mEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-EF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 BT T BT
Non-current: FERE :
Financial assets measured at BAREBETABRFTEN
FVPL cREE
- Unlisted equity securities - EEMRAFES 211,540 204,960
Financial assets measured at BAARBETARMEE
FVOCI WEHNEREE
- Unlisted equity securities - I EIRAFES 1,630 1,626
213,170 206,586
Current: E
Financial assets measured at RBHERITTENESREE
amortised cost
- Quoted treasury securities - BEBRHES (i) - 1,496,395
Financial assets measured at BAREBETABRFTEN
FVPL SHEE
~ Listed equity securities - EWIRAE S 2,358 2,185
2,358 1,498,580
Note: Hia -
(i) As at 31 December 2020, the treasury securities are (i) RZZEZZF+-A=+—H BHE

quoted with yield ranging from 0.12% to 1.40% with
maturity dates between 1 to 12 months. The treasury
securities were purchased using customer segregated
funds held and are either pledged as margin deposit with
the Chicago Mercantile Exchange (“CME") and the Options
Clearing Corporation, pledged as margin deposit with one
of the firm's carry brokers or held in a safekeeping account
at the firm’'s settlement bank.

H2WamERENT0.12%FE1.40% °
FEENTF1212EA - BEHERA
RrBPOBEASEE  WRNZNTERD
AR 5 AT ([ Z X)) K& Options Clearing
Corporation{ R RFS « RABIHAR
BL A2 —HBAABRESIR DAL
HEHIRITIRERFPNIBAE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. FE&
2021 2020
—EB--F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Commodity inventories at fair value BEAREBEFECERTE 1,063,997 865,498
Commodity inventories at lower of cost &k A & 7] # IR FEEEKE
and net realisable value rEZEREFE 1,494,658 2,210,388
Raw materials [ 4,613 2,036
Finished goods K i 11,792 12,060
Cryptocurrency at fair value BARBEFFECNEER 9,139 4,507
2,584,199 3,094,489
Less: Allowance for inventory B REGFTERE
obsolescence - -
2,584,199 3,094,489
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. FEWE SZERIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T JEMETF T
Trade debtors and bills receivables at REHEX N ENEWE S
amortised cost, net of loss allowance BIEARR R EREE
IR B IR R A 1,486,942 929,127
Trade receivables containing provisional ~ E AR BEF ABRAENES
pricing features, measured at FVPL TRTEERENEKE SRR 1,874,844 2,718,677
3,361,786 3,647,804
All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered TEEF B EKE ZEREBEHER —FRlkE -

within one year.
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables amounted to
HK$36,237,000, HK$3,994,000 and HK$4,578,000 (2020:
HK$15,475,000, HK$3,773,000 and HK$1,561,000), are
due from the Group’'s associates, joint ventures and other
related parties, respectively.

(a) Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade debtors and bills receivables based
on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as

22,

B E 5 BRIE ()
RZBE-_—F+-_A=1+—H EBKES
BRIE 7 #£36,237,0007T * /& #3,994,000
TR EHE4 578,0000 (= —ZF : B
15,475,0007T * /B #3,773,0007C & 5 &
1,561,0007T) % 5l & FE YL AN & B B &2 A
A AEEREMBES ZFIE -

(a) FRERDHT
R|ERR - HREZBHRLN
BEERBRAEZREESES
ABRR K U R 18 7 B ik 0 A 40

follows: ™
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT B F T
0-90 days 0-90H 3,308,197 3,428,704
91-180 days 91-180H 19,162 158,485
181-365 days 181-365H 10,451 54,800
1-2 years 1-24F 23,976 5,815
3,361,786 3,647,804

Further details of the Group’s credit policy and
expected credit loss allowances are set out in Note
37(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # £ —~F = —4 1~ H=1—HILFE

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. EMNRE RERHAMEK

RECEIVABLES FIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
HaE BT T BB F T
Assets held or segregated in LB BRPHEA
separate accounts NEECEBE (a) 8,232,824 5,977,836
Deposits and other receivables 1@ I E fth FE Wk IE (b) 668,138 569,324
Amounts due from other related UK E b B8 & 7 20 IA
parties (c) 4,375 13,433
Loans to associates ML N T ER (d) - 3,480
Loans to non-controlling interests [ 3EIEAR S B X (e) 4,416 4,812
8,909,753 6,568,885
Prepayment and deferred costs FEAT B R IRIE AR AN 396,285 232,001
9,306,038 6,800,886
Less: non-current portion W IERENE D (56,904) (36,016)
9,249,134 6,764,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

The balance included customers’ funds of
HK$7,653,077,000 (2020: HK$4,504,152,000) held
by the Group in respect of the Group’s commodity
marketing and financial services, which are required
to be held in segregated accounts by laws and
regulations of the Securities and Futures Act (“SFA")
governed by Monetary Authority of Singapore
("MAS"”), the Commodities Trading Act (“CTA")
governed by International Enterprise Singapore
("IE Singapore”) and Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (“CFTC") in the USA. These customers’
funds are included in “trade and other payables (see
Note 26(b)).

Deposits and other receivables included guarantee
deposits of HK$45,306,000 (2020: HK$25,428,000)
placed at CME.

Amounts due from other related parties represented
non-trade amounts due from associates, joint
ventures and non-controlling interests are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Loans to associates are unsecured and bear interest
of 4.0% per annum as at 31 December 2020. The
loans were repaid during the year.

Loans to non-controlling interests are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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23. FANFIE - ReERHEMEW
FRIE ()
(a) HHPIEOAEEMRAEEY R

BoORSBRBEHECREPESH
#7,653,077,000L (= — T4 ¢
B4 504,152,0007T) © i EE
SRIBEFINE SR EE B ([ F
SREERDMEECESFNAE
FE(BHFRBEZED - #IEER
CEZEER(HFMNEEBRLERR
BREEZ2ARRZE(BRR
ZEDEFEEMBERSLZES
((EmHERGZEER]]) 2EER
ER BEBRBUEFER c %E
EPESFAIENESEREARE
o JE A 3038 ] (R 5E26b)) °

}Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁuﬁz%lﬁaﬁfﬁﬁm*

Pﬁz{% EiZ & B 45,306,000
TT(ZE =T F : £%25,428,000
JL) °

R Mo EL A B 33 77 SR TR 4 PR M
A RERRNMIFERERZIFE
A REER - RERREX

&g -

RZE_ZEF+-_A=+—HR
EBRRERBEEE - WIRFF R
4.0%ETE - ZEERERAFEE
BE REEER - %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 24. EHNEEREHNAR
LIABILITIES
The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights AHEEFTEARSERYRRBRERE
to consideration for work completed but not billed at the BHETK ERNAEENTRERRED
reporting date on logistics services. The contract assets are BFERE - EEMNKAEGGR  60F
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become ERERZRWEZIRE  BEAASHE
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group invoices MEFHRALZEEREA -
customers.
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, HE_T-_—FR-_F-FF+-A=
current contract liabilities at beginning of the year has been —HIEFE  FYVNRBEHNBERNLD
substantially recognised as revenue during the year. ERFAERBEA -
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25. RERRESEEEBEUREM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HEREEH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BEeREASEEEBEEHZAK:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Cash and bank deposits, representing I8 & NMIR7TFR RERE
cash and cash equivalents in the ﬂﬁ‘%ﬁixﬁi’\%zfﬁ@&fﬁﬁ
consolidated statement of financial £(EEH
position 1,517,145 1,247,995
Less: DA
Bank overdrafts RITEX (12,312) (5,376)
Cash and cash equivalents in the RIFRBRERERZES
consolidated statement of cash RELFEHEIAE
flows 1,504,833 1,242,619

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing bank saving
deposits rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.08% (2020:
0.01% to 1.09%) per annum.
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25.
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)

HEeRBEEEEBUREM
HEREER®

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) for the year to (b) FERR(FR) ELEELH
cash generated from/(used in) operations: (FFR)BREZHER :
2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETHF
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
Hat BT T JEMTF T
Profit/(loss) before taxation REATIEE ZBRELAT
from: Swm A, (E518):
Continuing operations B E TS 289,359 83,814
Discontinued operations BRI 4 - (15,508)
Profit before taxation B 252 A1 g 1
including discontinued (BFEERIEER)
operations 289,359 68,308
Adjustments for: FE
Income tax expense FriSfiM X 11 176,153 45,202
Depreciation of property, VI - RE L&
plant and equipment e 15 206,113 206,360
Amortisation of intangible ER B
assets 17 31,023 87,342
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE
assets 16 411,433 430,441
Interest expenses and other FERTREMBEE
finance costs BCA 250,319 366,928
Fair value gain on: ATIEEZAREE
IS
Financial instruments BEARBEFTEN
measured at fair value TRMI A 8 (195) (22,381)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of: HENTIER 2
BB () -
Subsidiaries S =MNG] 6 (17,554)
Property, plant and M - BE R
equipment (637) (3,669)
Intangible assets mEE 6 333
Interest income FEUA (31,364) (55,592)
Share of profit of associates DREE R A REE D
and joint ventures Einvil (69,497) (28,399)
Dividend income from other HHEM RS EESH
financial assets SN N (474) (163)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25. BeRBREEEBEBBUREM

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HEREER®

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) for the year to (b) FERR, (FE)BEEEKHT
cash generated from/(used in) operations: B/ (FAREZHE:
(continued) (&)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT T BT T
Recognition/(reversal) of LATIER 2 REEE
impairment losses on: wR A (#E) -
Right of use assets FREEE 8 28,361 =
Property, plant and M - BE kB
equipment 8 (1,748) 1,745
Trade and other JEWE 5 BR1E &
receivables H b fE U s I8 8 25,642 8,443
Inventories write off FEME - 37,987
Provision of a legal case —TNARRMEE 26 100,904 -
Gain arising from lease HEBIFEEDN
modification W25 (253) -

Operating cash flows before BEESEBIRILE

changes in working capital RenE 1,415,151 1,125,331
Decrease/(increase) in BERLD,(Em)

inventories 521,396 (44,058)
Decrease in trade and FEUE ZER1E R H At

other receivables and JEWFIBBRAEL

contract assets BERD (2,283,178) (1,635,718)
(Increase)/decrease in PTESRMIA

derivative financial (g, mL

instruments (772,873) 386,985
Decrease/(increase) in BERZLMERE @

warrantable LME B (3 hn)

commodities 32,724 (73,958)
Increase in trade and FERTE S AR1E K H A

other payables and FERZRIEREL

contract liabilities =Ll 1,318,592 1,955,273
(Decrease)/increase in BERACRL),

employee benefit 3 (7,394) 107
Cash generated from BEXEBREZRE

operations 224,418 1,713,962
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

25. BeRBREEEBEBBUREM
HEREER®

(c) RMEFBELSB/BZIHR

TRELAEERARSEHOE
EEH(RERLRIERLHE) -
REEPELNEEARSRER
FARKELFEENAEBGAE R
SHRERTEEARSEDES R

EzafE-
Loan from
Loans and non-controlling
borrowings Lease liabilities interests Total
REFER
ERRER HEEE REEZEN &t
(Note) (Note 29(a)) (Note 26)
(Hrz2) (Hrz229()) (Hrzi26)
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERTR ERTT ERTR ERTr

At 1 January 2021 RZBZ-5-A-H
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSRELE
New borrowings raised a
Repayment of borrowings [BRET
Capital element of lease payment RERTCERSH
Interest element of lease payment REMFZHEHH

e

Total changes from financing cash flows ~ @RERLTEL

Changes from operating cash flows: ~ SKEHEEFEEH
Interest paid BRFE

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMNEER£ 82 /%

Other changes: Hip#25:
New leases oHE
Lease modification MEBI

Interest expense and other finance costs |8 F X R EMEERA

Total other changes BE M EE)
At 31 December 2021 W-ZE-—E+-A=+-8

Note: Loan and borrowings consist of all the current and
non-current loans and borrowing as disclosed in
Note 27, except the bank overdrafts.

6,095,243 3,306,915 79,729 9,481,887
39,495 - 21,123 60,618
(720,881) - - (720,881)
- (384,256) - (384,256)

- (120,998) - (120,998)
(681,386) (505,254) 21,123 (1,165,517)
(134,174) - - (134,174)
(5,415) (76,450) 2,321 (79,544)

- 100,239 - 100,239

- 88,094 - 88,094

129,321 120,998 - 250,319
129,321 309,331 - 438,652
5,403,589 3,034,542 103,173 8,541,304

Mzt ERREROENME27FKE
B FT A BIHI R SF BNER B 3 I
fE5K - MESRITBE BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25. REeRkREeEEERAUREM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION REeEREER®
(continued)
(¢)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) BMEIBHELEBZHEGE)

financing activities (continued)

Loan from
Loans and non-controlling
borrowings  Lease liabilities interests Total
REFER
ERREH HERR BRHZER CH

(Note) (Note 29(a)) (Note 26)

(lifz3) (W#290) (Hi226)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BETT BEFT BETT

At 1 January 2020 WZE-F%—f—-H 6,917,255 3,429,999 45,825 10,393,079
Changes from financing cash flows: AERSRERE
New borrowings raised MER 756,133 = 31,944 788,077
Repayment of borrowings (R {3 (1,584,074) - - (1,584,074)
Capital element of lease payment REMFZEAS R = (401,056) - (401,056)
Interest element of lease payment REMFZFEHH = (126,315) - (126,315)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ @REBLHELE (827,941 (527,371) 31,944 (1,323,368)

Changes from operating cash flows: ~ ZEHEEFELH

Interest paid B E (219,607) - - (219,607)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEE2#8 /¢ (15,077) 62,794 1,960 49,677
Other changes: i
New leases Mg = 123,085 = 123,085
Lease modification HEETT = 92,093 = 92,093
Interest expense and other finance costs ~ FISRX RE MR A A 240,613 126,315 = 366,928
Total other changes BEMEE 240,613 341,493 = 582,106
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEE+-A=1-H 6,095,243 3,306,915 79,729 9,481,887
Note: Loans and borrowings consist of all the current and Hiat - BERRERDEMT27AEE

non-current loans and borrowing as disclosed in R ERNE R IERNERE R & f&
Note 27, except the bank overdrafts. B MEIRITBE G
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. BNEZREREMENKE

2021 2020
—EB--F —E_TF
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaE BT B F T
Trade and bills payables EREZREREMARE
— measured at amortised cost — R ER AT 2 478,246 578,744
— containing provisional pricing - BEEREEBREEK
features and measured at FVPL BARBEAEBRE 1,063,495 791,128
(a) 1,541,741 1,369,872
Amount segregated for customers Z|HD FEF 24 (b) 7,653,077 6,000,547
Provision for a legal case —RERREERE (c) 100,904 -
Other payables and accruals H fh e 3RIE R R IR B 1,359,816 1,767,264
Amount due to related parties FEAS B 5 BR (d) 341 516
Loans from non-controlling REFEER RS 2 BN
interests (e) 103,173 79,729
10,759,052 9,217,928
Less: non-current portion R JEmENEb D (22,196) (23,779)
10,736,856 9,194,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

Notes:

(a)

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 26. ERNESREREMEMNKIE
(%)
Hiet -
The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables (a) AT ARFREEREZENE SHEREBER
based on the invoice date as at the end of the reporting BREBHRED :
period:
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
0-90 days 0-90H 1,387,730 1,219,064
91-180 days 91-180H 65,485 57,241
181-365 days 181-365H 39,844 30,815
1-2 years 1-24F 41,971 52,840
Over 2 years 2F A E 6,711 9,912
1,541,741 1,369,872
The average credit period for purchase of goods ranged BEAEM FHEERN FI90£180
from 90 to 180 days. The Group has financial risk H - RNEEREVEERERER -
management policies in place to ensure that all payables RREERBSERI N2 IEMNRK
are settled within the credit time frame. Ig
As at 31 December 2021, trade payables amounted to RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H0  EFAR
HK$2,225,000, HK$3,035,000 and HK$231,000 (2020: SEBERR  aECERAMBER
HK$826,000, HK$1,444,000 and HK$373,000), are due to ZENESRED R AE2,225,000
the Group's associates, joint ventures and other related 7T~ 7#3,035,0007T & & #231,0007T
parties, respectively. (ZZ=ZF : H 5 AE%826,0007T
PEHE1,444,0007T K2 & #5373,0007T) °
As at 31 December 2021, no customer segregated funds (b) R-ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—8 ' ¥k
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(b)

were used to purchase quoted treasury securities (2020:
HK$1,496,395,000) (see Note 20). The remaining balance
of amount segregated for customers of HK$7,653,077,000
(2020: HK$4,504,152,000) were held by the Group in
segregated accounts (see Note 23(a)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

As at 31 December 2021, a provision of HK$100,904,000
was made by Straits (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“SSPL"), an
indirect subsidiary of the Group, in connection with a
litigation (the “Case”) which involved certain repurchase
agreements. The provision is recognised as “other net
(loss)/gain” during 2021.

Based on the judgment (the “Judgment”) and the order
of the court dated 16 February 2022, SSPL, together with
four other defendants to the Case, would be liable to pay
the plaintiff an amount of approximately US$283 million.
While the Company is in the process of its submission to
appeal to the Case, after discussion with the Group’s legal
advisors, it is expected that the provision to be made for
the compensation amount under the Judgment will be
limited to the net asset value of SSPL as at 31 December
2021. The provision made by SSPL represented its net
assets value as at 31 December 2021. More details relating
to the Case can be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 23 January 2022 and 17 February 2022.

Amounts due to related parties represented non-trade
amounts due to associates, joint ventures and other related
parties which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured
interest-free and repayable on demand.

2021 Annual Report | CWT International Limited

26. BNEZREREMENKE

(&)

Hret - ()

(c)

(e)

R-_ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—H8 ' Straits

(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.([SSPL| » A% [E

ZEENBAR® —RIPRETEE

BEOFL(ZREDFTREBESE

100 904,0007T * ZBEENR _T——
R A A (E18), W B -

BRIEHR(ZHR) EEHAE=Z ==
F-A+NBREAR®S © SSPLER
ZEREHEMNERESHEEEERRE
> F#92.8318 %E BARADNREZ
MR LR (BEERNEBEAEER
Ml - TEEREZAAREESE
HBEEERNSSPLR T - —F+—
A=1+—B®MEEFE - SSPLATEM
BEAER-_E-_—4&F+_-_A=+—H
MEESFHE BHEZRHNEZHE -
BREARRAATS_—F—A=
+=AR-_E-_—_F-_At++tEHHA

=

RNEREDRBRERNBERR &2
EERFEMEET ZIFESFHE - BE
IR 2R RREREE -

KEFERER 2 ERAEERREE
FARBSKAEE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

188

27. BERRMERN

2021 2020
—EB--F —ETF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 BT T BT
Non-current FERE
Promissory Note O E R (a) - 716,000
Secured bank loans HIRFIRITE R (b) 969,148 173,579
Unsecured bank loans ELRRITE R (b) 127 6,684
969,275 896,263
Current FRED
Promissory Note L E R (a) 716,000 =
Perpetual Note KAZE () 358,694 356,905
Secured bank loans HERPIRITER (b) 139,853 1,019,523
Unsecured bank loans EARIRTTE R (b) 295 1,626
Revolving short-term trade facilities fEIREHE FEE (d) 3,219,472 3,820,926
Secured bank overdrafts BEBEITES (b) 12,312 4,484
Unsecured bank overdrafts ERIRTTES (b) - 892
4,446,626 5,204,356
Notes: Hia -

(a)

The balance represents the Promissory Note with principal
amount of HK$716,000,000. The balance is interest-bearing
at 5% per annum, which shall be payable semi-annually
in arrears. The Company may elect to defer payment of
interest, in which case interest of 5% shall accrue on such
deferred interest amounts until payment. All accrued and
unpaid interest and all unpaid principal shall be paid in full
on 3 September 2022. The Promissory Note is not secured
by any assets of the Group. Subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, the Promissory Note is renewed for
another 3-year period (see Note 41).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

. = ==
27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 27. ERRER®
Notes: (continued) BieE - (&
(b) At 31 December 2021, the bank loans and bank overdrafts (b) RZE-_—F+=-A=+—8 ' 178
were repayable as follows: RIRRITE R BIZ A T AR (B8 -
2021 2020
—EZ—fF —TTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT B FT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIREK 152,460 1,026,525
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERWENRN 127,558 27,659
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRERAEFR 719,704 33,691
After 5 years hFE 122,023 118,913
1,121,735 1,206,788
(c) Perpetual Note is issued by subsidiaries of the Company (c) ANARMH B A R REECWT SGEE1TK
in connection with acquisition of CWT SG. Perpetual A - A& 48%8 546,000,000 T2
notes with aggregate principal amount of US$46,000,000 XABREREMER (BB BRAFE
are guaranteed by HNA Group (International) Company R -ZEZBRARER £EKAXRE
Limited. The notes are unsecured, interest-free and EMEEE  ENEEZRB R
repayable at the discretion of the Group, but redeemable HBEH(BREETRRERERAR
upon occurrence of subordination events (including but B)BABAER - ARNEBRERAZ
not limited to liquidation of the note guarantor) as set out BRI AREBIES - BUOKAZER
in the notes’ subscription agreement. Since the liquidation BRI ENSEAIRBARE] -
of the note guarantor is not controllable by the Group, the
perpetual notes is therefore classified as “current liability”
in accordance with the prevailing accounting standards.
(d) Revolving short-term trade facilities of the Group relate to (d) AEECZRREHESRERARASE
short-term trade related self-liquidating facilities to finance ErEnEsXSRRZEBES AT

the Group’s commodity marketing business. BERERR -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # £ —~F = —4 1~ H=1—HILFE

27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 27. ERRfER®
At the end of the reporting period, assets used to secure RBEER - BRERIEEERRER
the Group's loans and borrowings other than the Extended (BT HERBRINNEERAT :

Borrowing were as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$000 HK$'000

BT T JBEEF T

Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 1,895,741 2,005,102
Pledged bank deposits BIIRRITER 24,797 29,817
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 BRIA K H {th FE UL 3R IE 1,317,238 1,310,671
Inventories rE 2,835,382 2,821,246
6,073,158 6,166,836
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

TERMS AND DEBT REPAYMENT 28. HFRREEEBIKER
SCHEDULE

) RS IR B R S B TR IR R AR T

The terms and conditions of out standing loans and
borrowings are as follows:

201 2020
ZEC-F Z3%%
Year of Nominal Carrying Year of Nominal Carrying
maturity interest rate amount maturity interest rate amount
HEER ZEflk FEfE HBFR SEAZ Al
HK$ 000 HK$000
BETT EETT
USD floating rate revolving shortterm X TF B EREHE 58E NA - 148%671% 3219472 NA  153%-671% 3820926
trade facilities TER TR
USD perpetual note STAAEE N/A N/A 358,694 N/A N/A 356,905
NER NER NER ER
SGD floating rate loans FIETEEER 2025 SORA+1.7% 911,761 2001 133%-3.16% 994,652
i HgRR “E--F
9% 41.7%
FUR floating rate loan B e 8 2027 EURIBOR +1.5% 71,601 = = =
BRaAE
FEFE+15%
GBP fixed rate loans ARTEER - - - 2031 360% 5,023
“F--F
HKD fixed rate loans BEEBEN 2022 5.00% 716,000 2022 5.00% 716,000
—E-CF —E--
EUR fixed rate loans BITEEER 2027 240% 65722 20052007 1.42%-240% 169,429
- 2 )
“EotE
TRY floating rate loans TEABNZEER NA - 21.00%-27.00% 5,440 NJA - 1550% - 21.00% 8240
TER NER
TRY fixed rate loans TEEBNTEER 2003 6.25%7.50% 42 2003 6.25%-750% 1,204
it at2 St =
INR fixed rate loans DEENEEER 2022-2023 8.30% 382 202172023 8.30%-9.00% 793
e S ZEI-FE
it at2 kSt
PHP fixed rate loans FRENREEET - - - 201 10.65% 12
—E--F
PEN fixed rate loans NEFZATEER 2023 157% 13717 2023 157% 20,352
“E-CE St
LKR fixed rate loans FEHRENRSER 200 4.00%-16.00% 1,100 2002 4.00%-16.00% 1,707
—ECoCE —F-C
MYR fixed rate loans SREGLEREER 2036 449% 33,278 = = =
ZE5F
Bank overdrafts RITEY NA  8.64%-1249% 12312 NA  8.64%-15.24% 5376
TER NER
5,415,901 6,100,619
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES

29. HEESRE

192

(a)

The Group as lessee

REBEREEA

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
+=A=+-8B +=ZA=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T

Lease liabilities HEaE
Current BNER 363,147 374,467
Non-current FEENEA 2,671,395 2,932,448
3,034,542 3,306,915

The Group mainly leases land and warehouses.
Land leases typically run for a period of 5 to 30
years of which some leases have option to renew
the lease. Warehouse leases typically run for a
period of 2 to 20 years of which some leases have
option to renew the lease. Lease payments are
renegotiated before the expiry of each lease. Some
leases provide for additional rent payments that are
based on changes in local price indices. For certain
leases, the Group is only allowed to enter into any
sub-lease arrangements for a prescribed percentage
of the leased assets. Some property leases contain
extension options exercisable by the Group up to
one year before the end of the non-cancellable
contract period. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include extension options in new leases to provide
operational flexibility. The extension options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors.
The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. The Group reassesses whether
it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if
there is a significant event or significant changes
in circumstances within its control. The Group has
estimated that the potential future lease payments,
should it exercise the extension option, would result
in an increase in lease liability of HK$24,959,000
(2020: HK$35,815,000).
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

The Group as lessee (continued) (a)

Information about leases for which the Group is a
lessee is presented below.

29. HEESG®

REBEREBEANGE)
AEBERABANHENHREE

B2 -

Amounts recognised in profit or loss RIE R 28
2021 2020
—E—F —E_TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T JBEEEF T
Leases under HKFRS 16 BBV BREENZE 165
HTHHEE
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE (120,998) (126,315)
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use 7 {E A#EEEFFESUA
assets (Note 5) (Hta5) 197,301 124,361
Variable lease payments not included Tzt ATHE B EEH
in the measurement of lease A E R
liabilities (1,371) -
Expenses relating to short-term leases 52 #i7H & MHRAF X (48,302) (48,339)
Expenses relating to leases of low- REEEEAE(REEEE
value assets, excluding short-term BT ERR N MR X
leases of low-value assets (654) (7,772)
Total cash outflow for leases HEBLRHAEE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within operating cash flows FAAREREMNE 50,327 56,111
Within financing cash flows FARERERE 505,254 527,371
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

The Group as lessor

The Group contracted out part of their leasehold
buildings to clients under logistic contracts. The
contracts typically run for an initial period of 1 to
10 years (2020: 1 to 15 years). Rates are revised
at renewal of contract to reflect market rate. None

29. HEESGE®

(b)

AEBEALHEA

AEERBEYREHNBEBNHEE
BFINETREFE - AHBEND
BEHIE10F (T4 : 1215
F) o EELHE - FIEF SR
IRRTIISHE - ZEE 0BT

of the contracts include contingent payments. The FBRANE - DA HENE LRI
non-cancellable contract payments receivable are as I ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Within one year —F R 182,822 195,050
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZEFRF
(BHEERME) 394,867 343,479
Over fifth year HiB R F 140,253 174,352
717,942 712,881
30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 30. EERH
Defined contribution plans (a) REMKEE

194

(a)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement
plan. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The Group also contributes to various other defined
contribution retirement plans for eligible employees.
The plans are managed either by the government in
the countries where the employees are employed,
or by independent trustees. Contribution levels are
determined by the relevant laws and regulations
concerned.
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e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

30. EEEAN®@

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b)

Defined benefit obligations

The Group operates a pension plan for its employees
of a subsidiary in Switzerland whereby the plan
participants are insured against the financial
consequences of old age, disability and death. The
pension plan is operated by an independent, legally
autonomous collective foundation of an insurance
company. Consequently the plan assets are
completely segregated from both the Group and the
plan participants.

The pension plan is funded by contributions from
the Group whereby funding is determined by the
provisions stipulated in The Swiss Federal Law on
Occupational Benefit and Disability Pension Plans
and the Federal law on Vesting in Pension Plans.
The latest independent actuarial valuation of the
pension plan was at 31 December 2021 performed
by Mercer (Switzerland) SA, using the projected unit
credit method. Mercer (Switzerland) SA is an affiliate
of Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc., a global
professional services firm headquartered in New
York City. The actuarial valuation indicated that the
Group's obligations under the pension plan is 65.6%
(2020: 58.4%) covered by the plan assets held by
the insurance company.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

30. EEEA®W

REEFRE

RIRE B It AR & BT TS IR OR 2 PO e
R RATENAEFEEHRS
THIFHRBEIHREHLE

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit obligations (continued) (b)

The net defined benefit obligations recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
at the reporting date, which are expected to be

196

cleared over the remaining life expectancy (based on
unconditional future indexations for active and post-
active participants), are as follows:

EZEGFERTERSE)MT

2021 2020

—EB--F —E-TF

HK$000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Present value of funded obligations B & & IERE 146,039 149,823
Fair value of plan assets FEEEZARBE (95,814) (87,482)
50,225 62,341

Details of the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

AEIBEMARBEFBAT

2021 2020

—EB--F —TFF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Cash and cash equivalents ReEMBFeEFBEIER 3,837 1,925
Equity instruments fETH 1,342 2,101
Debt instruments* BRI A 68,409 62,277
Real estate EihE 14,949 12,952
Others HAh 7,277 8,227
Assets held by insurance company R R FIEHAENEE 95,814 87,482

3 Debt instruments have a credit rating of AAA to not * BB TANGEEFRBAAAE
rated. FRELL o

CWT International Limited | 20214 & #



30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b)

Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Total amounts recognised in profit or loss are as

follows:

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E _—® _—4+1 _H =+—H I}

30. EEEAN®@

FE RN ARE (&)

RiBzm P EER AR T ¢

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Current service cost & HAPR TS R AN 8,674 8,786
Past service cost BEIRFE KA (6,805) -
Interest cost F B A 289 473
Interest income FlEW A (174) (287)
1,984 8,972

Total amounts recognised in other comprehensive

income are as follows:

REMEEKET B HER AR

-

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Remeasurements on changes of ~ &t 8RR EEF)

assumptions (3,680) 3,396

Return on plan assets (excluding & &|& ERBIW® (T2 EH BHKA)
interest income) 573 (248)
(3,107) 3,148
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued) 30. EETF @
(b) Defined benefit obligations (continued) (b) REBAAE®E
Changes in present value of defined benefit REBMAERBEZSHOT -

obligations are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Defined benefit obligations at R—A—HZARTEBHFEE
1 January 149,823 131,691
Current service cost & BARF K AR 8,674 8,786
Past service cost BERBAAR (6,805) -
Interest cost F B A A 289 473
Remeasurements on change in BT EREED
assumptions (3,680) 3,396
Benefits paid B EF 1,527 (6,539)
Exchange realignment ME W 8% (3,789) 12,016
Defined benefit obligations at RT+ZA=+—HB2Z2R/%E
31 December RS 146,039 149,823
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit HE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—80"
obligations as of 31 December 2021 is 21 years FERMNAEMEFOFHR21F
(2020: 21 years). (ZZZZFF : 215) -
Changes in the fair value of plan assets during the FRNFEEEAABEEZFSHNOT -
year are as follows:
2021 2020
—E—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB F T
Fair value of plan assets at R—A—BZ8lEEAREE
1 January (87,482) (77,597)
Interest income FEUA (174) (287)
Employer contribution fEEHE (9,392) (8,859)
Actuarial losses EEEE 573 (248)
Benefits paid SENEER (1,539) 6,539
Exchange realignment M W 8% 2,200 (7,030)
Fair value of plan assets at R+=—A=+—HZ58
31 December BEANREEB (95,814) (87,482)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued) 30. EETF @
(b) Defined benefit obligations (continued) (b) REBAAE®E
The principal actuarial assumptions are as follows: FEBERRAT :
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-EF

Mortality tables, actuarial statistics PET-R % - {5EEUE

(disability, mortality, etc.) (B - FH
Discount rate BRIR X 0.20% 0.20%
Rate of salary increase HeTiE 1.00% 1.00%
Rate of the projection of HEEANTE R X

the saving capital 0.20% 0.20%
Rate of pension increase BIREFHIE 0.00% 0.00%
Turnover LR 17.24% 16.55%
Sensitivities of significant actuarial assumptions TERERRZUBE
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date REERE - HR—BHEEARER
to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding B2 ARERREEE (HMBRETE)
other assumptions constant, would have affected SHERERAAE AP RERE
the defined benefit obligations by the amounts IR -

shown below:

Increase Decrease
bl D
HK$000 HK$ 000
BT T B F T
2021 —BC-—f
Discount rate (0.25% movement) B3R & (% %)0.25%) (6,722) 7,242
Future salary growth RIREF &R (FE0.25%)

(0.25% movement) 1,591 -
2020 —E-EHE
Discount rate (0.25% movement) B3R 3R (#5)0.25%) (7,472) 8,078
Future salary growth RERF e R (F50.25%)

(0.25% movement) 2,041 -
The above sensitivity calculations are based on L RERFETIER— IETEEF&@%
one assumption changing while others remain BymEMERBRFTE o A -
unchanged. In practice, however, there are certain B L ERIRER 2 EFEESE T8 E@f%
correlations between the individual assumptions. The oo RBMBFER  FRERATE
same method was used to calculate the sensitivities B AERARR G ESE -

and the defined benefit obligations at the end of the
financial year.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E _—® = —4#+1 _H=+—HIL

31. DEFERRED TAX 31. EZEFHIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) NTRAEBRAZEBZEEHBEE (B
recognised and movements thereon during the current and B UWERERAFERBAFE L
prior years:
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) EEHEBEER (BE)
Recognised
At Recognised in other At
1 January in profit  comprehensive Translation 31 December
2021 or loss income difference 2021
iy
i ZEC--F
ZEB--F REMH2E +=A
-A-H REZRED K ERER BREEE =t+-H
(Note 11)
(Bat11)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

¥R ERTT V-t V-t V-t

Property, plant and equipment  #1% - & KR & 253,124 (7,338) - (5,203) 240,583
Right-of-use assets ERERE 48,227 4,502 - (658) 52,071
Intangible assets BVEE 30,310 (4,532) - (1,023) 24,755
Trade and other receivables  JEWE ZIRIERE
fEdr R (1,814) 7,158 - (33) 5,311
Trade and other payables ERBSRERAD
[ERFUE (13,093) (11,568) - 297 (24,364)
Lease liabilities MHEARE (51,278) (4,580) - 636 (55,172)
Unutilised tax benefits ABAHBES (8,661) (1,509) - 693 (9,477)
Others H (7,607) (1,417) 370 (40) (8,694)
249,208 (19,284) 370 (5,281) 225,013
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e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior years: (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued)

31. EEHIE®)
UTACRRAZ TBRERERE (&
) ARERAREERBEFEE 2T
()

ELBIERE (EE) @

Recognised
At Recognised  Disposal of in other At
1 January inprofit  interestsin  comprehensive  Translation 31 December
2020 orloss  subsidiaries income difference 2020
iy e S
“T-%F WBAF REMZE “EoEF
—A-A RE&EI 1 Kan iR WEEE +ZRA=t-
(Note 11)
(His#11)

HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
ATt  EEFT BETr BETT  EEFr BETT
Property, plant and equipment 1% * BE RiRfE 264,288 (15,951) 9) = 4796 253,124
Right-of-use assets EREgE 63,324 (6,474) - - 377 48227
Intangible assets EEE 28,437 517 = = 1,356 30,310

Trade and other receivables ~ EWZ HEHRER
H YR (2,346) B41 - = (9) (1,814)

Trade and other payables EHESRER
At ERFE (11,789) (1,014) - - (290) (13,093)
Lease liabilities HERR (55,210) 4,349 - - (417) (51,278)
Unutiised tax benefits REAHBES (4,787) 3,627) - - (247) (8,661)
Others Efts (7,506) 236 - (377) 40 (7,607)
264,411 (20,423) 9) (377) 5,606 249,208
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31.

202

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxation authority. The amounts determined after
appropriate offsetting are included in the statements of
financial position as follows:

31.

EERIE ()

ELEREAE (EE)®

75 & 5% 38 SIS TAE RIS BN BB RS IE A A B
BEF AR EEMAEY  BEERESR
B —MBAHE  RIEERIEE EREEN
AEARE - REREEEET Y @t
ABTSIRRER - SR -

2021 2020

—EB--F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BMT T BEMTF T

Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIBAEE 263,939 284,666
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E (38,926) (35,458)
Deferred tax liabilities, net EERIBERE  FE 225,013 249,208

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the following items in accordance with accounting policies
set out in Note 2(x):

W EARIR P FE2(x) P L & 5 ERR B T 5138
BERRELERAEE

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ETFF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Deductible temporary differences AR R 1 =2 154,646 906,003
Unutilised tax losses AB)FAFIEEE 301,318 364,838
Unabsorbed wear and tear allowance DA D 2 FEIE R 19,653 3,515
475,617 1,274,356

At 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$301,318,000 (2020: HK$364,838,000)
which are available for offsetting against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax loss due to the unpredictably of future profit streams
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. Except for below, other
losses can be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

31. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31. EZEBRE@
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued) ELEHEAE (EE)@®
2021 2020
—EB--F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Tax losses to be expired in ATNFI A B fE w2 BT ES 1R
=2021 - —E - —F - 18,303
-2022 - == - 6,714
-2023 -—E-=F - 3,703
- 2026 =Sy s = 23,636 =
23,636 28,720
The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax MIBBEACHERERE - WETHB
authorities and compliance with tax regulations in the NEEEFTERR 2 BUBOER - AN
respective countries in which the subsidiaries operate. The R ERERBIEERE G LamEESEN)
deductible temporary differences and tax losses, other than TEEBABATRILE -

disclosed above, do not expire under current tax legislation.
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

204

32. EXRfEME

(a) Movement in components of equity (a) H=BHZEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REE =D 2 FYRFRE
balances of each component of the Group’s equity HEZHERANGEEREEHE o
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes $ AP F 9] B R AE Bl #E 2= 215
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’'s ~ #& BEEHIAOT
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Perpetual Share
Share Capital capital Translation option Accumulated
capital reserve  instrument reserve reserve losses Total
RA  EXRE KABAIR ERfE BRERS 2itER At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  EEFT  BETT  BETT  BETT BEFT  BETIL
At 1 January 2020 i Sy B 4,731,480 158,100 1,819,390 (66,156) 736 (2,450,031) 4,193,519
Loss and total comprehensive FEFRRZANREE
income for the year - - - - - (849,478)  (849,478)
Share options lapsed/cancelled BREXM/ 8 - - = = (736) 736
At 31 December 2020 and R-Z-Z%
1 January 2021 +ZA=t-Ak
“Z--%#-f-H 4,731,480 158,100 1,819,390 (66,156) - (3,298,773) 3,344,041
Loss and total comprehensive FEFERZANREE
income for the year - - - - - (89,166) (89,166)
At 31 December 2021 RIZ_—§
+-A=t-H 4,731,480 158,100 1,819,390 (66,156) - (3,387,939)  (3,254,875)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 32. EXk@#E®
(b)  Share capital (b) MR
Number
of shares Amount
BRGEE +E
HK$'000
Vit v
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: B 217 M2 2 Z@A% :
At 1 January 2020, 31 December RZE—TF—H—H -
2020, 1 January 2021 and —ET-TF+=A
31 December 2021 =+—R -ZF=—F
—A-BARZ=F=_—F%
+=-—A=+—A” 11,399,996,101 4,731,480
In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong BIEBRARREFIE1361E - AR
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the AL BRI EEE -

(c)

Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company's residual assets.

ERESEAGRERATEEIRZ
BB AERRARBRE LAE
BR—FETRR - WARBRIBE
EME - EEBBRALRS -

Nature and purpose of reserves (c) REBUHERARE

(i) Capital reserve (i) B
Capital reserve mainly represents waiver of BEAREBEZERAKREMNK
a payable to a related company of the Group, SEAE AR A FIE - &K
which is considered as deemed capital EHHSEARRLEENTAE
contribution and is credited to capital reserve. A o
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

206

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from the functional
currency of the Company.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net changes in the
fair value of cash flow hedging instruments.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve mainly represent reserve
set aside by certain subsidiaries operating in
foreign jurisdictions where profits of these
subsidiaries are set aside according to local
legislations.

Perpetual capital instrument

Perpetual capital instrument represents
a perpetual loan of S$316,000,000
(approximately HK$1,819,390,000) from
affiliates of the HNA Group. The Group has no
contractual obligation to repay any amount of
the perpetual loan under any circumstances
and any repayment is entirely at the discretion
of the Company. Consequently, the Directors
are of the view that the economic substance
of the perpetual loan is a non-reciprocal
capital contribution from HNA Group and
credited directly to reserve.
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e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

On 29 May 2012, the Company terminated the share
options scheme adopted on 7 June 2002 (the “2002
Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2012 Scheme") with effect from 25 May 2012. Under the
2012 Scheme, the Board of the Company may, subject to
and in accordance with the provisions of the 2012 Scheme
and the Listing Rules, grant share options to any eligible
participant to subscribe for shares in the capital of the
Company. The options granted under the 2002 Scheme
remain valid until those options lapsed on their expiry date.

Qualifying grantees of the 2012 Scheme include any director
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive), executive, officer, employee, shareholder of the
Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of the associated
companies or any of the jointly controlled entities and any
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, agent, partner or
business associate, who will contribute or has contributed
to the development and growth of the Group. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Scheme will
remain in force for a period of ten years from 25 May 2012.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to each eligible participant
under the 2012 Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company in issue, as at the date of grant.

The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised later than 10 years after it
has been granted.
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33.

208

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Same as the 2002 Scheme, HK$1 should be payable by
the grantee on acceptance of an offer by the grantee
under the 2012 Scheme. The exercise price per share in
relation to an option shall be a price to be determined by
the Board and shall be no less than the highest of (a) the
official closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date on which the option is offered to an eligible
participant; (b) the official average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of option to
an eligible participant; and (c) the nominal value of shares
of the Company on the date of offer of option to an eligible
participant. During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2021, no share option was granted under the 2012 Scheme.

Pursuant to the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme, share
options held by any eligible participants/qualifying
grantees will lapse automatically upon their termination
of employment but the Board is empowered to extend
the exercise period of the concerned share options at
its discretion. Relevant exercise period of share options
held by the eligible participant/qualifying grantee whose
employment was terminated during the year was extended
and approved by the Board. Such change does not
constitute modification of the 2002 Scheme and 2012
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 33. URPABEBZARRZ @
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
All the outstanding share options under the 2002 scheme “ETFFHEB T 22 ARITERR
have been lapsed during the year ended 31 December BEREBEE_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—H01t
2020. The following table discloses details and movements: FERM - TREBRFIBERES -
Number of shares under options
EREET RO
Adjusted Addition
eXercise Lapsed/ after
Exercise price per Granted  Transferred ~ Exercised  cancelled  adjustment
Category Date of Exercise price per  share due to during during during during due to At
of grantees grant period share  rightsissue  At1.12020  theyear the year the year theyear  rightsissue 31.12.2020
R AR T
EEPAN R RitRER  RZECEE
AEAZEN  REBE ARk ShRAkE  BRAEE -f-B  FAEE  FRER  FANE  AR/HE BEEZFE TAST-R
Other participants 14122010 14.12.2010- HK$0.420 HK$0410 3,072,000 - - = (3,072,000) - -
13.12.2020
Efp2HE TE-RE BB A%00T  ER040T
t2f tZA+EA
THA FIRC%E
tZA+=H
3,072,000 - - - (3,072,000) - -

Exercisable at the end of the year

RELT

Weighted average exercise price per share

ERIETHTEE

All share options are vested at the date of grant.

P BRI B H5 B
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34.

35.

36.

210

CAPITAL COMMITMENT 34, BEREE
2021 2020
—E-F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Capital expenditure in respect of the BHEKEDE - BERE#EZ
acquisition of property, plant and BRIV ERELRE MWK
equipment contracted for but not FHRBE B
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 19,965 32,265
Capital expenditure in respect of the HBRWEDE  BEREEZ
acquisition of property, plant and EREERTHZERRER
equipment authorised but not
contracted for 4,266 9,507

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is subject to various litigation, regulatory and
arbitration matters in the normal course of business. The
Group vigorously defends against these claims and, in the
opinion of the management, the resolution of these matters
will not have a material effect on the financial position of
the Group.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues as well as raising of new borrowings or redemption
of existing debt using cash flow generated from operating
activities and disposal of assets. The Group’'s overall
strategy remains unchanged from the year ended 31
December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) 36. EXAEE®

The capital structure of the Group consists of net REBEAZEBERIES(HBEEX
debt, which includes loans and borrowings (excluding MEXRABEEHEFCHESRE) HF
collateralised short-term trade facilities) (Note 27) and lease 2N RMEAEGHEIBERE]D) ke
liabilities (collectively referred as “Total Debt”); net of ERIBITER MBS RIASEEEE (F
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalent (“Net BE) - AEE 2 BERRBIERD A%
Debts"). Total capital of the Group comprising issued share BABGZEBEITRARFERBER
capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company ([BExR]) -

and Total Debt (“Total Capital”).

The Group's net debt-to-capital ratio at the end of the AEERARERAREBERSHRAF
current and previous reporting periods was as follows: BEERLENT :

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

+=—A=+-8B +=ZA=+—H

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000

Mt BETT BEFT

Loans and borrowings BERRER 27 5,415,901 6,100,619

Lease liabilities HEBE 29(a) 3,034,542 3,306,915
Less: collateralised short-term B BEEAEHESRE

trade facilities 27 (3,219,472) (3,820,926)

Total debt BET 5,230,971 5,586,608

Less: Pledged bank deposits B EEMIRITER (24,797) (29,817)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRReEEER 25 (1,517,145) (1,247,995)

Adjusted net debts KRR ETS 3,689,029 4,308,796

Equity attributable to owners of RARHER AL

the Company 4,537,861 4,367,648

Total debt BE 5,230,971 5,586,608

Total capital BER 9,768,832 9,954,256

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio KARERFRREE AN R 37.8% 43.3%
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36.

37.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

Collateralised short-term trade facilities are excluded
from the calculation of net debt to equity ratio due to its
short-term highly liquid nature that is fully secured by liquid
assets such as cash and cash equivalents, inventories and
receivables.

Straits Financial LLC, Straits Financial Services Pte. Ltd.
and PT Straits Futures Indonesia, the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the USA, Singapore and Indonesia
respectively, are subject to minimum capital requirements
pursuant to laws and regulations of the USA, Singapore
and Indonesia. Management has established controls
and policies to ensure that the subsidiaries comply with
the minimum capital requirements. The subsidiaries
have complied with the minimum capital requirements
pursuant to laws and regulations of the USA, Singapore and
Indonesia during the year.

Other than disclosed above, the Company and its
subsidiaries are not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Overview

The Group has a system of controls in place to
create an acceptable balance between the cost
of risks occurring and the cost of managing the
risks. The management continually monitors the
Group's risk management process to ensure that
an appropriate balance between risk and control is
achieved.

The Audit Committee oversees how management
monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures and reviews
the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Audit
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the
internal audit function. The internal audit function
undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of
which are reported to the Audit Committee.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group.

The Group's primary exposure to credit risk arises
through its trade receivables and contract assets.
Concentration of credit risk relating to these trade
receivables and contract assets is limited due to
the Group’'s many varied customers, which are
internationally dispersed. Management reviews the
ageing of receivables monthly to ensure that the
Group's credit risk exposure is monitored regularly.
Cash and fixed deposits are placed with banks
and financial institutions, which are regulated. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has a credit policy in place whereby
new customers are subject to credit evaluations
based on available financial information and past
experiences. The Group has established credit
limits for customers and monitors their balances on
an ongoing basis. Certain sales by the commodity
marketing and financial services segments are
generally secured by letter of credit. The Group
generally does not require collateral for sales in
other segments. As at 31 December 2021, trade
receivables of the Group secured by letters of
credit amounted to HK$1,698,183,000 (2020:
HK$1,787,662,000).
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, except for trade
receivables containing provisional features with
carrying amount of HK$1,874,844,000 (2020:
HK$2,718,677,000), the Group measures loss
allowance for trade receivables and contract assets
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. To measure
the ECL, trade receivables and contracts have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The contract assets relate
to unbilled work in progress and sales made but yet
to be invoiced as the final amount is not due until
pricing and assays are known. The contract assets
shared the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same type of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Except for amounts due from customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
that are assessed individually, impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date collectively using
a provision matrix. ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets with past write off history are based
on the historical credit losses experienced in the
last 5 years. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current conditions and estimates of future
economic conditions. ECL for trade receivables
without past write off history are measured as
follows:

o Trade receivables with corporate credit
rating — applying Moody's credit rating or
match to Moody's equivalent credit rating to
the carrying amount and loss given default
("LGD") or

o Trade receivables without corporate credit
rating — applying industry probability of default
to the carrying amount and LGD.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
the loss allowance was determined as follows for

trade receivables and contract assets:

As at 31 December 2021

37. TREREE®
(b)

EERRE)
EWEZRERSHEEE)

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—HEK=
E-THE+-_A=+—H  ERKEZ
SRENENEEZBIEREETE
N

R=B=—F+=A=+—H

Individual assessment Collective assessment Total
BRI Ga @3t
Gross Gross  Expected Gross
amount ECL amount  Loss Rate ECL amount ECL
2% BHEEEE 2% FHEBE REGCEER 28 RHEEEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEfn  BEFL BETn % BEfn  BETn BEx
Not past due ENaL - - 126578 0.00% - 126518 -
Past due 1-30 days BH51-30A - - 259,252 0.23% (601) 259,252 (601)
Past due 31-90 days BH31-90H - - 87,092 7.29% (6,347) 87,002 6,347)
Past due 91-180 days #591-1808 - - 19,162 10.92% (2,092) 19,162 (2,092)
Past due 181-365 days {15181-365H - - 10,451 31.36% (3.21) 10,451 (3217
Pastdue more than 1 year ~ BHEBEI1E - - 23971 78.14% (18,879) 23971 (18,879)
- - 1,665,657 (31,196) 1,665,657 (31,196)
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEF+=-HA=+—H
Individual assessment Collective assessment Total
ARl G @
Gross Gross Expected Gross

amount ECL amount  Loss Rate ECL amount ECL
BE BHEEEE b REFEZ REGEEE BE BUEEEE
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 % HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
E¥TT  BETT BEFR % BT BEFT BEr
Not past due ~EH - - TBAI6 0.06% (@75 754,165 (475)
Past due 1-30 days BH1-30A - - 141,619 0.16% (223) 141,619 (223)
Past due 31-90 days BE31-90R - - 62,007 0.97% 699) 62,007 (699)
Past due 91-180 days #591-1808 - - 14,942 9.42% (1,408) 14,942 (1,408)
Past due 181-365 days 5181-365H - - 37,224 11.64% 4,334) 37,224 (4,334)
Pastduemore than 1year  BHIBBIE = S 10998 100.00% (10998) 10,998 (10998
- - 1,020,955 (18,087) 1,020,955 (18,037)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. RiEMERE @)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERE)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FANRBEWEZSRERENEE
of trade receivables and contract assets during the MEERER ZEBNT
year is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BB F T
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz&#% 18,037 99,502
Amounts written off during the year — F A& 58 (8,802) (17,459)
Amounts recovered during the year FRUEEEE (272) (26,357)
Impairment loss recognised FASERREERE
during the year 25,989 4,995
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR - (42,291)
Exchange realignment P& iR (3,756) (353)
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—RHz& 31,196 18,037
Derivatives TETA
The derivatives are entered into with bank and PTETATEPBITREBEER S
financial institution counterparties, which are rated HF (REBRHEETRET BAal
Aal to A3, based on Moody's credit ratings. ZA3)EIL °
Debt investments EXERE

Impairment on debt investments have been
measured on the 12-month expected loss basis
and all of the Group’s debt investments measured
at amortised cost are considered to have low
credit risk. Management consider “low credit risk”
for listed bonds to be an investment grade credit
rating with at least one major rating agency. Other
instruments are considered to be low credit risk
when they have a low risk of default and the issuer
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Debt investments (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of the Group’'s debt investments amounted
to HK$$1,496,395,000 and the ECL on debt
investments were considered immaterial and thus
the Group did not recognise any loss allowance in
respect thereof. The Group did not hold any debt
investments as at 31 December 2021.

Assets held or segregated in separate accounts,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents

These financial assets are mainly held with bank and
financial institution counterparties, which are rated
Aal to A3, based on Moody's credit ratings. The
Group uses a similar approach for assessment of
ECL for these financial assets to those used for debt
investments. Impairment on these financial assets
have been measured on the 12-month expected
loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures. The Group considers that these financial
assets have low credit risk based on the external
credit ratings of the counterparties.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
these financial assets amounted to HK$9,774,766,000
(2020: HK$7,255,648,000) and the ECL on these
financial assets were considered immaterial and thus
the Group did not recognise any loss allowance in
respect thereof.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  37. S EERERE @)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERE)
Other financial assets measured at amortised BEBER A ENAMEHEE
cost
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost REEN AT ENEMEMEESE
mainly comprised of amounts due from other related ZOIERUE AR E T FIE - W B
parties, loans to associates and non-controlling ERARIFERERERRTFRR
interests and deposit and other receivables. These H A EUGRIE o IR K AT ER
financial assets at amortised costs are generally ZESREE—RERAEERR
considered to have low credit risk. In determining BE -EBTHEPEESER B8
the ECL, management has taken into account the BEEZBERZHFHEENR  F
credit ratings, historical default experience and the SENKRETBEMNRR - WRIEE
financial position of the counterparties, adjusted for BARENAEZREBRALERE
factors, where applicable, that are specific to the TR —MREEAREITHAE (I
debtors and general economic conditions of the BA)  MEFTES BWEEBETG
industry in which the debtors operate, in estimating NEEEAZENEESREED
the probability of default of each of these financial BOWE  DUEREEBATHNED
assets occurring within their respective loss [E518 o
assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon
default in each case.
The following table shows these financial assets TRITHEEHEEZIN2MEA
that were subject to a 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL TEE iz B R 18 Bl A Al f TR A7
allowance and, in latter case, whether they were FEEBEERENTE R &S
credit impaired. AT EEEBREERIE -
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL - not ECL-
credit- credit- credit-
impaired impaired impaired Total
NREAES EREFWEN RESRHN
FEFE EHEEFR BIHEEFE
-BEERE -SFERE -EERE @i
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
BETFT BETT BETT BETT
31 December 2021 ZB--f£+ZA=+-H
Gross amount Fok 631,623 - 30,318 661,941
ECL BHEERE - - (30,318) (30,318)
Carrying amount, net of ECL REE IREAEEER 631,623 - - 631,623
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

Credit risk (continued)

37. TREREE®
(b) HEREE

Other financial assets measured at amortised BEBHERA T ENEMEHEE
cost (continued) (&
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL - not ECL-
credit- credit- credit-
impaired impaired impaired Total
EAES  BEESRHAN  BEFNEN
FEEE REHEEEE BURCEEH
-BESHE  -BEERE -FERE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BT BEFT BEFT
31 December 2020 “E-2E+ZA=1-H
Gross amount ok 586,301 - 35,047 621,348
ECL EHREEER - - (30,299) (30,299)
Carrying amount, net of ECL FRE NREHEEER 586,301 = 4,748 591,049

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect

FRERZELREENBREE

of these financial assets during the year is as BREEWT -
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BB F T
Balance at 1 January R—A—B2&% 30,299 52,825
Amounts recovered/ written off FAWEMIEEEE
during the year (75) (34,321)
Impairment losses recognised FHRNERRREBE
during the year - 9,422
Exchange realignment IE i R 94 2,373
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—Rz&% 30,318 30,299
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

220

(c)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
Board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  37. S EERERE @)

(¢)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HKBESEARE

The following tables show the remaining contractual TREINANEB R HRERAR I
maturities at the end of the reporting period of SERMBERTESREBEZHT
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and BHEEEBER  ZERBBES
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on HWRBRBFRE(BEAE DT
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including K E 2 F B mWF R AZ
interest payments computed using contractual rates B - AIREBWE AR ZIBITH RE
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end BIRAEBATINH2&FAH
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the R NZT_THF+_HA=1—
Group can be required to pay. Liabilities associated A \B5BAREHEE ZHEET
with a disposal group classified as held-for-sale are BRANEEHRIEN -

excluded as at 31 December 2020.

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ANARRRSTE
Within Total
1year or 25 Over5 undiscounted Carrying
on demand years years cash flows amount

REH
-ERPREX  —ERF ERNAL AEREAE REE
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOOO
BRFT  BMTT  BEFT BMTT BRTX

2021 “E--F
Lease liabilities REERE 473,004 1,268,840 2,242,063 3,983,907 3,034,542
Trade and other payables ERZSZEEREMERNZE 10,635,952 22,196 - 10,658,148 10,658,148
Perpetual Note KAZE 358,694 - - 358,694 358,694
Other loans and borrowings EETRAER 4,169,917 911,276 124,288 5,205,481 5,057,207
Other derivative financial instruments ~ Eftifi4 45T A 389,558 33578 104 423,240 423,240
16,027,125 2235890 2366455  20,629470 19,531,831
2020 k- Sd-%:3
Lease liabilities HEEE 495,039 1,362,695 2,530,397 4,388,131 3,306915
Trade and other payables ENESREREMENE 9,194,149 23,779 - 921798 921798
Perpetual Note KAEE 356,905 = = 356,905 356,905
Other loans and borrowings A EFRER 4880477 824,945 122,311 5827733 5743714
Other derivative financial instruments ~ Eftii4 4R IA 1,146,335 1461 2,007 1,149,803 1,149,803

16,072,905 2,212,880 2,654,715 20,940,500 19,775,265
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

222

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in equity prices,
commodity prices, interest rates and foreign
exchange rates, will affect the Group’s income, or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

(i) Equity price risk
The Group hold listed and unlisted equity
securities which are measured at FVPL
totalling approximately HK$213,898,000
(2020: equity securities measured at FVPL
totalling HK$207,145,000) (see Note 20). A
10% increase or decrease in the underlying
equity prices at the reporting date with all
other variables held constant would have
increased or decreased the Group's profit
before taxation from continuing operations
by approximately HK$21,390,000 (2020:
HK$20,715,000).
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)
(ii)

37. TREREE®

Market risk (continued) (d) ™WEREREGE)
Commodity price risk (i) EBEERE
The Group uses derivative financial AEBFNAMTEERITA
instruments such as commodity futures, (M RHE  BREEs
commodity option contracts, commodity ¥ EoRBEREREE)
futures and commodity swaps to hedge HoaTER RZME
certain exposures. The markets used are the R e B2 5P ([LME))
London Metal Exchange (“LME") for base (EXx¢eB Wi - 3wk
metals, such as copper, lead and zinc, the ) BBEEMSHS
London Bullion Market Association (“LBMA") (lTLBMAD (£ kBiR)
for gold and silver, and the Intercontinental MBEZ 5 FT(INYSE: ICE))
Exchange ("NYSE: ICE") and the New York M@##HHBEmXHH
Mercantile Exchange (“NYMEX"). (TNYMEX]) °
The following table presents the quantities by THREVZEmO B I
commodity, to which the Group is exposed E EPAEEEEERE
to commodity price risk. Base metals, such BEk o EAXRSB (A -
as copper, lead and zinc are shown as, metric S M) R AR (RWE) 2751
tons (mt), precious metals such as gold and MELB(WEEMBR)E
silver are shown as ounces (0z) and gasoil is HA(FBRDZEY - B
shown as barrels (BBL). (B 25 -
Nickel/
Copper Lead Zinc Gold Silver  Aluminium  Naphtha Ether  Gasoil  Bitcoin
i i & S AR B/8 R 14 Al HEE
mt mt mt 0z 0z mt mt Unit BBL BTC
A A Mg B #7 A ¥ Ef iR
22 -
Grossexposure R 12554 M 2210 49722 584535 408 - 3 - -
Hedges EHRE (12975)  (s50)  (2075)  (49702) (580562  (408) - (317) - -
Netexposure 3B (421 Pl 135 20 397 - - - - -
Nicke/
Copper Lead Zinc Gold Siver  Aluminium  Naphtha Ether Gasoil Bitcoin
i i # 6 B& /8 Jall-y: B i it
mt mt mt o oz mt mt Unit BBL BIC
A A A & #il A A Bfy i i 4
2020 “ECEf
(Gross exposure #Ek 47429 1,801 14,497 69613 2,386,514 768 33,793 - 17,648 20
Hedges EHRE (47,400) (1,825) (14,500 (684101 (2.369,987) (768) (33793 - (17,648) (20)
Net exposure ke 9 (24) ] 1,203 16,527 = = = = =
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

224

(d)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Commodity price risk (continued)

Exposure to commodity prices is mostly
covered by derivatives and therefore,
changes in market prices are not expected
to significantly impact the Group's financial
performance. Changes in weight and content
of the metals within the concentrates can
impact the Group’s financial performance.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from loans and borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group may also enters into
interest rate swap to hedge its interest rate
risk if necessary.

The interest rate profile of the Group’s loans
and borrowings is disclosed in Note 28.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that
a general increase or decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased or
decreased the Group's profit before taxation
from continuing operations by approximately
HK$42,266,000 (2020: HK$48,292,000). This
sensitivity analysis excludes the impact from
cash and bank balances as the management
considers the impact to be insignificant
having regard to the stable trend in interest
rates and thus no material fluctuation is
anticipated in the near future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit
before taxation from continuing operations
that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group's profit
before taxation from continuing operations
is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as 2020.

Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign currency risks arising from
various currency exposures. \Where possible,
the Group seeks to minimise its foreign
currency exposure in operations by matching
its exposure to foreign currency receivables
to its exposure to foreign currency payables.
The Group may also explore using derivatives
to hedge its foreign exchange risk.

The Group seeks to minimise its foreign
currency exposures in foreign subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by repatriating
their earnings, where practicable. The
Group also requires the foreign subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures to maintain their
borrowings in the relevant foreign currencies
which match their respective functional
currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  37. S EERERE @)

226

(d)  Market risk (continued) (d) ™WERREGE)
(iv)  Currency risk (continued) (iv)] EXEEE)
In respect of the other monetary assets and BAEDREE BB 2 B
liabilities held in currencies other than the BEEEERBEMS @ ~5%
functional currencies, the Group reviews B 7E HiE I aREE - IR FE
the balances periodically to ensure the net BRI TE AT 2 2 KA o
exposure is kept at an acceptable level.
The Group's significant exposures to foreign REBEREFELEEB 2
currencies from its continuing operations are FEIERBEAT
as follows:
US Singapore Peruvian
Dollar Dollar Sol Renminbi
Epl N3 7T WEERHE ARY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETFT BT BT
2021 —BC-—-F
Trade and other FEWE 5 8RTE R
receivables H{th fE U R IR 777,344 80,196 30,167 994,986
Cash and cash RekReEE
equivalents HH 367,615 11,412 32,127 2,023
Trade and other EREZERER
payables H th FE A 5RIR (824,885)  (539,115) (1,410)  (895,938)
Loans and ERRAEK
borrowings (59,046) (538,666) (13,717) -
Tax recoverable AU EI IR - 873 10,445 -
Current tax payables JE{SB1EIF{IE - (7,329) (4,266) -
Gross exposure ERREER
arising from BEREEZ
recognised B4 EE
assets and
liabilities 261,028 (992,629) 53,346 101,071
Forward exchange ZEHNEEH
contracts - 29,480 - (88,803)
Net exposure F Rk 261,028 (963,149) 53,346 12,268
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(d)

(iv)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. S @iEKEEE @)
Market risk (continued) (d) TEREGE)
Currency risk (continued) (iv)] E¥mEp(GE)
us Singapore Peruvian
Dollar Dollar Sol Renminbi
= %o WEZRR AR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT T
2020 —E-EF
Trade and other FEUINE ZERIA K
receivables H Ath fE Y 5RI8 696,849 97,734 84,647 1,132,480
Cash and cash BekAeEE
equivalents HH 460,612 15,141 376 2,488
Trade and other ENESERER
payables HAth eI IR (703,699)  (234,904) (1,004) (1,093,677)
Loans and B RER
borrowings (66,789) (580,999) - -
Tax recoverable AT YR [B] 7 18 = = 6,426 =
Current tax payables JEff BN EF: I8 = 6,226 (1,324) =
Gross exposure ERRAEER
arising from BEMELEZ
recognised R ZE
assets and
liabilities 386,973 (696,802) 89,121 41,291
Net exposure FE 386,973 (696,802) 89,121 41,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Market risk (continued)

(iv)  Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the functional
currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries
against the following currencies at the
reporting date would positively/(negatively)
impact the Group’s operating result before
taxation by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in

particular interest rates, remain constant.

37.

EEEREEE)
(d) TiEEEGE)
(iv)] E%mEpE S

BT
RIBERS  AATMED
T2 AL L T T
1B10% 588 T X FRREEY
7 g2 W 6 A A0 4 R AB A
TE/ (BEZE - %O
M AEEMEE(LHEE
R 2R) M 55 T o

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

US Dollar ETT 26,103 38,697
Singapore Dollar N3 o (96,315) (69,680)
Peruvian Sol WEZER 5,335 8,912
Renminbi AR 1,227 4,129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Fair values

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyse fair value
measurements for financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, by the
levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs to valuation techniques.

37.

EEEREE @)
(e) 2ArEME
(i) AREEER

TEAMRBEHRZER
HEEAESREENTR
BEZAAEENE  RE
RETEZBAREE D Z
RABEEFKFEZLS -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-R F-R £=R wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETFT BETT BETT EEFT
Financial assets and liabilities BAREEYEZ
carried at fair value SREERAE
2021 —E--F
Commodities futures R 452,337 17,046 - 469,383
Commodities forward contracts ARERHEH 2,474 69 - 2,543
Commodities options 8 o HA 1B - 335 - 335
Currency forward contracts ERRBEN - 682 - 682
Crypto-currency futures MEEESRE - 1,879 - 1,879
Derivative financial assets THEEmEE 454,811 20,011 - 474,822
Trade receivables containing BEERTEEEMN
provisional pricing features W E SR - 1,874,844 - 1,874,844
Other financial assets HivemEeE 2,358 211,540 1630 215528
457,169 2,106,395 1,630 2,565,194
Interest rate swaps &5 5 - (104) - (104)
Commodities futures HmiE (376,264)  (23,814) - (400,078)
Commodities forward contracts EREHAL - (9,451) - (9,451)
Commodities options 8 om H 1 - (11,792) - (11,792)
Currency forward contracts RN - (1,815) - (1,815)
Derivative financial liabilities fTEEBAR (376,264) (46,976) - (423,240
Trade payables containing BEERTEREMN
provisional pricing features B E SIRE - (1,063,495) - (1,063,495)
(376,264) (1,110,471) - (1,486,735)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # £ _—F ——4+ _H =+4—HILFF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(e) Fair values (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

37.

EEEREEE)
(&) ARBE®E

(i) AREEERGE)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H £ F=H et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT  EMFT  BETrn
Financial assets and liabilities BAREEYIEZ
carried at fair value SREERAE
2020 “ECEF
Commodities futures BmiE 412,990 16,337 - 429327
Commodities forward contracts EREHAL 94 1,238 = 1,332
Currency forward contracts EREHAY = 223 = 223
Equity warrants A REE = 112 = 112
Derivative financial assets TEERmEE 413,084 17,910 - 430,994
Trade receivables containing BEERTEEFEN
provisional pricing features EUE 588 - 2718677 - 2718677
Other financial assets HitemeE 2,185 204,960 1626 208,771
415,269 2,941,547 1,626 3,358,442
Interest rate swaps FRi= 8 - (2,095) - (2,095)
Commodities futures BmiE (1,042,844) (98,379) - (1,141,223)
Commaodities forward contracts ARERHEH (82) (4,689) - (4,771)
Commodities swaps 8 fn 2 A = (317) - (317)
Crypto-currency futures MEEEHE - (1,397) - (1,397)
Derivative financial liabilities TEemBE (1,042,926)  (106,877) - (1,149,803)
Trade payables containing BEERTEREMN
provisional pricing features [N E SIRIE - (791,128) - (791,128)
(1,042,926) (898,005) - (1,940,931)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

(e) Fair values (continued)

(i)

EEEREE @)

(e) RDREEGE

Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AARBEERE)
The carrying amount of the Group's financial R —FRZZ-THF
assets and liabilities not carried at fair value +=ZA=+—8 ' XEEL
are not materially different from their fair FIEARBEIEZCEME
values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. ERGEZEAEREAR
BEEIVEEAER -
The following table shows the carrying TRINTEREECHMEELZ
amounts and fair values of significant non- FEHEERAAEE  B2FA
financial assets, including their levels in the RARBEEBRP ZKFE -
fair value hierarchy.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R et E=R st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT BETFT EEFT
Non-financial assets measured R AAEBEFEZ
at fair value kEREE
2021 —B--F
Commodity inventories where AEEEFARERHEL
the Group acts as a broker-trader ~ ERFE - 1,063,997 - 1,063,997
Cryptocurrency at fair value BARBEFEINERES 9,139 - - 9,139
Warrantable LME commodities BER2LIMERE R 66,456 - - 66,456
75595 1,063,997 - 1,139,592
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— E-R E=R et
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFr  BETT  E¥FT BT
Non-financial assets measured B2 ABEEEZ
at fair value FEREE
2020 t 23
Commodity inventories where FEBRALLERIEL
the Group acts as a broker-trader ~ HRFE - 865498 - 865498
Cryptocurrency at fair value BARBEHECNEES 4,507 = = 4,507
Warrantable LME commodities BERZIMER® 98,655 = = 98,655
103162 865,498 - 968,660
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  37. S EERERE @)

D[REEE

(e) Fair values (continued) (e)
(ii) Measurement of fair value
The following tables show the valuation
techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair
values of assets with material balance at 31
December 2021 as well as the significant
unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

(ii)

2% @8
TRITHER-E=—F
+= A=t - BAEXER
2EE BB R EES
(R 2 (DA A RER 2
EATTREHABE -

BAAEEFEZTHTA

Inter-relationship
hetween key
unobservable inputs
Significant and fair value
Type Valuation technique unobservable inputs measurement
IETTERBA
HERAMEE
2L fhER% EXTUREEARE  HEZMZEBEE
Commodities futures Market comparison technique: Not applicable Not applicable
AnHdE The fair values are based on month end spot and forward @ il
prices received from broker.
IR EE:
ArBEDMBEARE ARAERAEERAEE -
Trade receivables and payables Mearket comparison technigue: Not applicable Not applicable
containing provisional pricing features ~ The fair values are based on month end spot and forward ek TR
DEERTERH ERRER prices, until prices are fixed for metals for weights and
B55H content of metals basis third party inspections/certificates
(if applicable).
&R -
MEBENARRERBEERARE EESEEEN
AENERENE=HRE/BE(ER) FHUET -
Inventories where the Group acts Market comparison technique: Not applicable Not applicable
as a broker-trader The fair values are based on quoted prices of contracts Sk @A
AEBEALERSE BnkE of similar products obtained from exchanges and market

data providers adjusted for forward market assessment of
premiumy/discount associated with the inventory.

TR &L -

A BENAERSHRTAEEREZEENEN
ERGHNBREARE UREFERBNHEE /R
REMIATEIELEE -

Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2

There were no transfers from Level 1 to Level
2 nor the opposite direction in the reporting
and comparative period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E — % _—4 1+ _H=+—HIL 4
37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. €@EiEREE @)
(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) AAEBE®
(iii)  Offsetting financial assets and liabilities (iii) HELHEEREE

Gross amounts  Net amounts
of recognised of financial

financial assets/

assets/ liabilities

liabilities presented

Gross amounts  offset in the in the

of recognised  consolidated  consolidated

financial statement statement

assets/ of financial of financial
liabilities position position  Net amount

RERME  REGHE

HAREE: HRE2Z

BEZEH CRIER  SREE/
BE/RRAR BE/ARAR REFE |
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK8 000 HK$ 000
E¥TT BT ERTT BT

2021 ZE=-F

Type of financial assets SREERY

Derivatives fTETR 3,047,896 (2,573,074) 474,822 474,822
Type of financial liabilities cREEER

Derivatives fTETR 2,996,313 (2,573,073) 423,240 423,240
2020 It b 32

Type of financial assets tREERR

Derivatives fETR 4,339,037 (3,908,043) 430,99 430,994
Type of financial liabilities cRARER

Derivatives TR 5,057,846 (3,908,043) 1,149,803 1,149,803
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMBRERIME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has the following related
party transactions:

38. BMELIXRS
BEAHBRELMBHFREEN - &
EE RIS -

(a) Income (a) WA
2021 2020
—E-—F e e 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Sales of goods and/or services to MESHEAEERER
entities in which directors have HEE MR HARE
an interest 63,146 33,645
Sales of goods and/or services to mEEE AR HEER R,
associates AR TS 153,946 65,600
Sales of goods and/or services to HAEPEHEEERRS
joint ventures ok AR 7% 111,205 35,937
Dividend received from associates REBERNTZKE 1,042 360
Dividend received from joint ventures KBEAZBTEZRE 14,490 11,314
(b) Expense (b) BIX
Purchase of goods and/or services MESHAEESZCER
from entities in which directors BEERR SRS
have an interest 28,471 21,407
Purchase of goods and/or services MEBEARBEERR
from associates SRS 45,241 27,202
Purchase of goods and/or services MEETEREERR
from joint ventures ¥ AR 7S 106,738 29,624
Interest expense to a former m—Z AR ERF B A
shareholder* 5,787 11,770

@ ZEBR-_Z-—FHA+A
BTRBARAGMKRE - W7
BREEET S —RBEER -

# The entity has ceased to be the shareholder of the
Company and transferred all the shareholding to
another related party on 16 April 2021.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

38. BEARF @

(continued)
() Compensation of key management (c) FTEEBAEZME
personnel
The remuneration of key management members, FEEBABIAQRABES)FR
who are the Directors of the Company at the end of 2B
the year, was as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BB F T
Short-term benefits ySEEEER ] 2,719 3,917
Post-employment benefits B2 E A - 10
2,719 3,927

(d)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 10).

The remuneration of executive directors is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

Details of balances with related parties of the (d)
Group are set out in Notes 22, 23 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

& RN 8 TARAARR (BT

10) °

HITESHehFHZESREA
RIENGBEETE -

ERRET AR BRFHED
B BHERME22 - 23K

WIN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

AAREBMBLR ZFE

ARREEMBARNN-E-—FR-F
—FFT=A=+—RZEENT :

The Group's effective
interest over nominal

Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FRERADRFRR
HMRL/ BEARMRRA/ BETRE/
WEARER HMbE /AR  TEEERY afEx  EMEAEECERER 2 TEGERH
2021 2020
ZBZ-f "T_%F
% %
CWT SG* Singapore Singapore 600,304,650 shares 100 100 Investment holding &
o M of 5$174,338,331 management, warehousing
174,338 3313 MK T services, project logistics
600,304,650 & (3 management & services
REZRREE  BRRHE -
BRMRER KRS
CWT Logistics Pte. Ltd.* Singapore Singapore 5,002,502 shares 100 100 Provision of warghousing
;g s of 585,002,502 and value added logistics
5,002, 50237 T2 services
5,002,502B% B 7 A REEDRRE
Indeco Engineers (Pte) Ltd* Singapore Singapore 6,000,146 shares 100 100 Engineering maintenance
o A of $$20,600,580 services, design & building
20,600,580%T M2 services for industrial
6,000, 146813 properties, facilities
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39.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7% 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

39. RRFAFEMBLATZFE@®

The Group's effective
interest over nominal

Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FREREARFRE
EMAL/ BEARBRRAE/ BRARE/
WEARER HMbE/AX  IREERY aftEx  EMEAEEZEREE 2 TEQEER
2021 2020
ZBz-f CTEZF
% %
CWT Integrated Pte. Ltd.* Singapore Singapore 20,000,000 shares 100 100 Provision of container
g AN of $820,000,000 storage, repairs, servicing
20,000,0005T AR T2 and trucking, general
20,000,000z 13 goods warehousing and
distribution services and
undertaking of projects
logistics
REUESEHAR &6
RBLk5E  —REm
BRRD HRE R
REER MR
CWT Globelink Pte Ltd* Singapore Singapore 800,000 shares 100 100 Provision of cargo
g AN of 58800000 consolidation and sea
8000003 AWK T2 freight forwarding services
800,008 i1 REGMHERINERRE
k%
Globelink-Trans (Tianjin) The PRC The PRC Registered capital of 100 100 Provision of cargo
International Forwarding i H US$1,320,000 consolidation and sea

Co., Ltd**

(limited company (solely invested

by a foreign legal person))
RENBRBDERLE

KREBRAR

(BREARRAGIEREAER))

HMER
1,320,000% T
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e M BRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

39. RRFAFEMBLATZFE@®

The Group's effective
interest over nominal

Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FRERAD AR
EMAL/ BEARBRRAE/ BRARE/
WEARER HMbE/AX  IREERY aftEx  EMEAEEZEREE 2 TEQEER
2021 2020
ZBz-f CTEZF
% %
MRI Trading AG* Switzerland Switzerland 115,933 shares 100 100 Physical trading and supply
Wt T of CHF1,159,330 chain management of
1,159,3305 LA 2 non-ferrous base metal
115,9338 & 1p concentrates
AEEEBRBEIEN
RHRMEEER
Straits Financial Group Pte. Ltd.* Singapore Singapore 58,652,290 shares 974 974 Investment holding
A A of US$60,873,830 REZER
60,873,830% L2
58,652,208 iR 3
Straits Financial Services Pte. Ltd.*  Singapore Singapore 30,000,000 shares 974 974 Toact as brokers for trading
g AN of US$30,000,000 in futures contracts and
30,000,000 L2 centrally-cleared OTC
30,000,008 (7 commodity derivatives
BEREANRHNER
BENBIRFER
(TERMER
Straits Financial LLC USA USA 33,000,000 shares 985 98.5  Provision of financial
%6 %8 of US$33,000,000 brokerage services
33,000,000 T2 RS RELIRK
33,000,0008 & 3
CWT Commodity Logistics Singapore Singapore 2,000,000 shares 100 100 Investment holding company
Pte. Ltd * g AN of 582,000,000 of entities in commodity
2,000,000% L2 warehousing & logistics
2,000,0008% & 3 services
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIBHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. ARRIFEMRBARZFHE®
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
The Group's effective
interest over nominal
Place/ Issued and value of issued
country of Principal fully paid share capital/
incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FRERAD AR
EMAL/ BEARBRRAE/ BRARE/
WEARER HMbE/AX  IREERY aftEx  EMEAEEZEREE 2 TEQEER
2021 2020
ZBz-f CTEZF
% %
HNA Belt and Road Investments Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited® Bh i of HK$1 RERR
- EREBRAR® 1REEES 1T
& Shares directly held by the Company & HRARREERBRD
# Audited by other member firms of KPMG International & KRB BB E K 8 FHEZ
& The English name of the entity is for reference only. The @ ZEBNENEHERSE - ZEEN
official name of the entity is in Chinese. BAHBBARI -

Save as disclosed in Note 27, none of the other subsidiaries
had issued any debt securities for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

BRIGEE27TFAINEE SN  BE_T_—F R
“ETE+_RA=1+—HILFE  HE
HEARBITERERES
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —~F = —41 —H =1 —HILFE

40.

240

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

40. ARARHBARREK KRB

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REAE 913 1,879
Investments in subsidiaries KRB REZIRE 158,100 158,100
Amounts due from subsidiaries R EENGIE e 4,069,599 4,244,389
Club debentures SES - 180
Right of use assets FRAEEE - 5,339
Deferred tax asset EIERIEE E - 39
4,228,612 4,409,926
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - ke REM
receivables JE Y 518 1,517 5,604
Bank balances and cash RITEEFENMRES 6,442 2,683
7,959 8,287
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables, deposits received HEMHRIE - BEdiEE R
and accruals FEIE B 30,183 32,040
Lease liabilities HERE - 5,573
Amount due to a related company FEBAE R RZRIA 87 205
Amount due to subsidiaries FEAST BT 8~ R FIR 235,426 320,354
Borrowings B 716,000 =
981,696 358,172
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (973,737) (349,885)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #¢E = F = —4+—_H =+ —HIL4F /&

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. ARDE] BN R KRB @
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERABAR 3,254,875 4,060,041
Non-current liability FRBEE
Borrowings fE - 716,000
Net assets EEFRE 3,254,875 3,344,041
Capital and reserves BRAR&HE
Share capital (N 4,731,480 4,731,480
Reserves & (1,476,605) (1,387,439)
Equity attributable to owners of AREEEABILESR
the Company 3,254,875 3,344,041
The Company’s statement of financial position was KRB ZHBHRARER =T =__F=H
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors ZTN\BEESgHERKETIE - ALH
on 28 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: THEERREE
Wang Kan Wu Jinfeng
EX /i REU
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E ~ &~ —4 1 ~H =1 —HILF &

41.

242

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Promissory Note with a maturity date on 2
September 2022 were renewed with another 3-year
period. The balance is interest-bearing at 5% per
annum, which shall be payable semi-annually in
arrears. The Company may elect to defer payment
of interest, in which case interest of 5% shall accrue
on such deferred interest amounts until payment. All
accrued and unpaid interest and all unpaid principal
shall be paid in full on 18 February 2025.

The Russia/Ukraine war (the “War”) has further
disrupted supply chain, driven up commodity prices
especially oil, titanium, nickel, wheat and corn.
Energy costs surged which further raised the already
high inflation level and is likely to impact the pace
of economic recovery. The extent of impact on
the economic recovery would depend on how fast
the conflicts can be resolved and the supply chain
resumes. Slower economy would affect trade and
demand for any businesses.

Higher fuel and energy costs would increase
the Group's costs of transportation and utilities
cost of provision of logistics services. Further
demand/supply chain disruption may affect the
Group’s logistics services. The financial services
segment’s derivative business saw higher customer
trading volumes arising from the market volatility.
Commodity marketing segment was not affected as
the war zone is outside its trading bound. However,
the higher energy costs may translate into higher
freight costs which would increase its cost of sales.

Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances,
the full financial impact will be reflected in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending
31 December 2022.
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(a)

RBEHRE - YRR/ T ——
FANAZBZAREBEEH=
F o BHRBFMNERE%ER - AR
BHFHRIMN - RAAFAEEL
BXNAE - ERHBERT @ ZFE
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A+ NBEHEA -
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BERA AT - T — SRR
A e BRAKE - LA RERER
EEEN K -  HREEROTE
12 BUR D R R 18 28 K (e 2 i
ENERE - KERECTELED
BoHhkHEH -

FRFE K2 BER AR 7R Lok S5 38 N AN 52
REMRIREOEGKRARARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #E —~F =4+~ H =1 —HILFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 42. BE-E--F+Z/F=+—

NEW STANDARDS AND AIEFESBAHAEMRERZ
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT EETA - FHETEARRE 2B
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED TEE

31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEZSWBREREMAE - B
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new AREEEMETERBE_S-_—F+=A
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet =T —HIEFEHRERE HARZEY
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and which MR PERAN ASETARRETER - &
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These BRI REERNE17S - RBRAEL - %5
developments include the following which may be relevant FEPFEAEERNEEERNATSIE -

to the Group.

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

RTZHE a2 18

8.2 & aT BIfE £ 53X

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the conceptual framework 1 January 2022

BERMBWELAEINEFTR - HLaEL g0 —E-_—F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment:

Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022
ERGTERFENSRZIEETAR  WF - #S KRR - R EREFZ I TEHE —E__f—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
BERGTEREITRZEEIR - FEEH —EXEZ KA —E--F—fF—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle 1 January 2022
BRVBRELEN B N\FE2_Z_TFRB I FEICE —E__f—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
ERGERBIRZEBEIR - BESERREHIERE —E-=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practices Statement 2,

Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023
BB G ERFE VR BT ARERB MBS LR

BISBAER ERIAN - B BEAHE —E-=%—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
BEEGTERES T ZEFIA » B 1La161EZE —ET_=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from

a single transaction 1 January 2023
BERGERBI12WRZBEIR BE - GHEFEEREBEETHLFELHE —E-=F—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of $%IEEWEEZ%@ET$E@§VKE§JEHEHF§J
what the impact of these developments is expected to be %?ELHH%%: HIY BRI AL  AEERE
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded RAZSET AT AN HiRE MR
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant REXEARE -

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBRE

RESULTS E 3

For the years ended 31 December

BE+-R=1t-HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
e —T-)N\F —T-NEF —T-EF —E-_-F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BB BB BT BETFT
(Restated)
(I E7)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: E1E%F/ (F#8)
Owners of the Company ARAEBA 204,478 (557,289) (597,557) 41,465 208,905
Non-controlling interests FEERER 21,733 (29,500) 46,255 26,843 80,454
226,211 (586,789) (551,302) 68,308 289,359
Earning/(loss) per share EREFN/ (BB
Basic (HK cents) BRGEM) 1.79 (4.89) (5.24) 0.36 1.83
Diluted (HK cents) g SiA ) 1.79 (4.89) (5.24) 0.36 1.83
Dividends e = = = = -
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE  BERFERES

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at 31 December

W+=B=+-H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
e —T-N\F “T-NEF —T-EF —EZ-§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT EETT BT EETT V-t

Total assets BEE 31,181,703 25,811,560 24,020,577 24,915,974 24,934,882
Total liabilities wafE (25,210,370)  (20,496,609)  (19,399,586)  (20,417,616)  (20,211,573)

5,971,333 5,314,951 4,620,991 4,498,358 4,723,309

Equity attributable to owners of KA FIHEA AJEGHER

the Company 5,444,133 4,872,742 4,166,382 4,367,648 4,537,861
Non-controlling interests RS 527,200 442,209 454,109 130,710 185,448
5,971,333 5,314,951 4,620,991 4,498,358 4,723,309
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